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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Members,
ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CHN:UB3032MH1886PLC0E014

Your Directors are pleased to present the Twenty Seventh Annual Report on the business
and operations of your Company together with the audited accounts for the financial year
ended March 31, 2022,

M

Financial Performance:

A summary of the Financial Performance of the Company both on standalone and
consolidated basis, for the Financial Year 2021-2022 as compared to previous
Financial year 2020-2021 is given below:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Standalone Consolidated
Particulars FY 2021- | FY 2020- | FY 2021- | FY 2020-
2022 2021 2022 2021
Gross Income 51,990 46,933 77,045 80,086
Profit/(loss) before 25,910 24,382 39,610 46,589
interest, depreciation and
taxation
Financial charges 5,452 6,156 17,159 20.828
Depreciation 21,263 22,403 22,159 23,351
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax (804) 4,177 292 2,411
Profit from discontinuing - - - -
operations
Provision for tax:
Current Tax 31 - 1,313 2947
MAT credit of earlier year - - -
utilised / expensed
Deferred Tax (48) (1040) (596) (2,243)
Income Tax relating to (75) - (1,162) -
previous year
Profit/(Loss) After Tax (712) (3137) 737 1707
Profit / (Loss) For The - - - -
Year (After Adjustment
For Minority Interest)
Balance brought forward (1,568) 1569 15,739 14,984
from previous year
Transferred to Reserve - - 277) (952)
Fund
Adjustment in  Profit / - - - -
(Loss)
Balance Carried Forward (2,279) (1568) 16,199 15,739
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These standalone and consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Indian
Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) issued by
Ministry of Corporate Affairs in exercise of the powers conferred by Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as amended from time to time.

(2) Dividend:

Your Directors have not recommended payment of dividend for the financial year
ended March 31, 2022 since it is proposed to retain the same in the business.

3 Transfer to Reserve Fund:

Your Directors do not proposed to appropriate any amount to be transferred to
General Reserves during the financial year 2021-22.

“) Brief description of the Company’s state of affairs during the vear and review
of operations of the Company:

The last year has been a challenging year for the overall Industry. The pandemic
continued to impact the business substantially. The country was under lockdown or
very little economic activity for a large part of last year. This impacted the
transportation related businesses substantially since there was very less travel and
people were largely working from home. A pandemic of this nature is something
that has not been witnessed in many decades and apart from the immediate health
issues it was likely to cause, it is resulting in much larger economic issues that many
organisations were not prepared for.

The impact of pandemic is still continuing with Wave 2 hitting the country towards
the end of 2021. The magnitude and impact of Wave 2 was much more intense and
severe and had pushed the country into another lockdown in Q1 2022. While the
Company had seen good recovery in pockets, some of its businesses continue to stay
impacted even presently. While the Company had seen a strong rebound in demand
on its Leasing Business, unfortunately the transportation businesses still have not
been able to register a strong rebound. It is expected that normalcy is likely to come
back by the end of Qtr 2 of the next financial year for the transportation businesses
as they are heavily dependent on Corporates opening up ie moving away from a Work
From Home scenario and business travel resuming. While the Company had seen
personal and leisure travel come back and that has helped the Self Drive business to
grow steadily, it still remains a small part of its overall revenue and hence its critical
for the Corporate trave] to resume, which is only expected by end of Quarter 2 of the
next financial year.

All the necessary steps were taken to ensure the safety and well-being of our
employees. There has been a continuous engagement with our clients, vendors as
well as employees during this lockdown that has continued for a few months
now. The organization has demonstrated great adaptability and resilience against the
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pandemic and we feel confident that the organization will bounce back and will be
on the road to recovery sooner rather and later.

With the economy opening up and with a relatively low impact of the subsequent
covid 19 waves, the Company feels that the next few quarters would help it tide the
slowdown witnessed during the last year and the future holds a lot of promise as we
see it today

(5) Credit Rating:

The India Ratings & Research Private Limited (FITCH) has assigned ratings for the
various facilities availed by the Company vide letter dated August 04, 2021, details
of which are given below:

. India Ratings & Amount
Facility Research Private (Rs. in
Limited (FITCH) mn)
Long Term Loan IND AAA Term 5,964
Short Term Limits IND A1+ 8.555
Total 14,519

(6) Borrowings:

Your Company has diversified funding sources from Public Sector Banks and Private
Sector Banks, in the form of Short Term Loan and Long Term Loan.

During the year, your Company raised Rs 3,000 million through term loans from
Banks. Interest payment or principal repayment of the term loans due as on March
31, 2022 has been paid. The assets of the Company which are available by way of
security are sufficient to discharge the claims of the banks as and when they become
due.

As of March 31, 2022, Total Debt stood at Rs.8,639 mn (Rs. 7,406 mn as of March
31, 2021). Total Debt includes Short Term Loans and Long Term loans including
term loans maturing within 12 months of the balance sheet date amounting to Rs.
1,633 mn.

(7) Share Capital:

L. Authorised Share Capital : The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is
Rs. 1,700,000,000 (Rupees Seventeen Hundred Million Only) consisting of
160,000,000 (One Hundred Sixty Million Only) Equity Shares of Rs.10/-
each and 10,000,000 (Ten Million Only) Preference Shares of Rs.10/-
each.

1. Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital : The Issued Subscribed and Paid
up Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 1,279,964,980/- (Rupees One
Thousand Two Hundred Seventy Nine Million Nine Hundred Sixty four
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Thousand Nine Hundred Eighty only) divided into 127,996,498 (One Hundred
Twenty Seven Million Nine Hundred Ninety-Six Thousand Four Hundred
Ninety Eight) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each.

There was no change in the Share Capital during the year under review.

As required by the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI") Master Direction — Foreign
Investment in India RBI/FED/2017-18/60 FED Master Direction No. 11/2017-
18 dated 4 January (updated as on March 08, 2019), RBI Notification No.
FEMA 20(R)/2017-RB dated 7 November 2017 and Consolidated Foreign
Direct Investment (‘FDI’) Policy Circular | of 2017 (“FDI Policy”)
(‘Regulations’), the Statutory Auditors of the Company vide their certificate
dated July 29, 2022 had certify that the Company is in compliance with the
Regulations as regards to downstream investment and other FEMA
prescriptions.

(8 Details in respect of adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to the
Financial Statements:

In terms of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), Audit Committee’s
terms of reference, amongst others, includes evaluation of Internal Financial Control
(IFC) and Risk Management Systems. An evaluation of the Company’s Internal
Financial Control (IFC) is a detailed process to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles During the year under review, a detailed exercise was carried by Mr.
Rishikesh Agarwal, an external expert who evaluated the entity level controls;
business process level controls; testing, reporting and monitoring and Risk
Management Systems of the Company so as to evaluate operating effectiveness of
entity level controls on financial reporting process and put in place suitable
remediation plan / compensatory control to minimise or eliminate risk of any nature.

The report provided by Mr. Rishikesh Agarwal did not indicate any material issues
which required attention of the Audit Committee and Statutory Auditors.

%9 Details of Subsidiary Company :

L General Information :

During the year under review, the Company had two Subsidiary Companies
namely ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited (OLFS) and ORIX
Housing Finance Corporation India Ltd (OHFC).

OLFS is registered with Reserve Bank of India as Non Deposit taking
Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial Company. OLFS is primarily
engaged in the business of providing finance, inter alia, by way of Finance
Lease to Corporate Customers for providing them Vehicles and / or Equipment
on lease basis; Commercial Vehicle Loan to retail customers; and providing
Loan to retail customers against immovable properties.
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OHFC was incorporated on April 21, 2018 with the objective of carrying out
the business of Housing Finance Company (HFC) in India. It had also made an
application to National Housing Bank for issue of Certificate of Registration
to commence the business of a HFC in India. However, due to then prevailing
unfavourable market scenario, especially with the funding issues with the Non-
banking Finance Companies and Housing Finance Companies, the Board of
Directors of OHFC had approved for the withdrawal of the HFC application
and accordingly the application was withdrawn in the FY 2019-20. The Board
of Directors of the OAIS had approved for merger of the OHFC into OAIS in
their meeting held on March 22, 2022, subject to approval of shareholders,
creditors and Ministry of Corporate Affairs. Accordingly, OAIS and OHFC are
in the process of merger.

During the year, the Board of Directors has reviewed the affairs of OLFS and
OHFC, the wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company. In accordance with
Section 129(3) of the Act, the Company has prepared Consolidated Financial
Statements as on March 31, 2022, which includes financial position of the
Company, OLFS and OHFC. Further, a statement containing salient features
of the financial statement of OLFS and OHFC is prepared in prescribed format
AOC-1 and appended as Annexure-A to this Report.

I1. Performance and financial position of the Subsidiary Companies ;

The broad highlights for FY 2021-2022 as compared to previous Financial
year 2020-2021 for OLFS are as under:
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 2021-2022 2020-2021
Gross Income : 25,732 33,802
Profit/(loss) before interest, : 13708 22191
depreciation and taxation

Financial charges : 11.800 14,767
Depreciation : 897 947
Profit/(Loss) before tax : 1.012 6,477
Provision for tax:

Current Tax : 1,261 2,918
Deferred Tax : -554 (1,203)
Income Tax relating to previous year : -1080 -
Profit/(Loss) after tax : 1,386 4,762
Transferred to Reserve Fund : 277 952
Balance Carried forward : 18,200 17,090
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The broad highlights for FY 2021-2022 as compared to previous Financial
year 2020-2021 for OHFC are as under:

(Rs.in Lakhs)

Particulars FY: 2021- FY: 2020-
2022 2021

Gross Income : 88.67 116.29
Profit/(loss) before interest, depreciation | : 84.86

§ 109.50
and taxation
Financial charges : 0 0
Depreciation : 0 0
Profit/(Loss) before tax : 84.86 109.50
Less: Taxation expenses 21.87 28.35
Profit/(Loss) after tax : 62.99 81.15
Balance brought forward from previous 224.18 143.03
year
Transferred to Reserve Fund : 0 0
Adjustment in Profit/ (Loss) : 0 0
Balance Carried forward : 287.17 224.18

(10) DEPOSITS:

During the year under review, the Company did not accept / renew any deposits from
the public within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 of the Act as well as the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

(11)  AUDITORS:

I. Statutory Auditors and Statutory Audit Report: Pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, Chartered
Accountant (Registration No. 101049W/E300004), had been appointed as
Statutory Auditors of the Company in the Twenty Sixth Annual General
Meeting of the Company held on September 28, 2021, for the period of five
years i.e. to hold office from the conclusion of Twenty Sixth AGM until the
conclusion of the Thirty-First AGM of the Company to be held in the year
2026.

The Statutory Auditors have given a confirmation to the effect that they are
eligible for appointment and that they have not been disqualified in any manner
from appointment as Statutory Auditors. The remuneration payable to the
Statutory Auditors shall be determined by the Board of Directors based on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee.
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(12)

The observations made by the Auditors’ in their report for the financial year
ended March 31, 2022 are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any
further comments under section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013.

There are no qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimer made
by the Statutory Auditor in their report for the financial year ended March 31,
2022.

II.  Secretarial Auditor: Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act, the
Board of Directors at its meeting held on March 22, 2022 had appointed M/s.
BNP & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, as the Secretarial Auditor
of the Company to conduct the secretarial audit of the Company for the
Financial Year 2021 - 2022.

There are no qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimer made
by the Secretarial Auditor in their report for the financial year ended March 31,
2022. The Report of the Secretarial Auditor in Form MR-3 is annexed as
‘Annexure-B’.

Statutory Disclosure:

I. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 92(3) and Section 134(3)(a) read with
Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the
Annual Return is uploaded on the website of the Company at ORIX - OAIS:
Reports & Filings (orixindia.com)’.

II. Disclosure as per Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(2) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014 pertaining to individuals employed throughout the year and in receipt of
remuneration of not less than Rs. 1,02,00,000/- ( Rupees One Crore and Two
Lakhs) per annum or or employed for part of the financial year and in receipt
of remuneration of Rs. 8,50,000/- (Rupees Eight lakh and fifty thousand) per
month is given in ‘Annexure-C’.

[1I.  Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(h) read with Rule 8(2) of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, particulars of the contracts or
arrangements with related parties referred to in section 188(1) in Form AOC-
2 is annexed as ‘Annexure-D’.

All contracts/ arrangements/ transactions entered into/ by the Company during
the financial year under review with related parties were on arms’ length basis
and in the ordinary course of business of the Company. There have been no
materially significant related party transactions, pecuniary transactions or
relationships between the Company and its Promoter, Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel or other designated persons that may have potential
conflict with the interest of the Company.

The Policy on Related Party Transactions of the Company as approved by the
Board is available on the Company’s website at the web-link Microsoft Word
- Related Party Transaction Policy - OAIS-31.07.2020 (orixindia.com). The
Policy governs the following:
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(1) Identifying related party(ies), updating and maintaining the database of
such person/entities;

(2) Ascertaining that the transaction entered with the related party(ies)
is/are in ‘ordinary course of business of business’ and at ‘arm’s length
basis’;

(3) Identifying related party(ies) transaction;

(4) Obtaining approvals before entering into any related party(ies)
transaction;

(5) Determining the disclosures / compliances to be adhered in relation to
the related party(ies) transaction.

Transactions with related parties, as per the requirements of Accounting
Standard 18, are disclosed to the notes to accounts annexed to the financial
statements.

IV. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Board of Directors has, based on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Company, approved the policy on
Directors’ appointment and remuneration for Directors, Senior Management,
KMPs and other employees (“Policy”). During the year under review, the
Board of Directors based on the recommendation of the NRC, approved and
adopted the revised Policy The said Policy is available on the website of the
Company at Microsoft Word - Nomination and Remuneration Policy - 14-5-
15 - OAIS (orixindia.com), Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section
134(3)(e), the Company’s policy on director’s appointment and remuneration
including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes,
independence of a director and other matters provided under Section 178(3) is
also annexed as ‘Annexure-E’.

V. Disclosures pursuant to the provisions of Rule 8(5) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 are as follow:

(a) There is no proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016.;and

(b) There was no instance of one time settlement with any Bank or
Financial Institution.

(13)  Corporate Governance:

The report on Corporate Governance for the Company is annexed as ‘Annexure-F’
and forms an integral part of this Annual Report.

(14)  Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings
and Outgo:

I. Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption:

(a)  The requirements of disclosure with regard to Conservation of Energy in
terms of Section 134 of the Act, read with the Companies (Accounts)
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Rules, 2014, are not applicable to the Company since it does not own
any manufacturing facility.

However, the Company makes all efforts towards conservation of
energy, protection of environment and ensuring safety.

1.  Technology Absorption:

Not Applicable

11I. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

There is foreign exchange outgo of Rs. 131.29 mn during the financial year
under review.

(15)  Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP):

I On recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company, the Board of Directors, at its meeting held on November 04, 2020,
appointed Mr. Takashi Nakayama (DIN 08768983) as an Additional Non-
Executive Director of the Company with effect from November 04, 2020. The
Members of the Company in their 28" Extra~Ordinary General Meeting held
on April 30, 2021, approved his appointment as Director of the Company.

However, in the view of organizational changes at ORIX Corporation (Japan),
the Holding Company, Mr. Takashi Nakayama (DIN 08768983) Director had
resigned from the Board of Directors of the Company with effect from July 29,
2021.

The Board placed on record its sincere appreciation for the valuable
contribution and services rendered by Mr. Takashi Nakayama as Director of
the Company.

[I.  On recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company, the Board of Directors, at its meeting held on January 12, 2021,
appointed Mr. Takehiro Onishi (DIN: 09019630) as an Additional Non-
Executive Director of the Company with effect from January 12, 2021. The
Members of the Company in their 28" Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held
on April 30, 2021, approved his appointment as Director of the Company.

1. On recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company, the Board of Directors, at its meeting held on March 31, 2021,
appointed Mr. Shin Hamada (DIN: 09100127) as an Additional Non-Executive
Director of the Company with effect from March 31, 2021. The Members of
the Company in their 28" Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on April 30,
2021, approved his appointment as Director of the Company.

[V. On recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the

< Company, the Board of Directors, at its meeting held on March 31, 2021 re-
appointed Mr. Sandeep Gambhir (DIN: 00083116), Chief Executive Officer as

Managing Director of the Company for the period commencing from April 01,
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2021 until March 31, 2024. The Members of the Company in their 28" Extra-
Ordinary General Meeting held on April 30, 2021, approved his re-
appointment as Managing Director of the Company for the period commencing
from April 01, 2021 until March 31, 2024.

V.  On recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company, the Board of Directors, at its meeting held on July 29, 2021,
appointed Mr. Takashi Yamasaki (DIN: 09238975) as an Additional Non-
Executive Director of the Company with effect from July 29, 2021. The
Members of the Company in their 26" Annual General Meeting held on
September 28, 2021, approved his appointment as Director of the Company.

Further on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee of
the Company, the Board of Directors, at its meeting held on May 02, 2022,
appointed Mr. Takashi Yamasaki (DIN: 09238975) as Whole-time Director of
the Company for the period April 25, 2022 until April 18, 2025, subject to
approval of the Members of the Company and Central Government.

V1. On recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company, the Board of Directors, at its meeting held on September 03, 2021,
appointed Mr. Ryohei Suzuki (DIN 08218888) as Whole-time Director of the
Company for the period September 03, 2021 until July 29, 2023, subject to
approval of the Members of the Company and Central Government. The
Members of the Company in their 26" Annual General Meeting held on
September 28, 2021, approved his appointment as Whole-time Director of the
Company for the period September 03, 2021 until July 29, 2023, subject to
approval of Central Government. An application was made to Central
Government for his appointment as Whole-time Director for the
aforementioned period, which is pending with the Central Govermnment for
its approval.

VII. Mr. Sandeep Gambhir (DIN 00083116), Managing Director and Chief
Executive Officer, Mr. Ryohei Suzuki, (DIN 08218888) Whole-Time Director,
Mr. Vivek Wadhera, Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Jay Gandhi (ICSI
Membership no. A16040), Company Secretary are the Key Managerial
Personnel (KMP) of the Company pursuant to Section 2(51) and 203 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,

(16)  Retire by Rotation :

In accordance with Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the Act,
Mr. Takehiro Onishi (DIN 09019630) being Non-Executive Director of the Company
retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting. The Board recommends his re-appointment.

(17)  Declaration from Directors

All the Directors of the Company have confirmed that they are not disqualified from
being appointed/ continuing as Directors in terms of section 164 of the Companies
Act, 2013.
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(18)  Declaration from Independent Directors:

The Company has received declaration from Mr. Nagesh Dubey (DIN: 06967617)
and Mr. Abhay Kakkar (DIN: 06659327) Independent Directors of the Company
confirming that they meet with the criteria of Independence as prescribed under
Section 149(6) of Companies Act, 2013. All Independent Directors have submitted
the declaration of compliance of sub-rule (1) and sub-rule (2) of rule 6 of the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 to the Board.
No transaction was entered with Independent Directors during the year under review,
which could have any material pecuniary relationship with them. Apart from sitting
fees, no other remuneration was given to the above Independent Directors. The
Independent Directors have complied with the Code for Independent Directors
prescribed in Schedule TV of the Act.

The Independent Directors are persons of integrity and possess the relevant
proficiency, expertise and experience to qualify as Independent Directors of the

Company and are Independent of the Management of the Company.

(19)  Risk Management and Portfolio guality:

Risk Management is an on-going process. The Board has defined the roles and
responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee and has delegated the
monitoring and reviewing of the Risk Management Plan to the Committee.

The Company is exposed to Credit Risk, Economy Risk, Asset Liability Mismatch
Risk, etc. The expertise in lending operations acquired by the Company over past
few years has helped to mitigate credit risk. The Company ensures that the short term
and long-term resources of funds are favourably matched with deployment. To avoid
any asset liability mismatch risk, the Company proposes to long term funding
instruments. The Company has continued to enjoy trust and support from its banks
and financial institutions, due to its impeccable record in servicing debts on time.

The Company has also adopted stringent checks and internal controls across all
branches. Risk function is an independent department without any business overlays.
The Company has implemented necessary control measures to arrest the operational
risk arising from manual processes, which are not supported by IT systems. The
Company mitigates its interest rate risk through innovative resource mobilization
technique, prudent fund management etc. Superior credit rating of company’s
financial instruments enables it to raise funds at competitive rates. The Treasury and
Asset Liability Management Committee regularly review the interest rate risk and
liquidity risk.

(20)  Vigil Mechanism:

The Company has adopted Whistle Blower policy with a view to provide a Vigil
mechanism framework for Directors and employees of the Company to report
genuine concerns. The provisions of this policy are in line with the provisions of the
Section 177(9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 2013. The functioning of Vigil
Mechanism is reviewed by the Audit Committee from time to time. The Whistle
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Bloweer Policy is uploaded on the Company’s website at the web-link Microsoft
Word - Whistle Blower Policy-04.11.2020-OAIS (orixindia.com). Compliance
awareness messages are sent on weekly basis by the Compliance function to all
employees of the Company. During the year under review the Company had not
received any complaint in the form of whistle blower under the Whistle Blower
Policy of the Company.

(21)  Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR):

The Company’s Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities are guided and
monitored by its CSR Committee. The CSR Policy of the Company provides a broad
set of guidelines including intervention areas. The Company believes CSR is a way
of creating shared value and contributing to social and environmental good.
Company’s strategy is to integrate its activities in community development, social
responsibility and environmental responsibility.

As per the provisions of Sectin 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the average net
profit of the Company for the immediately preceeding three financial years was
Negative and hence the Company was not required to contribute funds towards CSR
activities for FY 2021-22. The same was noted by the Board of Directors in their
meeting held on November 25, 2021.

The annual report on CSR in compliance with Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is annexed as “Annexure-G”.

(22)  Internal Audit and Compliance:

I. Internal Audit:

The Company conducts its internal audit functions within the parameters of
regulatory framework which is well commensurate with the size, scale and
complexity of operations. The internal controls are reviewed and enhanced
periodically.

The Internal Audit Department continuously monitors compliance to internal
processes across the operations to ensure that all assets are safe guarded and
protected against loss from unauthorised use or disposition, that transactions
are authorised, recorded and reported correctly and that operations are
conducted in an efficient and cost effective manner.

The Internal Audit activities are designed to ensure reporting efficiency and
compliance with the regulations. The Internal Audit Reports are discussed at
length during the Audit Committee meetings, which also reviews the
adequacy and effectiveness of the internal controls. The Company has
framed the scope and plan of Internal Audit to effectively monitor and
supervise the internal audit function in accordance with the statutory
requirements.
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ORIX Corporation (ORTX), the Holding Company is listed on New York
Stock Exchange (NYSE) and is required to comply with Sarbanes-Oxley
(“SOX™) Act, 2002 as a foreign private issuer. The Company being indirect
subsidiary of ORIX was subject to SOX Audit to ascertain Entity Level
Control (“ELC™) from financial year 2021-22 and onwards.

In view of the above, SOX testing was conducted for financial year 2021~
2022 by the consulting firm, PROTIVITI (Japan), appointed by Global
Internal Audit Department, ORIX. PROTIVITI (Japan) along with its Indian
Entity PROTIVITI (India) conducted ELC testing of the Company and
submitted its results to ORIX and the Company.

The results of the SOX Audit were placed before the Audit Committee of
the Company.

11. Compliance:

The Company has set up Compliance Department which is independent of
Internal Audit Functions. The Compliance Functions have a preventive,
advisory and supervisory role, with particular emphasis on:

) Facilitating the effective identification of risk of violation of relevant
external requirements, such as compliance with laws and regulations,
as well as providing advice on risk reduction measures

2) Developing and facilitating the implementation of internal controls
that will provide the organisation with protection from Compliance
Risk

3) Monitoring and reporting on the effectiveness of control measures

@) Providing the business with advice about acceptable behaviour and
practices in relation to the interpretation of external laws and internal
rules

(%) Monitoring relevant regulatory developments within the compliance
function’s areas of responsibility

(0) Ensuring awareness and training

This function is evolving within the organisation and executives of this
department are closely working with holding company (ORIX Corporation)
Global General Counsel’s Office, which is responsible for supervising the
Compliance functions of the Company, so as to adopt best ethical business
practice and behaviour within the organisation. Moreover, Annual
Compliance Plan has been drawn up and submitted to the Audit Commitiee
so that concentrated efforts can be made in specific direction for ensuring
that directives of ORIX Corporation are followed

The Audit Committee reviews the performance of the internal audit and
compliance functions, the effectiveness of controls and compliance with
regulatory guidelines and gives such directions to the Management as
necessary / considered appropriate.
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(23)  Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments:

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments governed under the provisions of
Section 186 of the Act are given under Notes to Accounts forming part of the Audited
Financial Statements.

(24)  Significant and Material Orders Passed by the Regulators or Courts:

There has been no significant and material order passed by the Regulators or Courts
that would impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

(25) DPolicy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment:

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted
a ‘Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace’ ("Policy") in line with
the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (“POSH Act”) and the Rules thereunder for
prevention and redressal of complaints of sexual harassment at workplace. The
Company has constituted Internal Complaints Committees as per the above Act.
During the year under review, no complaint was received under the above Act and
Policy.

(26) Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)

During the year under review, there were no amount which were required to be
transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund as per provisions of Section
125 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(27)  Directors’ Responsibility Statement:

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and
explanations obtained” by them, your Directors make the following statements in
terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013:

(1) that in preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March
31, 2022, the applicable accounting standards had been followed; along with
proper explanation relating to material departures

(2) that appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied
consistently and judgments and estimates made are reasonable & prudent so as
1o give a true & fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at the end
of the financial year ended March 31, 2022 and of the profit of the Company
for the said year;

(3) that proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act, for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

(4) that the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;
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(5) the Company has an established internal financial control framework including
internal controls over financial reporting, operating controls and for the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors. The framework is reviewed
periodically by Management and tested by Mr. Rishikesh Agarwal, an external
consultant, appointed by the Company to conduct the internal financial control.
Based on the periodical testing, the framework is strengthened from time to
time to ensure the adequacy and effectiveness of internal financial controls;
and

(6) that the systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such system were adequate and operating effectively.

(28)  Frauds reported by the Auditor

During the year under review, the Auditors have not reported any instances of frauds
committed in the Company by its Officers or employees to the Audit Committee
under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(29)  Secretarial Standards issued by ICSI:

Pursuant to the provisions of section 118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,

compliance with Secretarial Standards relating to General and Board Meeting

specified by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) as approved by the

Central Government have become mandatory from July 1, 2015. The Company is

adhering to the standards issued by the ICSI, including any amendment or
. modification as them be notified by them from time to time.

(30) General:

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the
following items as there were no transactions on these items during the year under
review:

(1) Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or
otherwise.

(2) Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company.

(3) No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or
Tribunals which impact the going concern status and Company’s operations in
future.

(4)  No change in nature of business.

(5) Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company between the end of financial year (March 31, 2022) and the date of
the Report. However, ORIX Housing Finance Corporation India Ltd., the
Wholly-owned Subsidiary of the Company is in proess of Merger with the
Company. The resolution for merger was approved by the Board of Directors
in their meeting held on March 22, 2022,
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look forward to their continued support and encouragement.
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By Order of the Board of Directors
ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

SANDEEP oysmbeer  TAKASHI o sone

GAMBHIR YAMASAKI
GAM B H I R Date: 2022.07.29 YAMASA Date: 2022.07.29
15:31:07 +05'30" Kl 15:59:13 +05'30"
Sandeep Gambhir Takashi Yamasaki
Managing Director and CEO  Director
DIN: 00083116 DIN: 09238975

Place: Mumbai
Date : July 29, 2022
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Annexure-A
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Statement containing salient features of the Financial Statement of subsidiaries / associate
companies / joint ventures

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014) — AOC -1

M

Part “A” — Subsidiaries

Name of the Subsidiary : ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Sr. Particulars Details
No.
M Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if Not Applicable
different from the Holding Company’s reporting
period
(2) Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last Not Applicable
date of the relevant Financial Year in the case of
foreign subsidiaries
3) Share capital (Rs.in Lakhs) 10,094
(4) Reserves & Surplus (Rs.in Lakhs) 53,134
(5) Total Assets (Rs.in Lakhs) 2,38,209
(6) Total Liabilities (Rs.in Lakhs) 2,38,209
(7) Investments -
(8) Turnover (Rs.in Lakhs) 25,732
(9 Profit before Taxation (Rs.in Lakhs) 1,012
(10) Provision for taxation (Rs.in Lakhs) (374)
an Profit after Taxation (Rs.in Lakhs) 1,386
(12) Proposed dividend (Rs.in Lakhs) -
13) Percentage of Shareholding 100%
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2 Name of the Subsidiary : ORIX Housing Finance Corporation India Limited
Sr. Particulars Details
No.
(1) | Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if Not Applicable
different from the Holding Company’s reporting
period
(2) | Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the Not Applicable
last date of the relevant Financial Year in the case
of foreign subsidiaries
(3) | Share capital (Rs.in Lakhs) 2,000
4) | Reserves & Surplus (Rs.in Lakhs) 287
(5) | Total Assets (Rs.in Lakhs) 2,348
(6) | Total Liabilities (Rs.in Lakhs) 61
(7) | Investments -
(8) | Turnover (Rs.in Lakhs) 89
(9) | Profit before Taxation (Rs.in Lakhs) 85
(10) | Provision for taxation (Rs.in Lakhs) 22
(11) | Profit after Taxation (Rs.in Lakhs) 63
(12) | Proposed dividend (Rs.in Lakhs) -
(13) | Percentage of Shareholding 100%
Notes :
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to be commence operations : ORIX Housing Finance

Corporation India Limited (“OHFC”). However, is in process of Merger with ORIX Auto

Infrastructure Services Limited, its holding Company.
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2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: None

Part “B” — Associates and Joint Ventures - None

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

SANDEEP Digitally signed Digitally signed by
by SANDEEP TAKASH' TAKASHI
GAMBHIR YAMASAKI
GAMBHIR pate: 2022.07.29 YAMASAKI pate: 2022.07.29
15:32:32 +05'30' 15:59:49 +05'30'
Sandeep Gambhir Takashi Yamasaki
Managing Director and CEO Director
DIN: 00083116 DIN: 09238975
VIVEK ~— ooalystaned o JAY ATt
VIVEE( WADHERA NIRANJAN GANDHI
WADHERA Pate: 2022.07.29 Date: 2022.07.29
15:37:24 +05'30 GANDHI 153819 +0530
Vivek Wadhera Jay Gandhi
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 29, 2022
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Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022
{Pursuant to provision of section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companics
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,2014}

To.

The Members

ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited
Registered Office

Plot No. 94, Marol Co-operative Industrial Estate
Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri East,

Mumbai- 400059

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited, having CIN
U63032MH1995PLCO860G14 (hercinafter called ‘the Company’) for the audit period covering the
financial year ended on March 31, 2022 (“the audit period’/ “review period”/ “period under review™).

We conducted the Secretarial Audit in a manner that provided us with a reasonable basis for evaluating
the company 's corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

We are issuing this report based on:

(i) our verification of the books, papers, minute books, soft copies of various records, scanned copics of
minutes and Siatutory Registers, forms and retums filed and compliance related actions taken by the
Company during the audit period as well as before the date of issue of this report;

(i) Compliance Certificates confirming compliance with all laws applicable to the Company provided
by the Key Managerial Personnel/Senior Managerial Personnel of the Company and taken on record by
Audit Committee/Board of Directors: and

(iit) Representations made, documents, and information provided by the Company, its officers, agents,
and authorized representatives during our conduct of the Secretarial Aundit.

We hereby report that in cur opinion, during the audit period, the Company has:

(i) Complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder, and

(i) Board-processes and compliance mechanism is in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinaficr.

LiPage

A/102, 1st Floor, Ramkrupa CHS, Above Indusind Bank, SVP Road, Borivali {(West), Mumbai - 400 092.
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1. Compliance with specific statutory provisions
We further report that:

1.1 We have examined the books, papers, minute books and other records maintained by the Company
and the forms, returns, reporis

_ disclosures and information filed or disseminated during the audit period accordmg to the applicable
provisions/clauses of:

i.  The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the Rules made thereunder;

ii.  The Seccuritics Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the Rules made thereunder;

iii.  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thercunder;

iv.  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thercunder 1o the
extent of Foreign Dircet Investment and External Commercial Borrowings:

v.  The Sccurities and Exchange Board of Tndia (Registrars to an Issuc and Sharc Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 (to the extent applicable);

vi.  Secretarial Standards (1 and 2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India
(Secretarial Standards) which have mandatory application under the law and are respectively in
relation to the conduct of meetings of the Board and its Committees and the General meetings of
the members of the Company

1.2 During the period under review, and also considering the compliance related action taken by the
Company after 31* March, 2022 but before the date of issuc of this report, the Company has, to the best
of our knowledge and belief and based on the records, information, explanations and representations
furnished to us:

(i) Complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations. Guidelines and Standards
as mentioned above

(ii) Complied with the applicable provisions/clauses of:
(a) The Act and rules mentioned under paragraph 1.1 (i); and

(b) The Secretarial Standard on meetings of the Board of Directors (S8-1) and
Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) mentioncd under paragraph 1.1
(vi) above o the extent applicable to meetings of Board of Directors and
Committees thercof, the 26th Annual General Meeting of the members held on
28th September, 2021 and the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on April 30,
2021 cxcept in respect of few meetings of Board of Directors and its Committees
thereof, for which: -

i, Draft Minutes were circulated to all the Directors bevoud the prescribed time
limit of 135 days from the date of conclusion of the mecting.
ii. Minutes are entered in the Minutes book beyond the prescribed time liniit of 30
days from the date of conclusion of the meeting.
iii. Signed Minutes have been circulated to all the Directors beyond the prescribed
time limit of 15 days from the date of signing the minutes,
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(¢} The Compliance with the provisions under the Act and the relevant Rules
thercunder |paragraph 1.1(1)] and SS-1 [paragraph 1.1(vi)} with regard to the Board
mectings and Committec meetings held through vidco conferencing duoring the
review period were verified based on the minutes of the such meetings as provided
by the Company.

(d)  During the period under review, the Company has resolved and closed 02 (two)
complaints wnder its Whistle Blower (WB) mechanism which were received in
May, 2020 and November, 2020 and 01 (onc) complaint which was received under
the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013 in February 2021; further no new complaints werc received
under WB Mechanism and no other case of Sexual Harassment was reported by the
Company during the review period.

1.3 We are informed that, during the year, the Company was not required to imitiatc any compliance
related action in respect of the following laws/rules/regulations, and was consequently not required to
maintam any books, papers, minute books or othicr records or file any form/retarns thereunder:

1.

ii.

Tl

iv.

VI

vii.

viil,

X,

3lvage

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issuc of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018:

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements)
Regulations, 2015;

The Secaritics and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

The Sccurities and Exchange Board of India (Sharc Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity)
Regulations, 2021;

The Securities and Exchange Board of Tndia (Issuc and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021;
The Sccurities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018; and

Poreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made hercunder to the
extent of Overseas Direct Investments.
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2. Board processes:
We further report that —
2.1 The Board of Directors of the Company as on 31% March, 2022 comprised of’

(a) One Chairman,

(b) One Managing Director and CEO,

(¢) One Whole Time Director.

{d) Four Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors (Including One Woman Dircctor), and
(¢) Two Independent Directors.

2.2 The processes relating to the following changes in the composition of the Board of Directors during
the year under review and until the datc of this report were carried out in compliance with thic provisions
of the Act:

(i) Re-appointment of Mr. Sandeep Gambhir (DIN: 00083116) as the Managing Dircctor for the period
commencing from April 1, 2021 and ending on March 31, 2024, at the 28" Extra-Ordinary General
Meeting of the Company, held on 30™ April, 2021,

(ii) Appointment of Mr. Takashi Nakavama (DIN: 08768983) as a Director of the Company, at the 28%
Extra-Ordinary General Mceting of the Company, held on 30" April, 2021.

(iii) Appointment of Mr. Takehiro Onishi (DIN: 09019630) as a Director of the Company, at the 284
Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Company, held on 30" April, 2021.

{(iv) Appointment of Mr. Shin Hamada (DIN: 09100127) as a Dircctor of the Company, at the 28" Extra-
Ordinary General Meeting of the Company, held on 30% April, 2021

(v) Resignation of Mr. Takashi Nakayama (DIN: 08768983) as a Director of the Company w.c.f July 29,
2021. '

(vi) Appointment of Mr. Takashi Yamasaki (DIN: 09238975) as an Additional Director of the Company,
at the meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company held on 29" luly, 2021 and the subsequent
regularization and approval of his appointment at the 26™ Annual General Meeting of the Company, held
on 28% September, 2021

(vii) Re-appointment of Mr. Yoshiaki Matsuoka (DIN: 08141800) as a Director of the Company, liable to
retire by rotation, at the 26® Annual General Meeting of the Company, held on 28" September, 2021.

(viii) Appointment of Mr. Ryohei Suzuki (DIN: 08218888) as Whole-Time Director of the Corapany for
the period commencing from September 03, 2021 and ending on July 29, 2023, at the 26" Annual
General Mecting of the Company, held on 28% September, 2021, is subject to the approval of the Central
Government in accordance with the requirements of Section 196 of the Act read with Part I of Schedule V
of the Act. The Central Government’s approval is still awaited and the Company has followed up for the
approval.
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(ix) Resignation of Mr. Ryohei Suzuki (DIN: 08218888) as Whole-Time Director of the Company w.ef.
May 05, 2022. The Company has ensured the necessary filings in this regard and has also informed the
Central Govt. about the above resignation.

(x) Appointment of Mr. Takashi Yamasaki (DIN: 09238975) as Whole-Time Director of the
Company for the period commencing from Aprl 25, 2022 until April 18, 2025, at the 29th Extra-
Ordinary General Meeting of the Company, held on 220 July, 2022 is subject to the approval of
the Ceniral Government in accordance with the requirements of Section 196 of the Act read with
Part I of Schedule V of the Act.

2.3 Adequate notices of the meetings of the Board and its Commitices were sent to all the directors to
enable them to plan their schedule for the meetings of the Board and its Committecs, at least scven days
in advance except for few meetings which were convened at a shorter notice with the consent of the
Board to transact urgent business, at which at least one independent director was present as required
under Section 173(3) of the Act and S5-1.

2.4 Agenda and detailed notcs on agenda were sent (0 the directors at least seven days before the meetings
of the Board and its Committees, other than in respect of few meetings which were convened ata shorter
notice to transact urgent business, and necessary compliance as required under Section 173(3) of the Act
and SS-1 was in place.

2.5 Agenda and detailed notes on agenda for the following items were cither circulated separately less
than seven days before or at the Board mectings and consent of the Board for so circulating them was
duly obtained as requircd under SS-1:
(i) Supplementary agenda notes and annexures in respect of unpublished price sensitive information
such as audited financial statement/ results, unaudited financial results and connected papers, and
(i) Additional subjects/ information/ presentations and supplementary notes.

2.6 A system exists for Directors to seck and obtain further information and clarifications on the agenda
items before the meetings and for their meaningful participation at the meetings.

2.7 We note from the minutes verified that, at the Board meetings held during the year:
(i) Decisions were made by the Board unanimously; and
(i) No dissenting views were expressed by any Board Member on any of the subject matters
discussed, that were required to be captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

3. Compliance mechanism:

There are reasonably adcquate systems and processes in the Company, commensurate with its  size and
operations, to monitor and ensurc compliance with applicable Jaws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

4. Specific events/ actions:

4.1 During the vear, the following specific events/ actions having a major bearing on the Company’s
affairs took place, in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations and standards:

5i¥Fase




& Associates

T. +91 222890 0426
+9122 28300176
W: www.bnp-associates.com

1. The shareholders of the Company, at their 28" Extra-Ordinary General Meeting, held on April
30, 2021, have approved, by way of a Special Resolution the alteration in Articles of Association
of the Company and have adopted a new set of Ariicles of Association.

2. The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 22°¢ March, 2022, approved the Scheme of Merger
of ORIX Housing Finance Corporation India Limited (“Transferor Company/OHFC”) with the
Company, ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited (“ Transferce Company/OAIS™), having an
appointed date for the said Scheme of Amalgamation as April 01, 2022. Further the Company has
received the approval from Ministry of Corporate Affairs on the said Scheme of Merger through
approval mail dated 04" May, 2022 and the Company has accordingly sought the approval from
other Regulatory anthorities.

Kavita Digitally signed
by Kavita Dipesh

Dipesh  shah
Date: 2022.07.29
Sha h, 15:20:59 +05'30'

Kavita D Shah

Associate Partner

"~ ACS 50804/COP No. 20796
UDIN: A050804D006695791
For BNP & Associate
Company Secretaries

Date: 29" July, 2022 [Firm Regn. No. P2014MH037400]
Place: Mumbai PR No.:- 637/2019

Note: This repori is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an
infegral part of this report
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Annexurc A
To,
The Members
ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited
Registered Office

Plot No. 94, Maro} Co-operative Industrial Estate
Andheri Kurla Road. Andheri East,
Mumbai- 400059

Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. The compliance of provisions of all laws, rules, regulations, standards applicable to ORIX Auto
Infrastructure Services Limited (the ‘Company’) is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our cxamination was limited to the verification of records and procedures on test
check basis for the purpose of issue of the Secretarial Audit Report.

2. Maintenance of sccretarial and ofher records of applicable laws is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Qur responsibility is fo issue Secretarial Audit Report, based on

the audit of the relevant records maintained and furnished to us by the Company, along with
explanations where so required.

(98]

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain rcasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the sccretarial and other legal records, legal
compliance mechanism and corporate conduct. The verification was done on test check basis to
ensure that correct facts as reflected in sceretarial and other records were produced to us. We
belicve that the processes and practices we followed, provides a reasonable basis for our opinion
for the purposc of issue of the Secretarial Audit Report.

4. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

o2

Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of
laws. rules and regulations and major events during the audit period.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as {o the future viability of the Company nor
of the efficacy or effcctiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

. Dightally signed by
Kavita — Dipcsh Shah

Dipesh Shah 252070k

Kavita D Shah

Associate Partner

ACS 50804/COP No. 20796
UDIN: A050804D000695791
For BNP & Associate
Company Secretarics

Date: 29" July, 2022 [Firm Regn. No. P2014MH037400]
Place: Mumbai PR Neo.:- 637/2019




ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

Regd. Office : Plot No. 84, Marol Co-operative Industrial Estate Andheri-Kurla Road, Andheri {E), Mumbai - 400 069
Tel: +91 27 6707 0100 « Fax: +91 22 2852 8549 « Email: info@orixindia.com « www,otixindia.com = CIN:USI032MH1996PLL0B6014

Annexure-C

Disclosures in terms of Section 197(12) read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

Name of the DesignationRemuneration [Nature of Dualification| Date of | Age Last The % of | Relative
Employee Received Employm and Commenc Employment Equity of any
and (in Rs.) ent Experience | ement of held before Shares Director
Designation Employm joining the held by or
ent Company the Manager
employee
Managing 2.43,97.312 [Full Time | B.Com. CA,J 8-Jan-13 | 49 Barclays *1 share| Nil
Mr. Director Employme | Cost years| Investment jointly with
Sandcep and Chief it Accountant & Loans | ORIX
Gambhir Executive 24 Years of (India) Corporation
Officer experience Limited
Chief 1.87,94.346 [Full Time | B.Com. CA.| 9-Apr-13 | 45 Barclays *1 share] Nil
Mr. Vivek | Financial Employme | 22 Years of years| Bank plc jointly  with
Wadhera Officer nt experience ORIX
Corporation
Executive 1.32,58,150 Full Time | B.Com. 30-Sep-09 | 54 Carzonrent *1 share| Nil
Mr. Pankaj Vice Employme | PGDBA, years| (India) Pvt. | jointly with
Jain President lits 30 Years of] Ltd. ORIX
experience Corporation
Mr. PN |Executive 1,02,22,547 |Full Time | B.COM, PG, 18-Dec- 57 General - Nil
Subramani Vice Employme | Diploma in 2006 years| Motors India
an President nt Marketing, Pvt Ltd.
Master  In
Marketing
33 Years of
cxpericnee
Mr. Executive 1.53,55.720 {Full Time | B.E, 03-Feb-20 | 53 Rattan India - Nil
Harvinder Vice Employme | Strategic years| Group
Gandhi President nt Managemen
t Course, 28
Years of
experience

*ORIX Corporation is the first sharcholder
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Annexure-D

Related Party Transaction Disclosure as per Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013

Form

No. AOC-2

(Pursuant 1o clause (h) of sub - section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the
company with related parties referred to in sub - section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms-length transactions under third provise

thereto
(H
(2)

Details of contracts or arrangements ot transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL.

Details of material coniracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

(a)

Name(s) of the related party and
nature of relationship

(i) ORIX Corporation, Japan -Holding
Company

(ii) ORIX Leasing & Financial Services
India Limited —Subsidiary Company

(iii) ORIX Housing Finance Corporation
India Limited — Subsidiary Company.

(iv) Infrastructure Leasing and Financial
Services Ltd - Fellow Subsidiary.

(b)

Nature of
contracts/arrangements/transacti
ons

Normal business transactions (Mentioned in
the notes forming part of the financial
statements at Note no. 40).

(c) | Duration of the Usually annual, however, depends on the nature
contracts/arrangements/ of transaction.
transactions

(d) | Salient terms of the contracts or [Maintained at arm’s length similar to third
arrangements or transactions parly contracts, Value of such transactions
including the value, if any during the financial year is mentioned in the

notes forming part of the financial statements.
(e) | Justification for entering into Competitive pricing and value of

such contracts or arrangements

services

or transactions rendered.
() | Date(s) of approval by the N.A.
Board,
(g) | Amount paid as advances, if any | N.A.

Note: No advance is payable in respect of any of the above transactions.
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Annpexure-E

Details of Nomination and Remuneration Policy as per Section 178 of the Act

Policy relating to Appointment and Removal of Director, Key Managerial Personnel
(“KMP”). Senior Managerial Personnel (“SMP”) and Senior Accounting Officer (“SAQO”™)

The Committee will strive to ensure the continuance of a dynamic and forward-thinking
Board and recommend to the Board qualified candidates for directorship.

4} Appointment/Nomination criteria and qualification:

(1) Director and KMP:

(a) Criteria: The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity,
expertise and experience of the person for appointment as Director and
KMP and recommend to the Board for his / her appointment.
Appointment of Director and KMP (MD and CEO; and CFO) has to be
pre-approved by ORIX Corporation, before approaching the Committee

(b)  Qualification: A person should possess adequate qualification for the
position he / she is considered for appointment. The Committee has the
discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise and experience
possessed by a person are sufficient / satisfactory for the concerned
position.

(2) Senior Management Personnel:

The Managing Director and CEO in consultation with Human Resource
Department shall identify and appoint SMP (other than KMP) based on his/her
qualification, expertise and experience for the concerned position or level.

(3) Senior Accounting Officer:

The Committee to identify the persons who is qualified to become SAO and
approve his appointment. Appointment of SAO has to be pre-approved by
ORIX Corporation, before approaching the Committee.

dn Term/Tenure:

(a) Managing Director/Whole-time Director:

(a)  The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its, Managing
Director or Whole-time Director for a term not exceeding five years at a
time. No re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year before the
expiry of term.



i
=2 ORIX

ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

Regd. Office : Plot No. 94, liarol Co-operative industrial Estate, Andheri-Kurla Road, Andbiedi {E}, Mumbai - 400 053
Tel: +91 22 6707 0160 « Fax: +91 22 2852 8545 » Emall: info@orixindia.com » www,orixindiacom « CIN;UG3032MH1895PLL0EEST4

(b) The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any
person as Whole-time Director/Managing Director who has attained the
age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the person holding this
position may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with the
approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution under the Act
based on the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such motion
indicating the justification for extension of appointment beyond seventy
years.

Provided further that where no such special resolution is passed but votes
cast in favour of the motion exceed the votes, if any, cast against the
motion and the Central Government is satisfied, on an application made
by the Board, that such appointment is most beneficial to the company,
the appointment of the person who has attained the age of seventy years
may be made.

(b) Independent Director:

(a)  Appointment:

Appointment of Independent Director shall have to be
recommended by the Committee to the Board of Directors for
seeking its approval, However, prior approval of ORIX
Corporation shall be necessary before approaching Committee.

() Term:

()  An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to
five consecutive years on the Board of the Company and will
be eligible for re-appointment as per the criteria laid down by
the Act and Regulations as amended from time to time.

(i)  No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two
consecutive terms of 5 years, but such Independent Director
shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years
of ceasing to become an Independent Director.

(c) Compliance with the criteria of Independence as prescribed under
Section 149 of the Act and other applicable laws, if any including:

(i) Commitment to abide by the Code for Independent
Director(s) as prescribed under the Act.

(ii) Person(s) proposed to be appointed as Independent
Director(s) shall provide a declaration affirming compliance
with the criteria of independence as set forth in the Act, Rules
made thereunder and other application laws, if any.
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(iti)  Existing Independent Directors on the Board of the Company
shall provide signed declaration with respect to compliance
with the criteria of Independence as set forth in the Act and
other application laws, if any, on annual basis, confirming no
impairment to the status of independence.

(iv) The Committee shall scrutinize the declarations
affirming compliance with the criteria ofindependence,
as mentioned herein above, received from proposed / existing
Independent Director(s).

d1m Performance Evaluation of the Board of the Company, Committees of the
Board and Directors:

(1)  The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of the Board of the
Company, Committees of Board and individual Directors of the Company at
regular interval (yearly).

(2) Performance Evaluation of Independent Directors shall be done by the entire
Board of Directors as per the applicable provisions of the Act.

Note: In the above evaluation, the directors who are subject to evaluation shall
not participate.

aIv) Retirement:

The Director, KMP, SMP and SAO shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the
Act or under the Regulations and the prevailing HR policy of the Company, as the
case may be. The Board will have the discretion to retain the Director and KMP, in
the same position / remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age,
for the benefit of the Company, subject to compliance of Regulations, if any, and
prevailing HR Policy of the Company, as the case may be. Further, the Managing
Director and CEO will have the discretion to retain the SMP in the same
position/remuneration after attaining the retirement age.

) Removal:
Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Act or Regulations or breach
of Company’s prevailing HR policy of the Company or violations of Code of
Conduct, the Director, KMP, SMP and SAO may be removed as per the procedure

stated below:

(H Director including External Director:

The Committee to recommend to the Board of Directors for removal of
Director. However, prior approval of ORIX Corporation, shall have to be
obtained before approaching the Committee.
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(2)  KMP:

The Committee to recommend to the Board of Directors for removal of
KMP. However, for removal of KMP who MD and CEO are; and CFO, prior
approval of ORIX Corporation shall have to be obtained before approaching
the Committee.

3) SMpP
Managing Director of the Company shall decide removal of SMP, other than
KMP of the Company.

(4) SAO

The Committee to approve the removal of SAO, however prior approval of
ORIX Corporation shall be necessary.

Policy relating to the Remuneration for the Whole-time Director, KMP, SMP, SAO and
other employees

) Remuneration_and payment of incentives to Managing Director/Whole Time
Director:

(1) Fixed pay:

The Managing Director/Whole-time Director shall be eligible for a monthly
remuneration as may be approved by the Board on the recommendation of the
Committee. The breakup of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites including,
employer’s contribution to provident fund, pension scheme, medical expenses,
club fees etc. shall be decided and approved by the Board on the
recommendation of the Committee and approved by the sharcholders and
Central Government, wherever required.

(2) Minimum Remuneration:

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are
inadequate, the Company shall pay remuneration to its Whole-time Director /
Managing Director in accordance with the provisions of the Act, Schedule V
of the Act and with the approval of the Central Government, if and to the extent
required.

(3) Incentives:

Incentive of MD shall be determined by ORIX Corporation as per the contract
executed by the Company with MD and shall be approved by the Committee.
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3)

(4)  Other Provisions:

(a)  The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to the Whole-time
Director, will be determined by the Committee and recommended to the
Board for approval. The remuneration / compensation / commission etc.
shall be subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company and
also subject to the approval of Central Government, wherever required
as per the law.

(b)  The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to the Managing
Director, shall be as per the contract executed by the Managing Director
with the Company. The terms and conditions of the appointment to be
incorporated in the contract shall have to be reviewed by the Committee
and recommend to the Board for seeking approval of shareholders which
shall be subject to the approval of the Central Government, wherever
required as per the law.

(¢)  The remuneration and commission to be paid to the Whole-time Director
including Managing Director and CEO shall be in accordance with the
percentage / slabs / conditions as per the provisions of the Act,
Regulations as amended from time to time, or as approved by the
shareholders of the Company as deemed appropriate by the Committee.

(d) Increments to the existing remuneration / compensation structure of
Whole-time Director, Managing Director and CEO shall be approved by

the Committee or the Board, as the case may be.

Insurance Premium

Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Whole-time Director,
Chief Executive Officer, Managing Director, SMPs or KMPs for indemnifying them
against any liability, the premium paid on such insurance shall not be treated as part
of the remuneration payable to any such personnel.

The Company shall take Director and Officer Liability Insurance Policy on an annual
basis.

Remuneration to Non- Executive / Independent Director:

(i)  Sitting Fees:

The Non- Executive / Independent Director may receive remuneration by way
of fees for attending meetings of Board or Committee thereof as fixed by the
Board of Directors from time to time and in line with the applicable provisions
of the Act.

(i) Commission:
Commission may be paid within the monetary limit approved by the Board of

Directors and shareholders, subject to the limit / slabs and conditions
mentioned in the Regulations and as per the Act, as amended from time to time.
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4) Performance Evaluation and Remuneration of KMP and SMP:

(1) The performance evaluation of KMP (other than Managing
Director/Whole Time Director) and SMP shall be done as per the prevailing
Human Resource Policy and based on the criteria approved by the Committee
from time to time, in consultation with the Managing Director and CEO of the
Company.

(2)  The remuneration determined for the KMP and SMP shall be in line with the
Company’s philosophy to provide fair compensation to key—executive officers
based on their performance and contribution to the Company and to provide
incentives that attract and retain key executives, instil a long-term commitment
to the Company, and develop a pride and sense of Company ownership, all in
a manner consistent with shareholder interests.

%) Performance Evaluation and Remuneration of SAO:

The Managing Director shall carry out the performance evaluation of Senior
Accounting Officer (SAO) which includes promotion and also approve payment of
remuneration and incentives with the prior approval of ORIX Corporation.

(6) Remuneration of other employees (other than KMP and SMP):

The Company considers it essential to incentivize the workforce to ensure adequate
and reasonable compensation to the staff. The Human Resources Department shall
ensure that the level of remuneration motivates and rewards high performers who
perform according to set expectations in their respective domain.

The various remuneration components, basic salary, allowances and perquisites may
be combined to ensure an appropriate and balanced remuneration package.

The annual increments in the remuneration paid to employees shall be determined
based on the annual appraisal carried out by Head of various Department basis of
the role and position of the individual employee, achievement of performance in line
with goals and targets set, professional experience, responsibility, job complexity
and local market conditions in competitive environment as well as prevailing HR
Policy. The Managing Director of the Company shall approve the annual
increment/incentives to be paid to such employees.
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Corporate Governance disclosures as per Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013

(A) Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance:

The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance is aimed at assisting the
management of the Company in the efficient conduct of its business and meeting its
obligations to stakeholders and is guided by a strong emphasis on transparency,
accountability and integrity.

(B) Board of Directors:

During the year, the Board met at regular intervals to discuss and decide on various
business and policy matters of the Company. During the F.Y:- 2021-2022, the
meetings of the Board of Directors were held on July 29, 2021, September 03, 2021,
November 25, 2021 and March 22, 2022. At least one meeting was held in every
quarter and the time gap between any two meetings was less than 120 days.

The present strength of Board of Directors is Nine (9) Directors. The Board
comprises of Executive and Non-Executive Directors including two (2) Independent
Directors. One of the Non-Executive Director is a woman. The Non-Executive
Directors bring independent judgment in the Board’s deliberations and decisions.
None of the Directors of your Company are related to each other.

The Directors of the Company have wide experience in the field of finance, risk
management, banking and human resources.

The details of attendance of the Board of Directors as at March 31, 2022 are as under:

Sr. Name of Director No. of Last
No. Board AGM
Meetings | Attended
Attended
(1)| Mr. Yoshiaki Matsuoka, Director and Chairman 4 Yes
(2)| Mr. Sandeep Gambhir, Managing Director and 4 Yes
CEO
(3)| Mr. Ryohei Suzuki, Director 4 Yes
(4)| Mr. Abhay Kakkar, Independent Director 4 Yes
(5)| Mr. Nagesh Dubey, Independent Director 4 Yes
(6)| Ms. Meeta Sanghvi, Director 4 Yes
(7)| Mr. Takehiro Onishi, Director 4 Yes
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(8){ Mr. Shin Hamada, Director 4 Yes

(9)| Mr. Takashi Yamasaki, Director 4 Yes

(10) | Mr. Takashi Nakayama, Director Not Not
Applicable |Applicable

(C) Comumittees of the Board of Directors:

(H Composition:

Sr. Name of the Committee Composition of the Committee
No.
() Audit Committee Mr. Takehiro Onishi - Chairman

Mr. Nagesh Dubey
Mr. Abhay Kakkar

2) Nomination and Remuneration Mr. Takehiro Onishi
Committee (NRC)

Mr. Abhay Kakkar
Mr. Nagesh Dubey
#Mr. Takashi Yamasaki

3) Treasury and Asset Liability *Mr. Takashi Yamasaki -
Management Committee Chairman

Mr. Sandeep Gambhir
Mr, Takehiro Onishi

(4) FExecutive Committee Mr. Takehiro Onishi
Mr. Sandeep Gambhir
“Mr. Takashi Yamasaki

5) Risk Management Committee *Mr. Takashi Yamasaki-
Chairman

Mr. Sandeep Gambhir
Mr. Takehiro Onishi

(6) Corporate Social Responsibility “Mr. Takashi Yamasaki—
(CSR) Committee Chairman

Mr. Sandeep Gambhir
Mr. Abhay Kakkar

* Mr. Takashi Yamasaki was appointed in place of Mr. Ryohei Suzuki as
Member/Chairman of the above Committees vide resolution passed by Board
of Directors in their meeting held on May 02, 2022
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() Powers of the Committees:

(1) Audit Committee: The key responsibilities of the Committee are:

(a) Financial Reporting:

@

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

To oversee the financial reporting process, accounting
controls and disclosure of financial information to
ensure that financial information report is sufficient and
credible;

To understand how management develops interim
financial information and the nature and extent of
internal and external auditor involvement in the process;

To review or set up Accounting Policy Related Party
Transaction (RPT) Policy of the Company on a periodic
basis and recommend to Board for approval (subject to
prior approval of ORIX Corp).

Approve, in terms of the RPT Policy, any Related Party
Transactions i.e. transactions of the Company of
material nature with Related Parties as defined under
section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 that may have
potential conflict with the interests of Company at large
including modification in such transactions and seek
approval of the Board on these transactions;

To review audited / unaudited / limited review of the
annual and/or semi-annual financial statements before

submission to the Board focusing primarily on:

> the application of significant accounting policies
and any changes to them;

»  the methods used to account for significant or
unusual transactions;

»  Compliance with accounting standards;

> Significant adjustments arising out of audit;

> Qualifications in draft audit report;

> Areas involving significant judgement, estimation
or uncertainty and the provisions in the financial

statements;

» Compliance with legal and regulatory and
financial reporting requirements; and
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>  To review Auditors’ Report on annual / semi-
annual financial statement before submission to
the Board,

(vi)  Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

(vii)  To note valuation of undertakings or assets of the
Company, wherever necessary;

(viii) Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public
offers and related matters;

(b)  Auditor (External Auditor) :

The Committee shall:

(i)  consider and make recommendations to the board, to be
put to shareholders for approval at the Annual General
Meeting, in relation to the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the Company's Statutory Auditor
(External Auditor) (subject to prior approval of ORIX
Corp);

(i)  review and monitor the External Auditor’s independence
and performance and effectiveness of audit process

(i) if an External Auditor resigns, investigate the issues
leading 1o this and decide whether any action is required;

(iv) oversee the relationship with the external auditor. In this
context the Committee shall:

> subject to prior approval of ORIX Corp, approve
their remuneration, including both fees for audit
and non-audit services, and ensure that the level of
feesis appropriate to enable an effective and high-
quality audit to be conducted;

v

approve their terms of engagement, including any
engagement letter issued at the start of each audit.

»  Holding discussions with Statutory Auditors
before the audit commences regarding nature and
scope of audit as well as post audit discussions on
any areas of concern;

(v) satisfy itself that there are no relationships between the
auditor and the company (other than in the ordinary
course of business) which could adversely affect the
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auditor's independence and objectivity;

(vi) evaluate the risks to the quality and effectiveness of the
financial reporting process in the light of the external
auditor's communications with the Committee;

(vii) meet regularly with the external auditor (including once
at the planning stage before the audit and once after the
audit at the reporting stage) and, at leastonce a year,
meet with the external auditor without management
being present, to discuss the auditor's remit and any issues
arising from the audit;

(viii) discuss with the external auditor the factors that could
affect audit quality and review and approve the annual
audit plan, ensuring it is consistent with the scope of the
audit engagement, having regard to the seniority,
expertise and experience of the audit team;

(ix) review the findings of the audit with the external
auditor. This shall include but not be limited to, the
following:

> a discussion of any major issues which arose during
the audit;

»  key accounting and audit judgements;

> the auditor's view of their interactions with senior
management; and

»  levels of errors identified during the audit;

(x) review the management letter and management's
response  to  the auditor's  findings and
recommendations.

(xi) review the effectiveness of the audit process, including
an assessment of the quality of the audit, the handling of
key judgements by the auditor, and the auditor's
response to questions from the Committee.

(xii) Discusses problems and reservations arising from the
interim and/or the final audits (full or limited review)
and any matters the statutory auditor may wish to
discuss so as to ascertain quality and veracity of
Company’s accounts.
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(¢) Internal Control:

(i) keep under review the company's internal financial
controls systems that identify, assess, manage and
monitor financial risks, and other internal control and
risk management systems including information
technology security and control; and

(i)  Understand the scope of internal and external auditors’
review of internal control over financial reporting and
obtain reports from significant findings and
recommendation,  together ~ with ~ management’s
responses.

(iii) review and approve the statements to be included in
the annual report concerning internal control, risk
management

(iv) Review the report of auditor on internal control over
financial reporting and recommend to the Board of
Director for its approval

(d) Internal Audit;
The Committee shall:
(i) Review and approve the Internal Audit Charter annually.

(ii) Ensure that the internal audit activity, purpose, authority,
and responsibility are consistent with the mandatory
guidance of The TIIA’s International Professional
Practices Framework

(i) Recommend to the Board of Directors for the
appointment or termination / removal / dismissal of
the Head of Internal Audit (subject to prior approval of
ORIX Corp);

(iv)  review and approve the role and mandate of internal
audit, monitor and review the effectiveness of its work
subject to the condition that it must comply with ORIX’s
Rules for internal audit ;

) review and approve the annual risk based internal audit
plan and scope to ensure it is aligned to the key risks of
the business, and receive regular reports on work carried
out;

(vi)  ensure internal audit has unrestricted scope, the necessary
resources and access to information as well as to
management, staff to enable it to fulfil its mandate;
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(vii)  ensure there is open communication between different
functions and that the internal audit function evaluates the
effectiveness of these functions as part of its internal audit
plan, and ensure that the internal audit function is
equipped to perform in accordance with appropriate
professional standards for internal auditors;

(viii) meet regularly with the Internal Audit Head without
management being present, to:

» discuss any issues arising from the audit and also
effectiveness of the function; or

» Inquire of the Internal Audit Head whether any
evidence of fraud has been identified during internal
audit engagements and evaluate what additional
actions, if any, has been taken.

(ix)  carryout an annual assessment of the effectiveness of the
internal audit function; and as part of this assessment:

» determine whether it is satisfied that the quality,
experience and expertise of internal audit is
appropriate for the business; and

» review the actions taken by management to
implement the recommendations of internal audit
and to support the effective working of the internal
audit function;

(x) monitor and assess the role and effectiveness of the
internal audit function in the overall context of the
company's risk management system and the work of
compliance, finance and the external auditor; and

(xi)  With regard to, Quality Assurance and Improvement
Program (QA&IP):

» Ensure that Internal Audit activity has QA&IP;

» Review the results of the independent external
quality assurance.

> Review and monitor the implementation of the

internal audit activity’s action plans to address any
recommendations;. and

» that the results of these periodic assessments are
presented to the Audit Committee

(xil)  consider whether an independent, third party review of
Information Technology (IT) Audit are appropriate.
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(e)

()

(xiii) Ensure that the internal audit activity has an external
quality assurance review every five years.

(xiv) Advise the Board of Directors about any
recommendations for the continuous improvement of the
internal audit activity.

Tax Auditors :
The committee shall:

(i) consider and make recommendations to the board, in
relation to the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the company’'s Tax Auditor;

(ii) approve remuneration of Tax Auditor

(iii)  review the findings of the audit with the Tax Auditor.
This shall include but not be limited to, the following:

> discussion of any major issues which arose during
the audit; and

» review Tax Audit Report

Compliance :

() Review and approve Compliance Charter annually and
also approve formulation, abolition or amendment of
rules on compliance related matters or compliance
related policies (subject to prior approval of ORIX
Corp / ORIX Corp’s Global General Counsel’s Office)

(i1) Review the effectiveness of the system for monitoring
compliance with laws and regulations and the results of
findings / investigation of compliance department and
follow-up (including disciplinary action) of any
instances of noncompliance.

(iii)  Review the findings / observation of any inspection /
examinations carried out by regulatory agencies or any
notice received from regulatory authorities concerning
violation of any law.

(iv)  Review the process for communicating the code of
conduct to company personnel, and for monitoring
compliance therewith.

(v) Obtain regular updates from compliance head regarding
compliance matters.

(vi)  Review regular reports from the Compliance Officer and
keep under review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
company’s compliance function

(vii)  Consider whether the controls established to prevent
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fraud and illegal acts are adequate so as to ensure all
major cases of fraud/illegal acts are reported to Audit
Committee

(g) Organizational Governance:

To obtain reasonable assurance with respect to the organization’s
governance process, the Audit Committee shall review and
provide advice on the governance process established and
maintained within the organization and the procedures in place
to ensure that they are operating as intended.

(h) Risk Management:

To obtain reasonable assurance with respect to the organization’s
risk management practices, the Audit Committee shall annually
review the organization’s risk profile

(i)  Whistleblowing and Fraud:

The Committee shall:

€] review the company's procedures for detecting fraud;

(i) review the company's systems and controls for the
prevention of Bribery Anti-Corruption (ABAC) and

receive reports on non-compliance;

(ili)  Review Whistle Blower reports under Whistle Blower
Policy and / or Vigil Mechanism

(iv)  Institute and oversee special investigations as needed.

(j) Litigation Review:

) To review report of Managing Director on litigation
against or by the Company involving debt or claim upto
JPY 100 Mn;

(ii) To review and recommend to the Board of Directors for
actions with regard to litigation against or by the
Company involving debt or claim over JPY 100 Mn
(subject to prior approval of ORIX Corp)

Note:

Progress and Final Report about Important Legal
Dispute must be approved by ORIX Corp. Important legal
disputes refers to the following:
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(iii)  The legal dispute is for JPY 100 Mn and more, regardless
OAIS’s/OLFS’s position as plaintiff or defendant.

(iv)  The legal dispute could have significant impact on
OAIS’s / OLFS’s profile for many years, even if it is for
less than JPY100 Mn i.e. The legal dispute must be
reported to ORIX Corp if it could have a significant
impact on the Company.

(k) Other Responsibilities :

(i) To review and update this Charter annually.

(i1) Perform other activities related to this charter as
requested by the governing body.

(iii)  The audit committee shall report to the Board of
Directors  annually, summarizing the  Audit
Committee’s activities and recommendations. The
report may be delivered during an Audit Committee
meeting attended by the Board or during a regularly
scheduled meeting of the board. The report should
include summary of the work the audit committee
performed to fully discharge its responsibilities during
the preceding year.

(2) Nomination and Remuneration Committee: The key responsibilities of
the Committee are:

(a) Reviewing the current Board composition, its governance
framework and determine future requirements and making
recommendations to the Board for approval.

(b) Examining the qualification, knowledge, skill sets, positive
attributes and experience of each director and their effectivencss
to the Board on a yearly basis.

(¢) Scrutinizing nominations for Independent/Non-
Executive/Executive  Directors with reference to their
qualifications and experience and provide its recommendation to
the Board for appointment/removal/filling of vacancies.

(d) To recommend to the Board of Directors about remuneration of
Directors including Managing Director.

(e) To lay down criteria in relation to appointment and removal of
Directors and KMP.
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()  To identify the persons who are qualified to become Directors
and KMP and recommendation to the Board for their
appointment and/or removal.#

#Directors and Chief Financial Officer (KMP), who signs of
Annual Financial statement requires ORILX Corporation’s prior
approval.

(¢) To identify the persons who are qualified to become Senior
Accounting Officer [who signs of sworn statement over Annual
Financial Information] for his/her appointment and/or removal.*

*To be pre-approved by ORIX Corporation.

(h) To carry out evaluation of the performance of the Board of the
Company, Committees of the Board and individual Directors of
the Company.

(i)  To carry out evaluation of KMP and SMP and approve their
elevation to next level depending on their performance.

(i)  To lay down criteria for payment of incentives to KMP and SMP
and approve payment of incentives to them.

(k)  To note the incentives and commission schemes for employees
other than SMPs and KMPs approved by the Managing Director

()  To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term
sustainability of talented managerial persons and  create
competitive advantage.

(m) Formulate the Nomination and Remuneration Policy and
recommend to the Board of Directors for approval.

(n) Toreview and update Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Charter annually.

(3) Treasury and Asset Liability Management Committee: The key
responsibilities of the Committee are:

(a)  Setting of / preparing funding policy.
(b)  Pricing of products for both deposits and advances.

(¢) Fixing of desired maturity profile and mix of the incremental
assets and liabilities.

(d) Reviewing the results and progress in implementation of the
decisions made in the previous meeting.
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(e) To articulate the current interest rate view.

()  To develop a view on future direction of interest rate movements
and decide on funding mixes between fixed v/s. floating rate
funds, money market vs. capital market funding, domestic vs.
foreign currency funding, etc.

(2) Establishment of relations with bankers / financial institutions /
companies for borrowing transactions (new or renewal).

(h) To approve borrowings from various Banks, Financial
Institutions and Companies upto such amount as the
Shareholders may authorise, from time to time, in the ordinary
course of business. To be pre-approved by ORIX Corp.

(i)  To raise money as and by way of Loan or Debentures (Secured /
Unsecured / Convertible / Non-Convertible) or through Inter
Corporate Deposit or Commercial Papers or through any other
resources as may be necessary either from Domestic or
International Market. To be pre-approved by ORIX Corp.

(i)  To approve purchase and / or sale and assignment of receivables
arising out of lease rentals and / or loan / hire purchase
instalments whether with or without underlying assets. To be
pre-approved by ORIX Corp.

(k) To report on funding transactions and activities (borrowings,
commitment lines, guarantee amounts, derivative transactions,
ALM related items and covenant compliance matters).

() Allotment of securities as defined under Securities Contracts
(Regulation) Act, 1956:

(1) To approve allocation / allotment of shares, debentures
and other securities not exceeding the amount of issue
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company
from time to time;

(i) To approve allotment of securities from time to time;
(i)  To affix or authorize affixation of Common Seal of the
Company on the security certificates of the company;

and

(iv)  To do all such acts, things or deeds as may be necessary
or incidental to the exercise of the above powers.

(m) To review and update Treasury and Asset Liability Management
Committee Charter annually.
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(4) Executive Committee: The key responsibilities of the Committee are:

(a)

(b)

Credit (Approval of Credit facilities to the Lease Customers of

the Company):

(i)  Approval of Credit Proposals of operating businesses of
the Company as per Annexure enclosed in the Executive
Committee Charter.

Setting Residual Value and Maintenance Budget for I.eased
Vehicle:

(i)  Setting up of Residual Value Policy.
(ii)  Setting up / alteration of Residual Value of Vehicles and
Maintenance budget of Vehicles (Per KM Maintenance

Cost) for leased vehicles.

(iii) Delegate powers of the Committee to the Executives of
the Company with regard to:

» Increase in Residual Value as below:

s  Business Heads may be authorised to increase
RV of a vehicle by 5% over existing RV Grid.

e  Managing Director may be authorised to
increase RV of vehicle by 8% over existing
RV Grid.

e Any increase in RV of any vehicle > 8% over
existing RV Grid to be approved by any two
Members of the Committee.

» Decrease in Per KM Maintenance Cost of the
Vehicles, as setup and approved by the Committee
referred in point no (2) above, depending on the
prevailing market conditions and to suit offering of
competitive quotes and to make transaction process
more efficient as below:

¢ Slab 1 —may be approved by Branch Head.

s  Slab 2 - may be approved by Business Head

¢« Slab 3 - may be approved by Managing
Director.

e Slab 4 - may be approved by the Committee.

Note: The Business Head should monitor and report
the transactions approved, based on the above Slabs,
in the next Committee meeting.
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(c)

(d)

Capital Expenditure for Business Operations:

(i)  Acquisition of Cars for RAC and BTS Business operations
(For Single Client/Group) above INR 185 Mn and up to
INR 300 Mn subject to prior approval of ORIX Corp.

(i) Acquisition and Disposal of Fixed Assets (for single
purpose excluding operating assets and Computer
Hardware and Software CAPEX) over JPY 20 Mn and up
to JPY 100 Mn subject to prior approval of ORIX Corp.

General Administration:

(i)  To note waiver of income/reversals approved by Director
or Managing Director.

(iiy  To note non-performing Assets (NPA) occurrence (Client
or Clients group) of receivables as approved by the
Managing Director up to INR 6 Mn.

(iii) To approve non-performing Assets (NPA) occurrence
(Client or Clients group) receivables over INR 6 Mn and
reporting the same to ORIX Corporation post approval.

(iv) Rescheduling of non-performing receivables (Client or
Client’s group):

> Total receivables up to INR 6.0 Mn; and

>  Total receivables over INR 6.0 Mn subject 1o prior
approval of ORIX Corp.

(v) Recommend to the Board for approval of Write off:

(i) Total receivables up to INR 3.1 Mn (Client or Client’s
group);

(i) Total receivables Over INR 3.1 Mn and up to INR 7.8
Mn (Client or Client’s group) subject to prior approval
of ORIX Corp (HQ; and

(i) Total receivables over INR 7.8 Mn (Client or Client’s
group) subject to prior approval of ORIX Corp (ICC).

(vi) To consider and approve opening of New Bank Accounts
(Current Account / Cash Credit Account / Overdraft
Account) and also approve change in various Authorised
Signatories and their respective empowerment for signing
cheques / various instruments for and on behalf of the
Company.
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(vii) To note Principal and Agency Agreement approved by
MD.

(viii) To approve general expenditure (for single purpose) over
INR 10 Mn.

(ix) To consider and approve closure of Bank Accounts.

(x) Lease and/or rental (excluding operating assets and
Computer Hardware and Software OPEX) expenses
(including real estate for Company’s use) where annual
rental is over JPY 10 Mn subject to prior approval of
ORIX Corp.

(xi) Disposal of Fixed Assets (for single purpose excluding
operating assets) over JPY 20 Mn and up to JPY 100 Mn
subject to prior approval of ORIX Corp.

(e) Other functions;
(a)  Perform such other functions as may be necessary or
appropriate for the performance of its duties and as are

delegated to it by the Board.

(b) To review and update Executive Committee Charter
annually.

(5) Risk Management_Committee: The key responsibilities of the
Committee are:

(1) Risk planning;

(2) Risk assessment & monitoring — Economy Review, Industry
Review, Portfolio Review, Rating;

(3) Risk systems (MIS and IT system integration);

(4) Risk reporting — Keeping the Board informed at regular
intervals of credit, market and operational Risk Profile of the
Company;

(5) To decide and delegate powers of Executive Committee of
Board (EXCO) [only Credit related matters amongst the
individual in credit department] with regard to person and
amount;

(6) Tolay down internal rules, policies, processes and regulations
with regard to Credit authorisations and delegate it to the
executives of the Company; and
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To review and update Risk Management Committee Charter
annually.

CSR Committee: The key responsibilities of the Committee are:

To formulate & wupdate a CSR Policy and seek
recommendation of the Board on the CSR activities to be
undertaken by the Company.

To suggest areas of intervention & approve projects for CSR
activities.

Put monitoring mechanisms in place to track the progress of
each project.

To approve CSR expenditure in accordance with the
Companies Act, 2013 including the Rules and Schedules
framed thereunder and the CSR Policy of the Company
referred to in clause (1).

To review and update Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee Charter annually.

Attendance of the Committees of Directors:

Type of No. of| Mr. Mr. M. Mr. Mr. Mr. Mr.

Meetings Meeti] NageshAbhay [Ryohei Sandeep [Takehiro [Yoshiaki Takashi
os held Dubey Kakkar Suzuki Gambhir [Onishi MatsuokaNakayvama

Audit 4 4 4 NA NA 4 NA NA

Commitiee

Nomination 3 3 3 3 - 3 NA NA

and

Remuneratjor

Committee

Treasury and] 4 NA | NA 4 4 2 NA 2

Asset

Liability

Management

Committee

CSR 1 NA 1 1 1 NA NA NA

Commiittee

Risk 2 NA NA 2 2 1 NA 1

Management

Committee

Executive 2 NA NA 2 2 1 NA |

Committee

GIN:UG3032MH1998PLC08E014
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(D) Meeting of Independent Directors:

Section 149(8) of the Act read with Schedule TV of the Act require the Independent
Directors of the Company to hold at least one meeting in a year, without the
attendance of non-independent directors and members of management. The
Independent Directors of the Company met on March 10, 2022, to review the
performance of Non-Independent Directors, Chairperson of the Company, the Board
as a whole and the flow of information between the Board and the management.

Sitting fees was paid to all the Independent Directors of the Company for attending
the meetings of Board of Directors and Committee meetings, wherever they are
members. The Sitting fees have been approved to Rs. 50,000/~ per Board Meeting
and Rs. 20,000/~ per meeting for Committee meetings with effect from July 31, 2018.

(E) Board Performance Evaluation Mechanism:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) had approved a framework
for performance evaluation of the Board of Directors, its Committees and the
individual Board members.

As part of the framework, structured questionnaires were prepared after taking into
consideration the inputs received from the Directors and NRC. These questionnaires
cover various aspects of the Board’s functioning including composition and quality,
culture, roles and responsibilities, processes and functioning, execution and
performance to specific duties, obligations and governance. The questionnaires
consist of evaluation of Board of Directors, Committees of Board of Directors and
the individual Board members by NRC. Further pursuant to Clause VIII of Schedule
IV of the Companies Act, 2013, separate evaluation of Independent Directors by all
the Directors (excluding the director being evaluated) of the Company was also
carried out.

The evaluated questionnaires along with rating received were reviewed in the below
manner:

(a) The questinnaires for evaluation of (i) Board of Directors, (ii) Committees
of Board of Directors and the (iii) individual Board members were reviewed
by the NRC and noted by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on
March 22, 2022 .

(b) The performance of the Independent Directors were reviewed and noted by
the Board of Directors in their meeting held on March 22, 2022.

(F) General Meetings:

Meeting Date and Venue Resolutions passed
Time
26" September | Audio-Video (1) Adoption  of  Audited
Annual 28,2021 at | Conferencing Standalone Financial
General 11:30 a.m. (The deemed Statement and the Audited
Meeting venue of the Consolidated Financial
Meeting was Statement of the Company
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Registered office
of the Company
located in
Mumbai

for the year ended March
31, 2021 together with the
Reports of the Board of
Directors and Auditor’s
thereon;

(2) Reappointment of  Mr.
Yoshiaki Matsuoka (DIN
08141800) who retires by
rotation as a Director;

(3) Appointment of Statutory
Auditor of the Company;

Special Business:

(4) Appointment of M.
Takashi Yamasaki (DIN
09238975) as Director of
the Company; and

(5) Appointment of Mr. Ryohei
Suzuki (DIN: 08218888) as
a Whole-Time Director of

Meeting was
Registered office
of the Company
located in
Mumbai

the Company.
28™ Exta- | April 30, Audio-Video Special Business:
Ordinary 20217 at Conferencing
General 10:00 a.m. (The deemed (1) Appointment  of  Mr.
Meeting venue of the Takashi Nakayama (DIN

08768983) as Director of

the Company;
(2) Appointment of  Mr.
Takehiro  Onishi  (DIN

09019630) as Director of
the Company;

(3) Apppointment of Mr. Shin
Hamada (DIN 09100127)

as  Director of the
Company;

(4) Re-appointment of Mr.
Sandeep Gambhir (DIN:

00083116), Chief Executive

Officer as  Managing
Director of the Company;
and

(5) Approval and adoption of
new set of Articles of
Association of the
Company.

GHN:UB3032MH 1896 PLC086014
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*Remuneration of all the Directors of the Company
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Sr. Particulars of Name of Name of Total Amount
No. Remuneration Managing Director (in Rs.)
Director and
CEO
Mr. Sandeep Mr. Ryohei
Gambhir Suzuki
1 Salary (Fixed 1,55,13,615 87,88,306 2,43,01,921
Component) (Amt in
Rs.)
Bonus (Performance 87,50,000 - 87,50,000
Linked Incentive)
(Amtin Rs.)
Benefits Perquisites as | Perquisites as _
approved by approved by
the the
Shareholders in | Shareholders in
their 28" their 26"
Extra-Ordinary Annual
General General
Meeting held Meeting held
on April 30, on September
2021 28,2021
2 Stock Option - - -
3 Pension - - -
4 Commission (as % - - -
of profit)
5 Others, please (Amt 1,33,697 6,50,543 7,84,240
Total (A) 2,43,97,312 94,38,849 3,38,36,161

*Apart from the Managing Director and Whole-time Director, no other Director
receives remuneration from the Company.
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Annexure-H

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 9 of the
Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014]

(H A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or
programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy
and projects or programs —The CSR Policy has been formulated in accordance with
the provisions of Section 135 of the of the Companies Act, 2013 which outlines its
CSR objectives and the manner in which it will be implemented. Various projects are
within the framework of Schedule VII of the Act. The web link to the CSR policy is at
Microsoft Word - Policy - CSR Policy - QAIS - 21-12-2016 - Final {orixindia.com).

(2) Composition of the CSR Commitiee:

Sr. | Name of | Designation /| Number of | Number of meetings
No. | Director Nature of | meetings of CSR | of CSR Committee
Directorship | Committee held | attended during the
during the year | year
1. *Mr. Ryohei | Chairman of 1 1
Suzuki CSR
Committee
(Director)
2. | Mr. Sandeep | Member 1 1
Gambhir (Managing
Director and
CEQ)
3. | Mr.  Abhay | Member 1 1
Kakkar (Independent
Director)

*Mr. Takashi Yamasaki, Director was appointed as Chairman of CSR committee in place of Mr.
Ryohei Suzuki vide resolution passed by Board of Directors in their meeting held on May 02,
2022.

3) Web-link of Composition of CSR committee, CSR policy are disclosed on the
website of the company - ORIX - OAIS: Reports & Filings (orixindia.com)

@) Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule
(3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014,
if applicable - Not Applicable.

) Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of
the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount
required for set off for the financial year, if any - Not Applicable.
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(6) Average net profit of the company as per Section 135(5): Rs. (2,713,931) (2018-
2019, 2019-2020 and 2020-2021).

@) (8) Two per cent of the average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5) —
Nil

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the
previous financial years 2020-2021- Nil

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year 2021-2022, if any - Nil
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year 2021-20221 (7a+7b-7c) - Nil

t3) (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year 2021-2022

Total Amount Spent for | Total Amount transferred | Amount ransferred to any fund specified
the Financial Year. (in Rs.) | to Unspent CSR Account | under Schedule VII as per second proviso
as per section 135(6) to section 135(5).
Amount | Date of transfer | Name Amount Date of transfer
of the
Fund
Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable
| | |

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

0 @ G) @ ©) © 1 ™ ®) ©) (10) an
St | Name Ttem Local | Location of | Proj |[Amount | Amount Amount Mode of | Mode of
No | of the | from the | area the project ect fallocated | spent in | transferred Impleme Implementati
Project | list  of | (Yes/ dura [for the | the to Unspent | ntation - | on - Through
activities | No). tion. [project current CSR Direct Implementing
in e inRs) financial Account for | (Yes/No) | Agency
Schedul State. | District Year (in | the project | . Name| CSR
e VII to Rs.). as per Registr
the Act. Scction ation
135(6) (in No.
Rs.).
Nil

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial
year 2021-2022: - Not Applicable as Average Net profit of the Company for
preceeding three financial year is Negative.

1) 2) 3) “ 5) (0) ) 3)
SL| Name of the Item Local Location of the Amount | Mode of Mode of
No Project. from the area project spent for |impleme| implementation -
list of (Yes/ the ntation - Through
activities No). project (in | Direct implementing
in Rs.). (Yes/No) agenc
Schedule State. District Name CSR
VII to the Regist
Act. ration
No.

Nil
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I | |

Total -

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overhead — Nil
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable — Not Applicable
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 2021-2022 (8b+8c+8d+8¢) — Nil

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any.

SI. No Particular Amount (in
Rs.)

(i) Two percent of average net protit of the company as 0
per section 135(5)

(i) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 0

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(1)] 0

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or 0
programmes or activities of the previous financial
years, if any

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial 0
years [(ii1)-(1V)]

) (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:
SL.No | Preceding | Amount Amount | Amount transferred to any fund | Amount
Financial | transferred spent in | specified under Schedule VI as | remaining
Year. to Unspent | the per section 135(6), if any. to be spent
CSR reporting in
Account Financial | Namc of | Amount | Date of | succeeding
under Year (in | the Fund | (in Rs). | transfer. | financial
section 135 | Rs.) years. (in
(6) (in Rs.) Rs.)
Not Applicable

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the
preceding financial year(s) :

@ L@ 3) “4) (5) (6) ) (&) ()]
SI. | Project | Name of} Financial Project Total Amount | Cumulative | Status of thg
No. | ID. the Year in which duration. | amount spenton | amount project -
Project. | the project allocated | the projecy spent at the | Completed
was for the in the end of /Ongoing
commenced. project (in| reporting | reporling
Rs.). Financial { Financial
Year (in | Year. (in
Rs). Rs)
Not Applicable
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(10)  In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the
asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year. - Nil

(asset-wise details).

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s) — Not Applicable
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset - Not

Applicable

(¢) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such
capital asset is registered, their address etc.- Not Applicable

(d)  Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete
address and location of the capital asset).- Not Applicable

(11)  Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average
net profit as per section 135(5). — Not Applicable

By Order of the Board of Directors

ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of ORIX AUTO INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services
Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at 31 March, 2022, the Statement of Profit
and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us ,the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March, 2022, its loss
including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements’ section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board of Director’s report, but does not include the standalone
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes
in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilitievs for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
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to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March, 2021, included in these standalone
financial statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion
on those statements on 29 July, 2021.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2.  Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended,;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2022 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March, 2022 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these standalone
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure 2” to this report;
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In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended 31 March, 2022 has been paid /

g p g ¥ p
provided by the Company fo its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

iii.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements — Refer Note 39 to the standalone financial statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as

\'A

disclosed in the note 45 to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the note 45 to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received
by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe

that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

SANJAY

BACHCHAN|  Sezoeeer
per Sanjay Bachchani

Partner
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Annexure 1 referrved to in paragraph 1 of report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Re: ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited (‘the Company’)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of account and records
examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

@

(i)

(ii1)

(a)}{A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation
of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(a)(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

(b) All Property, Plant and Equipment have not been physically verified by the management during the year but there is
a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly exccuted in favour of the fessee) are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment {including Right of use assets) or intangible assets
during the year ended March 31, 2022.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the
Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory including inventory lying with third parties at
reasonable intervals during the year. In our opinion the coverage and the procedure of such verification by the

nianagement is appropriate.

(b) As disclosed in note 22 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks and/or financial institutions during the year on the basis of security
of current assets of the Company. The quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with such banks and financial
institutions arc in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company.

(a) During the year the Company has provided foans. as follows:
Amount in Lakhs

. Loans
Particulars

Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the year

- Subsidiaries -
- Joint Ventures -
- Associates -

- Others (Employee Loans) 16.92

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases
- Subsidiaries

- Joint Ventures
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- Associates
13.50
- Others (Employee Loans)

(b) During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided security and granicd
advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. During the year the terms
and conditions of the grant of loans o employees, subsidiarics and enterprisc having substantial interest are not

prejudicial to the Company's interest.

(c) The Company has granted loans during the year to employees where the schedule of repayment of principal and

payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayment or receipts are regular.
(d) There are no amounts of Joans granted to employees which are overdue for more than ninety days.

(¢) There were no loans granted to employees which was fallen due during the year, that have been renewed or extended
or fresh loans granted to scttle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, cither repayable on demand or without
specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) Loans, investments, guarantees and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are applicable have been complied with by the Company.

v) The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are deemed to be
deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, (o the extent
applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act,

2013, for the products/services of the Company.

(vii) (a) Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise,
value added tax, cess and other statutory dues have generally been regufarly deposited with the appropriate authorities
though there has been a slight delay in a few cases in provident fund, employees' state insurance and professional tax.
According to the information and explanations given (o us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

(b) The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax,

duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues have not been deposited on account of

any dispute, are as follows:

. Nameof

. St re Q:isj'u:xtes is pending
‘ 35,27,676 - AY 2002-03 Deputy Commissioﬁer of Income Tax
Income Tax Income 12.00,961 - AY 2003-04 Deputy Commissioner of Income Tax
Act, 1961 Tax 30,02,883 30,02,883 AY 2006-07 Deputy Commissioner of Income Tax
5,71,87,606 - AY 2017-18 Assistant Commissioner of Income Tax
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(viif)

()

97.59,263 - Qct-05 to Mar 06 Commissioner of Service Tax Mumbai
1,40,06,766 - Apr-06 to Sep-06 Commissioner of Service Tax Mumbai
87,53,493 - Apr-06 to Mar-09 CESTAT
30,066,383 73,08.469 Apr-06 to Mar 11 CESTAT
72,54,621 26,21,340 Apr-11 to Mar 12 CESTAT
93,39,263 84,28,948 Api-12 to Mar 13 CESTAT
Finance Act | Service 82.96,698 10245816 | Ap-13 to Mar 14 | CESTAT
1994 Tax
75,16,850 1,06,54,764 Apr-14 to Mar 15 CESTAT
2,39,97.017 4,69,33,324 Apr-15 to Jun-17 CESTAT
2,84,06,780 10,65,255 Apr-12 to Jun-17 GST Audit Commissioner
10,23,82.438 10,23,82,438 | JAN - 06 to Sept 09 | Joint Commissioner Commercial Tax, Chennai
23,21,427 - Apr-08 to Mar-09 Additional commissioner (Appeal)
2,40.03,974 - Api-12 to Mar-14 Additional/Joint Commissioner of Sales Tax (
Delhi)
2,69,313 328,232 Apr-12 to Mar-13 Deputy Commissioner CT, Rajasthan
85.04,795 17,72,942 FY 2012-13 VAT Tribunal, Maharashtra
5,96,383 5,96,383 Jan-12 to Mar 12 Appellate Deputy Commissioner, Telangana
1,51,23.255 565918 FY 2013-14 VAT Tribunal, Maharashtra
5,66,584 70,823 2013-14 Appellate Deputy Commissioner, Telangana
8243,419 2,89,187 FY 2014-15 VAT Tribunal, Maharashtra
Value Added | VAT —
Tax Act 1,05,31,562 5,62,003 2009-10 West Bengal Commercial Taxes A&R Board
9,66,09,480 - FY 2017-18 Deputy Commissioner of Sales Tax, Mumbati
9,78,748 48,937 Oct-15 to Jun-17 Deputy Commissioner,Bhubaneshwar
2,25,50,640 8,52,309 Apr-15 to Mar-16 Joint commissioner Maharashtra
4.69,74,344 23,95,328 Apr-16 to Mar-17 Joint commissioner, Maharashtra
3749475 32,23,146 | Dec 06-Dec 11 High Court, Andhra Pradesh
1,44,46,141 6,89,580 | Apr17toJun 17
Joint commissioner, Maharashtra
3,42,45,022 - | Apr14toJun 17 Assistant Commuissioner, DVAT
2.86,620 29,161 | 2017-18 Appellate Authority/Tribunal of Central Sales
Tax, Goa
1,01,487 - | CST-2016-17-2017- | DCCT, Bhubaneshwar
18

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of account, in the
tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to

any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any

government authority.
(c) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on short-term basis have

been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.
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(x}

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(1) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures

or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further public offer (including
debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or partially or optionally
convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requircment to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order

is not applicable to the Company.
(a) No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section {43 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by cost
auditor/ secrctarial auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c)We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year while
determining the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures.

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the requirement to
report on clause 3(xii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable

accounting standards.
(a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b)The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period under audit have been

considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors
and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without obtaining a valid
Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(c¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of India.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of

the Order is not applicable to the Company.
The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement to report on Clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 44 to the financial statements, ageing and expected dates of
realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
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(xx)

statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come (o our attention, which causes us (o believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of onc year from the balance sheet date. We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when

they fall due.

() In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be transferred to a fund
specified in Schedule VIT of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with second proviso {o sub section 5 of section
135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 34 to the financial statements.

(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred to a special account
in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act. This matter has been disclosed in note

34 to the financial statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 101049W/12300004

SANJAY

BACHCHANI

per Sanjay Bachchani

Partner

Membership Number: 400419
UDIN: 224004 19ANVAPP9295

Place: Gurugram
Date: 29 July 2022
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ORIX AUTO INFRASTRUCTURE
SERVICES LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of
ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March, 2022 in conjunction with
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAT”).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAIL Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these
standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these standalone
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal contro! based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these standalone
financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Standalone Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Standalone Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March, 2022, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAIL

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004
SANJAY Digitally signed by SANJA
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per Sanjay Bachchani

Partner

Membership Number: 400419
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN ; U63032MH1995PLCO86014

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022

(Alt amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

Notes Asal Asal
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
1 Assets
Non-current assets
(#) Property, plant and equipment 2 71,196 63,274
(b) Other intangibie assets 3 302 412
(¢) Tntangible under development 3 96 -
(d) Right-of-usc assets 4 11358 730
{¢) Financial asscts
i Investments § 42,405 42,405
ii. Other (inancial assets 6 3,763 2,419
() Deferred tax assets (net) 35 8,181 8,125
{g) Other non-current assets 7 10,107 7270
Total non-current assets 1,37.185 1,24,635
Current assets
(a) Inventorics 8 478 246
(b) Financial Assels
i. Trade receivables 9 7,515 6,200
il Cash and cash equivalents 10 901 414
iii. Bank balances ather than (ii) above 1t 334 319
iv. Loans 12 14 3
v. Other financial asscts 13 4,932 3.803
(¢)  Other current assets 14 6,286 8.010
Total enrrent asscts 20,460 20,055
Total assets 1,587,645 1,44,690
I Equity and liabilitics
Equity
(a) Equity sharc capital 15 12,800 12.800
{b)  Other equity 16 39,012 39.747
Taotal equicy 51,812 52,547
Non-current liabilitics
(2) Financial liabilitics
i. Borrowings 17 39,377 28,510
ii. Lease liabilities 18 1,083 744
ii. Other financial liabilities 19 68 46
(b) Net employee defined benefit labilities 20 689 435
(c) Other non-curvent liabilities 21 878 712
‘Total non-current liabilities 42,095 30,447
Current liabilitics
(a) Financial liabilities
i. Borrowings 22 47,455 45,557
il Lease liabilities 23 248 141
iit. Trade payables 24
- total oulstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 816 164
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 7,122 6,707
iv. Othor financiat liabilitics 25 6,597 5.970
(b) Net employee defined benefit liabilities 26 242 232
{c) Other current liabilities 27 1,258 29235
Total current labilities 63,738 61,696
Total equity and labilitics 1.57,645 t,44,690
Sumumary of significant accounting policics 1

The accampanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements
As per our repott of even date attached.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Rugistration No. 101049W/E300004
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Sanjay Bachchani
Partner
Membership No: 400419
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ORINX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited
CIN : U63032MH1993PLC086014

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

Year ended

Year ended

Notes 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
1 Revenue
Revenue from operations 28 50,414 44,988
Other income 29 1,576 1,945
Total income 51,990 46,933
I Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 30 1,458 1,230
Employee benefit expense 7,021 7434
Finance cost 32 5,452 6,156
Depreciation and amortisation expense 33 21,263 22,403
Other expenses 34 17,600 13,887
Total expenses 52,794 51,110
I  Loss before tax (804) 177
IV Tax expenses
Current tax 35 31 -
Adjustments of tax relating 1o carlier years (75) -
Deferred tax (48) (1.040)
Total tax expenses (92) (1,040}
A\ Loss for the year (712) (3,137)
V1 Other comprehensive income
A Other comprehiensive incomenot be reclass to profit or loss in subsequent period
Re-measurements on defined benefit plan 30 196
Income tax effect 7 (49)
Total other comprehensive income (23) 147
VII  Total comprehensive income for the year (735) (2,990)
VIII Earnings per equity share (Face value € 10 per share (31st March 2021 ¥ 10 per 36
share)
Rasic and diluted earning per shave in € (0.57) (2.34)

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our repori of even date attached.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 101049W/E300004

SANJAY MR
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Sanjay Bachchani
Partner
Membership No: 400419
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63032MH 1995PLCOR60 L4

Statement of Changes in Equity (SOCIE) for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

(a) Equity share capital

As at As al
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Number Amount Number Amount
Tquily share of T 10 cach Issucd, subscribed and fully
paid
Balance at the beginning of the reporting year 12,79,96,498 12,800 12,79,96,498 12,300
Changes in Equity share capital due to priov period - - - -
errors
Restated balance 12,79,96,498 12,800 12,79.96,498 12,800
Issue of Share Capital - - - -
Balance at the end of the reporting year 12,800 12,800
(b) Other equity
Reserves and Surpius Other Reserves
Other Total
Securities General Retained ,m
. . Comprehensive
premium Reserve earnings
Income
Balance at 1 Apvil 2020 39,985 1,856 1,569 (673) 42,737
Profit for the year - - (3,137) - (3,137)
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - 147 147
Balance at 1 April 2021 39,985 1,856 (1,568) (526) 39,747
L.oss for the year - - (712) - (712)
Other comprehensive income for the year - - B (23) (23)
Balance at 31 March 2022 39985 1,856 (2,280) (549) 39,012
Summary of signilicant accounting policies 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates 1.I.P
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 101049W/E300004
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ORIX Aute Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63032MH1995P1,CO86014

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in INR Lalkhs, except as stated otherwise)

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

Operating activities
Loss betore tax

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax ¢o net cash flow:
Depreciation of property plant and equipment and right-of-use asset
Amortisation on other intangiblc asscts

Gain on disposal of property plant and equipment

Finance vosts (including fair value change in financial instrument)
Pravisions for graity & lcave cncashment

Gain on termination of lease

Interest on lcasc liability

Provision for expected credit losses

Bad debts written off

Miscellaneous expenses (sundry balances written oft)

Sundry balances written back

Operating profit before working capital changes

Working capital adjustments:

(Increase) / Decrease in inventories

(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivable
(Increase) / Decrease in short teym loan
(Increase) in other financial assets

Decerease in other assets

Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables
Increase in financial liabilities

Tncrease / (Decrease) in other current liabilities
Increase in other non current Habilities

Less : taxes paid (net of refund)

Net cash flows from operating activities - A

Investing activities

Purchiase of property plant and equipment including capital advances, and capital work-in-
progress

Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment

Investment in fixed deposits

Net cash used in by investing activities - B

Financing activities

Proceeds from long term borrowing

Repayment of long term borrowing

Proceeds from short term borrowing

Repayment of short term borrowing

Proceeds from cash credit

Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities

Payment of interest expenses

Finance costs (including fair value change in financial instrument)
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities - C

Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year (Refer Note no. 10)

(804) (4,177
21,129 22271
134 132
(199) (536)
5355 6,071
234 )
(40) (14)
97 85
148 108
11 -
10 31
(116) (130)
25,959 23,781
(233) 125
(1,258) 8,422
(10) 54
(2,412) (1,918)
1,421 2370
1,066 (3,737)
764 2,938
(1,667T) 525
165 64
23,795 32,624
(1,507) (1,207)
22,288 31417
(39,591) (23,153)
9,677 12,350
(12) (244)
(29,926) (11,038)
30,000 12,500
(27,125) (21,447)
74,050 25,654
(64,658) (31,728)
619 -
187y (195)
7 (85)
(5,355) (6,071)
7,247 (21,372)
(391) (993)
1,289 2281
898 1,289
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63032MH1995PL.CO86014

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
3{ March 2021

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Balances with banks

- In current accounts

- Book overdraft

Total cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 10)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

18 27
883 1,387
(3) (125)
R98 1,289

Lease liability

As at 01 April 2020 1,180
Cash flow 279)
Non cash changes 16
As at 31 March 2021 885
As at 01 April 2021 885
Cash flow (283)
Non cash changes (729)
As at 31 March 2022 1,331

Note :

1) Cash and cash cquivalent comprisc of balances with banks in current account and fixed deposit accounts ( Refer Note 10)

2) The bank deposits have been kept as a security for registration with the VAT authoritics of various states,

3) Refer note 47 for Change in liabilities arising from financing activities

Summary of significant accounting policies
A 21

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 101049W/E300004

SANJAY
BACHCHANI

Sanjay Bachchani
Partner
Membership No: 400419

Place: Gurugram
Date : 29 July 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63032MHI1995PLC086014

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

1.1

1.2

€))

Company information and significant accounting policies

Corporate information

ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited ("the Company"/ "OAIS") is a public company
domiciled in India and is incorporate under the Companies Act, 1956 on 2 March 1995 and
obtained certificate of commencement of business in 1995, ORIX Corporation, Japan is the
holding Company. The Company’s registered office is at Plot no.94, Marol Co. op. industrial
estate, Andheri-kurla road, Andheri (E), Mumbai-400 059, Maharashtra, India. The
Company is engaged in the business of providing transport solutions in the form of operating
lease, car rentals, self-drive vehicles, employee transport solutions.

OHFC was incorporated on April 21, 2018 with the objective of carrying out the business of
Tousing Finance Company (I1F°C) in India. It had also made an application to National
Housing Bank for issue of Cettificate of Registration to commence the business of a HFC in
India. However, due to then prevailing unfavourable market scenario with the Non-banking
Finance Companies and Housing Finance Companies, the Board of Directors of OHFC had
approved for the withdrawal of the HFC application and accordingly the application was
withdrawn in the FY 2019-20. The Board of Directors of the OAIS had approved for merger
of the OHFC into OAIS in their meeting held on March 22, 2022, subject to approval of
shareholders, creditors and Ministry of Corporate Affairs. Accordingly, OAIS and OHFC
are in the process of merger.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company has been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of
Division Il of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule 111), as
applicable.

These financial statements have been prepared in Indian Rupee (), which is the functional
currency of the company. All amounts are rounded to nearest Indian Rupee () in lakhs
cxcept where otherwisce stated.

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain
financial instruments which are measured at fair value or amortised cost at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below

These separate financial statements were approved by the Company's Board of Directors and
authorised for issue on 29 July 2022,

The Statement of Cash Flows has been presented as per the requirements of Ind-AS 7
Statement of Cash Flows. The statement of cash flows have been prepared under indirect
method.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting
standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change
in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Hy
%
Digitaily signed by
SANJAY SANJAY BACHCHANI

CHAN| Date: 2022.07.29

18:37:40 +05'30'




ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63032MHI1995PLC086014

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

(b)

(c)

Current vs. non-current classification

The company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current non-current

classification. An asset is treated as current when it 1s:

e Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

o  Held primarily for the purpose of trading

e  Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
lability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A hability is current when:

e Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

e [t is held primarily for the purpose of trading

e Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for atleast
twelve months after the reporting period

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement
by the issuc of cquity instruments do not affect its classification.

The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the company’s
functional currency.

Transactions and balances:

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective
functional currency spot rates at the datc the transaction and for recognition uscs the
exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency as at that date.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised
in profit or loss

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value is determined.
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63032MH1995PLC086014

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

(d)

Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at cach balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to scll the asset or transfer the
Hability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial assct takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All asscts and liabilitics for which fair valuc is mecasured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets
or habilities

e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each balance sheet date.

The Company determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement, such as unquoted financial assets measured at fair value.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, unquoted financial assets,
and significant liabilities, such as valuation of unquoted investments and equity scitled
employee share based payment plan. Involvement of external valuers is decided upon
annually by the Company’s management. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained. The Company
management decides with the Company’s external valuers, which valuation techniques and
inputs to use for each case. :
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CIN : U63032MHI1995PLC086014

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

(e)

At each reporting date, the Company’s management analyses the movements in the values
of assets and liabilities which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the
Company’s accounting policics. For this analysis, the Company’s management verifies the
major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the

valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Company’s management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also
compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external
sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

The Company management present the valuation results to the Board of Directors and the
Company’s independent auditors. This includes a discussion of the major assumptions used
in the valuations.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilitics on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosure
are given in the relevant notes

e  Quantitative disclosures of fair valuc measurcment hicrarchy (Notc 42)
e Investment in unquoted equity shares (Note 5)
e Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (Note 42)

Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services
are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, cstimates and assumptions relating to
revenue (rom contracts with customers are provided in Note 28

The Company earns revenue primarily from providing assets on operating lease, rentals of
cars and rentals of self-drive vehicles, employee transport solutions and maintenance of
vehicles.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers
in an amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in
exchange for those products or scrvices.

Income from opcrations is recognized on accrual basis.

Operating lease income:

Leases in which the Company as a lessor does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Lease rental income on

an operating lease is recognized in the Statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

g Digitally signed by
SA AY SANJAY BACHCHANI

BACHCHAN' Date: 2022.07.29

S 18:39:38 +05'30'



ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63032MH1995PLC086014

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

In respect of Maintenance Linked Leases (MLL), lease rentals are segregated between
income for asset leased and maintenance charges. For maintenance contract, a budgeted
maintenance reserve is created and a corresponding asset as lease finance charge. The
maintenance reserve is amortised using the sum of years digit method and lease finance
charges is amortised using the Internal Rate of Return method. The maintenance costs are
recognised and accounted for as expenses as and when incurred.

Rental Income from Rent a Car (RAC):

Income earned on vehicles rented is recognised as rental income from Rent a Car. Car rental
income and service charges are recognised over the period.

Rental Income from Car Rental - Self Drive (SD):

Income earned on vehicles rented is recognised as rental income from Self Drive. Car rental
income and service charges are recognised over the period.

Business transport solutions (BTS):

Business Transport solutions income relates to services Lo corporales towards management
of their logistics requirements for transportation of employees. In order to provide these
services, the Company normally enters into arrangements with various vendors for use
of vehicles on back to back basis. Income is recognized over the period.

Revenuc is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for
discounts, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes
collected from customers. In the event transaction price is revised for existing obligation, a
cumulative adjustinent is accounted for.

Service centre:

Sales of automobile spare parts and accessories along with labour charges during service
/repairs of cars are accounted for on completion of jobs. Other sale of spares and accessories
are accounted for on dispatch basis.

Income on maintenance contracts included in service charges under sales and services has
been accounted on completion of service.

Other income

Other Income represents income earned from the activities incidental to the business and is
recognised when the right to receive the income is established as per the terms of the
contract.

Contract balances
Contract assets

A contract asset is initially recognised for revenue earned from Business Transport Solutions
business because the receipt of consideration is conditional on successful completion of the
service. Upon completion of the service and acceptance by the customer, the amount
recogniscd as contract asscts is reclassified to trade receivables.

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on
impairment of financial assets in section t) Financial instruments — initial recognition and
subsequent measurement. P4
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®

Trade receivables

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.c., only the
passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting
policies of financial assets in section (t) Financial instruments — initial recognition and
subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received from a customer before the
Company transfers the related services. Contract liabilitics are recognised as revenue when
the Company performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related services to the
customer).

Taxes

Current tax

Income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recogniscd outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax ilems are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers
whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax trecatment.

The Company shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using
either most likely method or expected value method, depending on which method predicts
better resolution of the treatment.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes
at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

a. When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

b. In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the camry
forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the cxtent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilised, except:
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(g)

c. When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of an assct or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affcets ncither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss

d. In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered

Deferred tax assets and liabilitics arc mcasured at the tax rates that are expeeted to apply in
the year when the asset is realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are
recognised in corrclation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists
to set of current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. Cost comprises of cost of acquisition, cost of improvements and any
directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working condition for intended use.

Land and Buildings are taken on a long-term composite lease. The Company has assessed
the lease of land and building separately and concluded that both leases are finance leases
in nature.

Vehicles given by the Company under operating lease are included in property, plant and
equipment.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged on a pro-rata basis for Property, Plant and Equipment purchased and
sold during the year. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment has been provided on
the straight-line method as per the useful lives prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies
Act, 2013.

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management
estimate, depreciates certain items of vehicles, plant and machinery, furniture and fixtures
over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule II
to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are
realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be
used.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
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(h)

Followings are the estimated useful lives of various category of assets used.

Category of assets Usetul life
Leasehold improvements Over lease period
Self-Drive vehicles 5 years
Business Transport Solution Own vehicles Over contracl period
TFurniture, equipment’s to employees Block of 4 years
Furniture and fixtures 7 years
Own exceutive vehicles Over contract period
Plant and machinery 5 years
Vehicles under operating lease 5 years

Fixed assets costing less than ¥ 5,000 are charged to the Statement of profit and loss in the
year of purchase.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of profit or loss when the assct is derccognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as separate
assets, as appropriate, onty when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated
with expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss at
the time of incurrence.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Intangibles are capitalised at cost of acquisition
including cost attributable to readying the asset for use. Internally generated intangibles,
excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure for
use is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets under development are measured at the amount incurred till the asset is put
to use. This is separately disclosed under the Financial statement.

Intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the net carrying amount of the asset) is
recognised in the Statement of profit and loss in the year the asset is derecognised.

Support and maintenance payable annually are charged to the statement of profit and loss

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as finite are amortised over the useful
cconomic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite
lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the available useful life of 6 years.
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Amortisation method and useful lives are reviewed periodically including at cach financial
year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
cconomic benefits embodied in the assct arc considered to modify the amortisation period or
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Category of assets | Useful life Amortisation method Internally generated or acquired
Software 6 years Straight line method Acquired
@) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or
sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that

an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes
exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs

)] Ieases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a fease. That
is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a Lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an asset is classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Company as a lessee:

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except
for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease

liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right (v use the
underlying assets.

1) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-usc assets at the commencement date of the lease
(i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date.

Right-of-use asscts arc depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lcase term.
1i) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities
measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include fixed payments to the lessor. In calculating the present value
of leasc payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. SANJAYEg
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(k)

M

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change
in the lease term, a change in the lease payments.

ii1) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term
leases of premises (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on
short-lerm leases and leases of low-value assels are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Inventories:

Inventories comprising of stock of spare parts, accessories and vehicles retired from active
use in business are initially recognised at cost.

At the end of each reporting period, the same are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable valuc.

Cost of spare parts and accessories is arrived at on "First in first out" basis.

Obsolete, defective and unserviceable stocks are provided for as and when identified based
on technical cvaluation by the management.

Impairment of Non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each balance sheet date, whether there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an
asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or
CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down
to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal,
recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified,
an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation
multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value
indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast
calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the
individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a
period of three years. For longer petiods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied
to project future cash flows after the third year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond
periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow
projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years,
unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the
long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which
the Company operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.
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Tmpairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventorics, are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except for properties previously revalued with
the revaluation surplus taken to OCI. For such propertics, the impairment is recognised in
OCT up to the amount of any previous revaluation surplus.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist
or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since
the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount
of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss

unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a
revaluation increase.

(m)  Provisions, Contingent liability and Contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a resull ol a past eveni, it is probable that an out{low of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past
events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by occurrence or non- occurrence of
one or more uncerlain {ulure events not wholly within the control of the Company or a
present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.
Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the notes.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. A contingent asset is not
recognized unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise.

When an inflow of economic benefits is probable, contingent assets are disclosed in the Tnd
AS Financial Statement.

Tf the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised
as a finance cost.

Provisions and contingent liabilities arc reviewed at cach balance shecet date.
(n) Retirement and other employee benefits:

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund (PF) & employee state insurance (ESIC) is
a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution
payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the
provident fund scheme as an cxpense, when an employce renders the related service. If the
contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds
the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability
after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the
contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then ecxcess is
rccognized as an assct to the extent of the pre-payment. Sers
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(0)

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions
to be made to a separately administered fund. The Company has taken group gratuity- cum
-life assurance scheme of Life Insurance Corporation of India.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the
projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return
on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability), arc recognised immediately in the balance shect with a corresponding debit or
credit to retained carnings through OCT in the period in which they occur.

Past service costs and net interest calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined
benefit liability or asset, are recognised in profit or loss.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as
short-term employee benefit. The group measures the expected cost of such absences as the
additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has
accumulated at the reporting date. These are presented as current liabilities in the balance
sheet.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve
months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit method at the reporting date. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the
statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The obligations are presented as Non-
current liabilities in the balance sheet. :

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
[inancial liability or ¢quity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recogniscd initially at fair value plus, in the casc of financial asscts
not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits
to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
e Financial assets at amortised cost
¢ Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with
recycling of cumulative gains and losses
e Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
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Financial assets at amortised cost
A ‘Financial instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions
are met.

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPT) on the principal amount outstanding.

Alfter initial measurement, such {inancial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

The Company’s financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables, balances with
banks, and other financial assets.

Financial asset at FVTOCI

Financial assct is classificd as at the FVTOCI if both of the following critcria arc mct:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling the financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL.

Financial asset included within the FVTOCT category are measured initially as well as at
cach balance sheet at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehiensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income,
impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&IL. On de-
recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCT is reclassified
from the equity to P&L.

Financial assets at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial assets, which does not meet
the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to classily a [inancial asset, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’).

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the P&L.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s
consolidated balance sheet) when:

a) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
b) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party

under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the
risks and rewards of ownership. When it has ncither transferred nor retained substantially all
of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability arc measurced on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
risk exposure:

a. Financial assets are measured at amortised cost e.g., deposits and trade receivables

b. Lease receivables under Ind-AS 17.

¢. Contract assets and trade receivables under Ind-AS 18.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance
on:

a. Trade receivables, and

b. All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
balancc sheet date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide
for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used.
If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no
longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to
recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
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Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime
ECL which results from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss
allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its
historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is
adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every balance sheet date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under
the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L.. The balance sheet presentation for various financial
instruments is described below:

The balance shect presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

For financial assets measured as at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e. as
an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance
reduces the net carrying amount, Until the assct meets write-off criteria, the Company does
not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial
instraments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating
an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk, to be identified on
a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial
assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables and loans and
borrowings including bank overdrafts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for
the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading
are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109
are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to
changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCl. These gains/loss are not subsequently
transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing
loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilitics are derecognised as well
as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premiummn on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. This
category generally applies to borrowings.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Re-classification of Financial Assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial
recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which
arc equity instruments and financial liabilitics. For financial assets which arc debt
instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business mode] for
managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The
Company’s senior management determines change in the business model as a result of
external or internal changes which arc significant to the Company’s operations. Such
changes are evident (o external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the
Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations.
If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from
the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period
following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously
recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.
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()]

(q)

(r)

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Segment reporting:

Operaling segments are reporled in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision maker.

The board of dircctors of the Company has appointed a CEO, who asscsses the financial
performance and position of the Company, and makes strategic decisions of allocation of
resources. Hence, CEO has been identified as being the chief operating decision maker.

Entity shall report separately information about operating segment that meets criteria as per
IND AS 108.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, that arc readily convertible
to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above.

Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity sharcholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for
cvents such as bonus issue, bonus clement in a rights issuc, share split, and reverse share

split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding,
without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the petiod
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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(s)

Significant accounting judgement, estimates and assumptions

In application of Company's accounting policies, which are described in Note 2, the
directors of the company are required to make judgements, estimations, and assumptions
about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision or future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made
the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments - Company as a lessee

The Company has entered into lease agreements with lessor and has determined, based
on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term
not constituting a major part of the economic life of the commercial property and the
fair -value of the asset, that it does not retains the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of these properties and accounts [or the contracts as operaling leases.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of asscts and liabilitics within the next financial
year, are described below. The Company based its assamptions and estimates on
parameters available when the financial statements werc prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptious about future developments, however, may change duc
to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company.
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. Estimates and
underlying assumptions are teviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised prospectively.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies.

Provision for tax liabilities require judgements on the interpretation of tax legislation,
developments in case law and the potential outcomes of tax audits and appeals which
may be subject to significant uncertainty. Therefore, the actual results may vary from
expectations resulting in adjustments to provisions, the valuation of deferred tax assets,
cash tax settlements and therefore the tax charge in the Statement of Profit or Loss.
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Defined benefit plans (gratuity)

The cost of the defined benefit grawity plan and the present value of the gratuity
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and
mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term
nature, a defined benefit plan is highly sensitive to in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. The parameter most subject to change
is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the management
considers the inlerest rates of government bonds with term that correspond with the
expected term of the defined benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables
tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary
increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the
respective countries.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 37.
Provision for trade receivable

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as

- reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Estimated
irrecoverable amounts are based on the ageing of the receivable balances and historical
experience adjusted for forward-looking estimates. Individual trade receivables are
written off when management deems them not to be collectible. For details of expected
credit losses please refer Note 9.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax
assels, are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (‘CGU”) is the greater of its
value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset or CGU. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested
individually are accompanied together into the smallest Company of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash
inflows of other assets or Company’s of assets (‘CGU”).

Market related information and estimates are used to determine the recoverable amount.
Key assumptions on which management has based its determination of recoverable
amount include cstimated long term growth rates, weighted average cost of capital and
estimated operating margins. Cash flow projections take into account past experience
and represent management’s best estimate about future developments.
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®

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets

Refer note 2 and 3 for estimated useful lifec and carrying value of property, plant and
equipment respectively. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation/amortization is
derived after determining an estimate of an asset's expected useful life and the expected
residual value at the end of its life. Management at the time the asset is
acquired/capitalized periodically, including at each financial period/year end,
determines the useful lives and residual values of Company's assets. The lives are based
on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events,
which may affect their life, such as changes in technology. The estimated useful life is
reviewed at least annually.

Iair value of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilitics recorded in the balance
sheet cannot be measured based on quoted price in active markets, their fair value is
measured using valuation techniques including the present valuation technique. The
inputs to these models arc taken {rom obscrvable markets where possible, but where
this is not feasible a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair value.
Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and
volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could effect the reported fair
value of financial instruments.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore,
it uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the
rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and
with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment

New and amended standards
Amendments to Ind AS 116: Covid- 19-Related Rent Concessions

The amendments provide reliel to lessees from applying Ind AS 116 guidance on lease
modification accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the Covid-
19 pandemic. As a practical expedient, a lessee may elect not to assess whether a Covid- 19
related rent concession from a lessor is a lease modification. A lessee that makes this
election accounts [or any change in lease payments resulting from the Covid- 19 related rent
concession the same way it would account for the change under Ind AS 116, if the change
were not a lease modification.

The amendments are applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or after the 1
April 2020. In case, a lessee has not yet approved the financial statements for issue before
the issuance of this amendment, then the same may be applied for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after the 1 April 2019.
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Amendments to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 8: Definition of Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material that states, “information is material
if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements, which provide financial information about a specific reporting entity.”

The amendments clarify that matcriality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information, either individually or in combination with other information, in the context of
the financial statements. A misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions made by the primary users. These amendments had no
impact on the consolidated financial statements of, nor is there expected to be any future
impact to the Company.

These amendments are applicable prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after the
April 01, 2020. The amendments to the definition of material are not expected to have a
significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Amendment to Schedule ITI
The Company has considered the amendments to Schedule 11I of the Companies Act 2013

notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) via notification dated March 24, 2021,
in the Standalonc Ind AS Financial Statcments disclosures, wherever applicable.

Amendment to Ind AS 105, Ind AS' 16 and Ind AS 28

The definition of “Recoverable amount” is amended such that the words “the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use” are replaced with “higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its vatue in use”. The consequential amendments
are made in Ind AS 105, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 28.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2: Amendments to Ind AS 109, Ind AS 107,
Ind AS 104 and Ind AS 116

The amendments provide temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting effects
when an interbank offered rate (IBOR) is replaced with an alternative nearly risk-free
interest rate (RFR).

The amendments include the following practical expedients:

A practical expedient to require confractual changes, or changes to cash flows that are
directly required by the reform, to be treated as changes to a floating interest rate, equivalent
to a movement in a market rate of interest.

Permit changes required by IBOR reform to be made to hedge designations and hedge
documentation without the hedging relationship being discontinued.

Provide temporary relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable
requirement when an RFR instrument is designated as a hedge of a risk component

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company. The
Company intends to use the practical expedients in future periods if they become applicable.
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Conceptual framework for financial reporting under Ind AS issued by ICAI

The Framework is not a Standard and it does not override any specific standard. Therefore,
this does not form part of a set of standards pronounced by the standard-setters. While, the
Framework is primarily meant for the standard-setter for formulating the standards, it has
relevance to the preparers in certain situations such as to develop consistent accounting
policies for areas that are not covered by a standard or where there is choice of accounting
policy, and to assist all parties to understand and interpret the Standards.

The amendments made in following standards due to Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting under Ind AS, includes amendment of the footnote to the definition of an equity
instrument in Ind AS 102- Share Based Payments, footnote to be added for definition of
liability i.e. definition of liability is not revised on account of revision of definition in
conceptual framework in case of Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets, elc.

The MCA has notified the Amendments to Ind AS consequential to Conceptual Framework
under Ind AS vide notification dated Junc 18, 2021, applicable for annual periods beginning
on or after April 1, 2021. Accordingly, the Conceptual Framework is applicable for
preparers for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 .

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.
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2

Property, plant and cquipment %

Buildings under Leaschold Plant and  Furpiture aud Vehicles  Data processing Office  Vehickes Total
finance lease ® improvements cquipments tixtures equipments equipments under Operating
lease
Grass block
Asat 01 April 2020 3,103 789 12 155 22,591 1,007 420 95,291 1,23,36%
Additions - - - 4 8940 30 14 20,106 21,070
- - - - - - - (5.168) (5.168)

Dispusals - - - 9,699 - 7 21,520 31.226
As at 31 March 2021 3,103 789 12 159 13,782 1,063 421 88,709 1,08,044
As at 01 April 2021 3,103 789 12 159 13,782 1,063 427 88,709 1,08,044
Additions - - 3 1 2,122 7t 26 36,027 38,260
Translers - - - - - - - (1,877) (1,877)
Disposals - 0 - 17 3,079 98 63 24,533 27,790
Asat 31 March 2022 3.103 789 15 153 12,825 1,036 390 98326 1.16.637
Accumulated depreciation
As at 01 April 202¢ 237 532 to 8l 9,591 661 279 35954 47353
Charge for the year 59 123 1 23 3,538 136 65 18,044 21,939
Transfers - - - - - - - (3,706 (3,706)
Disposals - - - - 6,705 - & 14,153 20,866
As at 31 March 2021 296 G583 il Lo7 6,424 797 336 36,144 44,770
As at 01 April 2021 296 655 11 107 6,424 797 336 36,144 44,770
Charge for the year 59 75 1 23 2440 [RE 62 18,082 20,861
Transfers - - - - - - - (1,497 (1,497)
Dispasals - ] - 15 2,048 9t 62 16,477 1K,693
As af 31 Varch 2022 358 730 12 115 6,816 825 336 36,252 45,441
Net book value
As at 31 March 2021 2.807 134 1 52 7.358 266 91 52,568 63,274
As at 31 March 2022 2,748 59 3 38 6,009 211 54 62,074 71,196

4 The Company has neither revalued nor impaired it's Property, plant and equipmen: during the year ended on 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021

* This includes leaschold land.
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3 Other intangible assets #

Software Total
Gross block
As at 01 April 2020 691 691
Additions 180 180
Transfers - -
Disposals - .
As 2t 31 March 2021 871 871
As at 01 April 2021 871 871
Additions 26 26
Transfers - -
Disposals 6 6
As at 31 Marceh 2022 891 891
Accumulated amortisation
As at 01 April 2020 327 327
Amortisation for the year 132 132
Disposals - -
As at 31 March 2021 459 459
As at 01 April 2021 459 459
Amortisation for the year 134 134
Disposals 4 4
As at 31 Murch 2022 589 589
Net book value
As al 31 March 2021 412 412
As at 31 March 2022 302 302
# The Company has neither revalued nor impaired it's intangible assets during the year ended on 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021
Tntangible Asset under Development (IAUD) ageing schedute

Amount in IAUD for a period of
As at 31 March 2022 Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More thau 3 Total
years
Software projects in progress 96 - - - 96
Amount in IAUD for a period of
As at 31 March 2021 Less than I year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
. years
Software projects in progress - - - - -
{This space have been intentionally left blank)
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4 Right-of-use assets #

Right-of-use assets Total
Gross carrying amount :
As at 01 April 2020 1,615 1,615
Additions 14 14
Disposals 118 118
As at 31 March 2021 1,511 151
As at 01 April 202t 1,511 1,511
Additions 673 673
Disposals 427 427
As at 31 March 2022 1,757 1,757
Accumulated amortisation :
As at 81 April 2020 577 577
Awmortisation for the year 282 282
Disposals 78 78
As at 31 March 2021 781 781
As at 01 April 2021 781 781
Amortisation for the year 268 268
Disposals 427 427
As at 31 March 2022 622 622
Net book value
As at 31 March 2021 730 730
As at 31 March 2022 1,135 1,135

# Right-of-use assets includes office premises

* The Company has neither revalued nor impaired its Right-of-use assets during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021
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Investments

Name of the body corporate

Extent of
holding

(%a)

Partly paid /
tully paid

As at 31 March 2022

No. of shares

Amount

As at 31 March 2021

No. of shares

Amount

Unquoted investments

Investment in subsidiaries (at
amortised cost)

ORIX Leasing & Financial Services
India Limited

ORTX Housing financial Corporation
India Limited

Fully Paid (Face 99.99

value of ¥ 10)

Fully Paid (Face 99.99

valuc of X 10)

10,09,35,831

1,99,99,993

40,405

2,000

10,09,35,831

1,99,99,993

40.405

2,000

Total

42,405

42,405

Aggregate book value of guoted
investments

Aggregate market value of quoted
investments

Aggregate value of unquoted investments

Aggregate amount of impairment in
value of imvestments

(This space have been intentionally left blank)

42,405

42,405
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Scrvices Limited

CIN ;: U63032MH1995PL.CO8G014

Notes (o the financial statements as at 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
6 Other financial assets
Security deposit Unsecured, considered good
Sceurity deposits- premiscs 206 56
Less: Expected credit loss allowance (19 4
196 42
Security deposits- peirol and sundry deposits 205 160
401 202
Bank deposits with residual maturity of more than 12 months*® - 3
Out of pocket expenses recoverable 3,362 2,214
3,362 2,217
Total 3,763 2,419

* Bank deposit with residual maturity of more than 12 months is pledged with VAT audthoities in the year 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021

7 Other non-current assets
Unsecured, considered good
Other
Capital advance 3,112 £,902
Balances with statutory authorities- VAT input cvedit 1,717 1,677
Prepaid expenses 56 21
Advance tax (net of provision for tax - ¥ 10,844 (31 March 2021 ¥ 10,88%)) 5,222 3,670
Total 16,107 7,270
8 Inventorics
At lower of cost or net realisable value
Stores and spaves 33 11
Retired vehicles held for sale® 445 235
Total 478 246

* The Company has ercated provision of € 229 (31 March 2021 ¥ 229) which is netted off against retired vehieles heid for sale.

(This space have been intentionally left blank)
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ORTX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN 1 U6303ZNTHI995PTLC086014

Notes to the tinancial statements as at 31 Mavch 2022

(Al amounnts ave in INR Laldis, except as stated otherwise)

9 Trade receivable
Asat As al
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Trade receivables 7,515 6,200

Break-up:
Secured, congidered gand 7,515 6.200

Un . considered gaod "
Trade receivables which have significant increase i credit visk 448 515
Trade receivable credit impaired -

7,963 6,715

Impairment Allowance (allowanece for bad and doubtfol debts)

Seeured, considered goad 377) (40}
Unsecured, considered good - -
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk (71) 09)
(448) (515)
Total 7515 6,200

Clause (iv) Trade receivable aging schedule

Outstanding for following peviuds from due dates of payments

March 31, 2022 Currenthut ::‘: Less than 6 6 months - More than 3 Total
months 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year Years.

(i) Undisputed Trade receivable «

considered good - 6,599 292 99 45 12¢ 7,159

vable -

(i) Undisputed Trade red
which have significant increase in
credit risk - 30 61 29 27 230 37
(iii) Undisputed Trade receivable -
credit impaired -

(iv) Disputed Trade receivable -
Considered good - 248 4 30 a7 7 356
{+) Disputed Trade receivable -

which have significant incrcase in
eredit risk -

[
o

41 20 6 71

Total - 6,879 00 219 138 366 7,963

I » but not Qutstanding for following perinds from due dates of payments
-rren u q

March 31, 2021 due Less than 6 & months - 1 More than 3 Total
nonths year 1-2 year 2-3 year| years

{i) Undisputed Trade receivable -

considered goad - 5,585 187 99 72 131 6,074

(i) Undisputed Trade receivable -

which have significant increase in

credit risk - 44 80 03 49 210 446

(i) Undisputed Trade receivable -

credit impaired - - - - - - -

(iv) Disputed Trade receivable -
Considered goud - 1 20 72
(v} Disputed T'rade receivable -

which have significant increase in
credit risk - 1 9 48 11 Y 69
(vi) Disputed Trade receivable -
credit impaired - - - - - - -

™
13

126

Total - 5,640 297 182 154 342 6,715

* Due date has been considered fom invoice date.

Na (tade or ather receivable are due fom direetor or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any olher person. Not any (rade or other receivable are due

{rom firms or private companics respectively in which any dircetor is a partner, a director or a member.

The movement in impaivment allowance of wade receivable as follows :

Asat As al
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Opening balance 515 415
Addition / (Reversals) (56) 100
Wrile-olT (net of recovery) (11) -

Closing halance 448 515
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63032MHI995PL.CO86014

Notes (o the finapcial statements as at 31 March 2022

(All amounts arc in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwisce)

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

16 Cash and cash equivalents

Balance with banks :

O]] current accguls
Cash on hand
Total

For the purpose of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents comprise the above (able.

11 Bank balances other than (10) above

Bank balances otlier than cash and cash cquivalents

Deposit with original manrity of more than 3 months but residual maturity of less than 12 months*

TOTAL

883 1,387

18 27
901 1,414
334 319
334 319

* The bank deposits of €330 (31 March 2021 ¥ 279) have been kept as a sceurily [or registration with the VAT authoritics of various states.
Short tenm deposits are made for varying periods between one day and three months depending on immediate cash requivements of the company and eamn

interest at the respective short term deposit rates.
12 Loans

Unsecured, Considered good unless otherwise stated
Loans and advances to employees

Total

13 Other financial assefs

Non-Derivative asset

Security deposit unsecured, considered good
Security deposits- premises

Security deposits- petrol and sundry deposits

Receivable from telated parties (refer note 40)
Contract Assets

Out of pocket expenses recoverable

Less: Expected credit loss allowance

Total
14 Other current assets

Advances

Advances to suppliers - considered gaod

Advanccs to supplicrs - considered doubtful

Less: Allowance for doubttul advances (o suppliers
Advance for expenses

Unsecured, considered good
Others

Prepaid expenses

Ralance with statutory authorities
Incentive receivable from dealers
Others receivables

Total

ey Digitally signed by
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14 3

14 3

14 198

98 10
112 208
1,275 1,042
854 966
2,691 1,647
0) (0)
4,932 3,863

616 2,021
443 225
(443) (225)
196 539
1,112 759
4,139 4,549
106 142
117 (0)
6,286 8,010




ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63032MH1995P1.C086014

Notes to the financial statements as at 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, excepl as stated otherwisc)

ts Share capital:

As at 31 March 2022

Number on shares % in lakhs

As at 31 March 2021

Number on shares ¥ in fakhs

Authorised

Equity shares of T 10 each 16,00,00,600 16,000 16,00,00,000 16,000
13.5% preference shares of ¥ 10 cach 1,00,00,000 1,000 1,00,00,000 1,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid equity capital

Equity shares of ¥ 10 each 12,79,96,498 12,800 12,79,96,498 12,800

i) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:
As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Authorised share capital Number on shares ¥ in lakhs  Number on shares T in lakhs
Equity shares of T 10 each

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 16,00.00,000 16,000 16,00,00,000 16,000
Shares issucd during the year - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 16,00,00,000 16,000 16,00,00,000 16,000
13.5% preference shares of T 10 each

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,00,00,000 1,000 1,00,00,000 1,000
Shares issued during the year - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 1,00,00,000 1,000 1.00,00,000 1,000

Issued equity capital

As at 31 March 2022

Number on shares ¥ in lakhs

As at 31 March 2021

Number on shares T i lakhs

Equity shares of ¥ 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
Shares outstanding at the beginning ot the year

Shares issued during the year

Shares outstanding at the end of the year

ii) Terms / rights attached to equily shares:

12,79.96.498 12,800

12,79.96,498 12,800

12,79,96,498 12,800

12,79,96,498 12,800

The Company has only one class of equily shaves having a par value of T 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend

proposed by the board of directors is subject to the approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting,

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of cquity shares will be entitled to receive residual assets of the Company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholder.

iii) 127,984,998 Equity Shares (31 March 2021 - 127,984,998) are held by ORIX Corporation, Japan, the holding company and its nominees.

iv)  Shares held by holding company and it’s nominees

Out of equity issued by the company, shares lield by its holding company and their nominee are as follows:

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
ORIX Corporation (Japan), the holding company and its nominees 100% 100%
12,79,96,498 (31 March 2021 : 12,79,96,498) equity shares
v) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company / shares held by holding / ultimate holding company:
As at As at

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

No. of shares held % of holding

No. of shares held % of holding

ORIX Corporation (Japan), the holding company and its nominees

12,79,89,998 100.00%
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited
CIN : U63032MH1995PLC086014
Notes to the financial statements as at 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

vi) Details of shares held by promoters

No. of shares at

. + dur ‘0. of share o of % chanee duri
Promoter Natne the beginning of Change during No. of :chm es at - o of % change during
= the year the end of the year Total Shares the year
the year N
ORIX Corporation 12,79,89,992 - 12,79,89,992 100% 0%
ORIX Corporation and 1 (1) - 0% 100%
Mr. Harukazu Yamaguchi
ORIX Corporation and Mr. Takashi - 1 ) 0% -100%
Nakayama
Equity ORIX Corporation and Mr. Vivek 1 - 1 0% 0%
shares of Wadhera
10 each  ORIX Corporation and Mr. Yoshiaki 1 - 1 0% 0%
fully paid  Matsuoka
ORIX Corporation and Mr. Pankaj 1 - 1 0% 0%
Jain
ORIX Corporation and Mr. Sandeep 1 - 1 0% 0%
Gambhir
ORIX Cormporation and Mr. Jay 1 - s 0% 0%
Gandhi
Total 12,79,89,998 - 12,79,89,998 100% -

Note :

- No shares have been alloted by way of bonus shares or pursuant to contracts without receipl of cash

- No shares have been reserved for issue under options

- No shares have been alloted pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash

- As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholder / member and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial
interest, the above sharcholding represents both fegal and beacficial ownership of shares.
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63032MH 1995PLC086014

Notes (o the financial statements as at 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
16 Other equity
Securities premium account
Balance at the beginning of the year 39,985 39,985
Transactions during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 39,985 39,985
General reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,856 1,856
Transactions during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 1,856 1,856
Reserves and surplus
Balance at the beginning of the year (1,568) 1,569
(Loss) for the year (712) (3,137
Ralance at the end of the year (2,280) (1,568)
Other Comprchensive Income
Balance at the beginning of the year (526) (673)
Add : Re-mcasurements on defined benefit plan (23) 147
Balance al the end of the year (549) (526)
Total 39,012 39,747
i) Securities premium is used for recording the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of section 52 of the
Companies Act, 2013.
ii) The general reserve comprises of transfer of profit from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. The reserve can be distributed/utilized by the
company in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013.
jiii) Reserves and surplus represents total of all profits retained since Company’s inception. Retained eamings are credited with current year profits,
reduced by losses, i€ any, Uansfers W General reserve or any sucl other appropriations to specific reserves.
iv) Actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit plans are recognized in other comprehensive income, net of taxes.
17 Borrowings

Non-current borrowing
Unsecured borrowing
Term Loan

- From Banks (rcfer note a, b, ¢, ¢ and 1) 24377 13,510

- From Parent Company (ORIX Corpoartion-Japan) (vefer note d) 15,000 15,000
Total 30377 28,510
Notes

4) Term loan disbursement from HDFC Bank Limited that carcies interest @ 6.07% to 7.35%. The loan is repayable in quarterly installments and will
start getting repaid from August, 2023 to September, 2025 . The installment amount ranges from ¥ 313 lakhs to of ¥ 357 lakhs. The loan is guaranteed by
ORIX Corporation, Japan (Holding Company).

b) Term loan disbursement from Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited that carries interest @ 6.10% to 6.30%. The foan is repayable in monthly installments and
start getiing repaid from March, 2025 to August 2025. The installment amount ranges from ¥ 63 lakhs to of ¥ 106 lakhs. The loan is guaranteed by ORIX
Carporation, Japan (ITolding Company).

¢) Term loan disbursement from Credit Agricole Corporate & Investment Bank that carries interest ¢y 6.25%. The loan is repayable in quarterly
installments and will be fully repaid by November,2024 . The instalment amount is o7 ¥ 1,000 takhs. The loan is guaranteed by ORIX Corporation, Japan
(Holding Company).

d) Term loan disbursement from Parent company, ORIX Corporation, Japan, that carries interest @ 7.69%. The loan is repayable in bullet payment and
will be repaid by Oclober, 2024,

¢) Term loan disbursement from ICICI Bank Limited that caries interest @ 8.15%. The loan is repayable in monthly installments and was fully repaid
during the year . The instalment amount was of ¥ 208.33 lakhs. The loan is guaranteed by ORIX Corporation, Japan (Holding Company).

f) Term loan disbursement from The Federal Bank Limited that carries interest @ 7.90%. The loan is repayable in quarterly installments and was fully
repaid during the year . The installment amount was of X 583 lakhs. The loan is guaranteed by ORIX Corporation, Japan (Holding Company).
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN ; U63032MH1995PLC086014

Notes (o the financial statements as at 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

As at As ai
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
18  Leasc liabilities
Lease liabilities (refer note 38) 1,083 744
Total 1,083 744
19 Other financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amordsed cost
Security deposits from customets 68 46
Total 68 46
20 Net employce defined benefit Habilities
Provision for gratuity (refer note 37) 350 153
Provision for compensated absences 339 282
Total 689 435
21 Other non-current liabilities
Maintenance linked leases reserves of operating lease 878 712
Total 878 712
22 Short term borrowings
Secured
Loans repayable on demand from banks
- Cash credit from banks 0 -
- Short Term Loan From Banks (refer note a) 1,000 -
- Working capital demand Joan (refer note g) - 600
Unsecured
Loans repayable on demand from banks
- Working capital demand loan (refer note b, ¢, d, € and f) 29,500 20,500
- Overdraft facility from bank 019 -
Current maturitics of long term debts 16,331 24,322
Book overdraft 3 125
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 2 10
Total 47,455 45,557
Notes:
a). Short Term loan disbursement from IDBI Bank Limited that carties interest @ 6.00%. The loan is secured by way of hypothecation of operating lease
assets.
b). Working capital demand loan from Mizuho Bank that carries interest rate @ 4.35% p.a. The loan is guaranteed by ORIX Corporation, Japan (Holding
Company)
¢) Working capital demand loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank that carries interest rate @ 5.00% p.a. The loan is guaranieed by ORIX Corporation, Japan
(Holding Compary)
d) Working capital demand loan from The Federal Bank Ltd that carries interest rate @ 4.98% p.a. The loan is guaranteed by ORIX Corporation, Japan
(Holding Company)
¢) Working capital demand loan fiom Deutsche Bank AG thal carries interest rate @ 4.50% p.a. The loan is guaranteed by ORIX Corporation, Japan
(Holding Company)
1) Working capital demand loan from ICICT Bank that caies interest rate @ 4.68% p.a. The foan is guaranteed by ORIX Corporation, Japan (Holding
Company)
g) Working capital demand loan from IDBI Bank Ltd that carrics interest rate @ 6.00% p.a. was repaid during the year in Apr-2021. The loan was secured
by way of hypothecation of operating lease assets.
23 Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities (refer note 38) 248 141
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63032MHI1995PLCO86014

Notes to the financial statements as at 31 March 2022

(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

24 Trade payables

As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Trade payable of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 48) 810 164
Trade payable other than micro enterprises and small enterprises . 7,122 6,707
Total 7,938 6,871
Trade payable 7,938 6,871

Trade payable to related parties - -

Total 7,938 6,871

Trade payable aging schedule

Outstanding for following periods from the date of transactions

31 March 2022 No Due Total
Less than More than

1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year 3 years

Total outstanding ducs of micro
enterprises and small enterprises 432 3i2 45 0 27 8i6

Total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterpriscs and

stall enterprises 3,691 1,256 739 413 1,023 7,122
Disputed ducs of micro enterpriscs
and small enterprises - - - -

Disputed dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small

cnlerpriscs - - - -
Grand cotal 4,123 1,568 784 413 1,049 7,938
Outstanding for following periods from the date of transactions
31 March 2021 No Due Total
More than 3
Less than T year 1-2 year 2-3 year years
Total outstanding dues of micro
caterpriscs and small enterprises 103 61 [¢] - (0) 164

Total outstanding dues of creditors
ather than micro enterprises and

small eaterprises 2,312 1,398 1,325 514 1,158 6,707
Disputed dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises - - -

Disputed dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small
enlerprises - - | -
Grand total 2,418 1,459 1,325 514 1,158 6,871

Trade payables are not-interest bearing and are normally settled in 30 days terms.

The amount due to Mirco, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined in the "Mirco, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006"
("MSMED?") has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the compary.
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63032MI1995PLCO086014

Notes (o the financial statements as at 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
25 Other financial liabilities
Financial Habilities at amortise cost
Advance from customers 3,612 2,878
Employee refated liabilities 990 1,034
Other Payables
- Security Deposits for operating lease and self drive 141 158
- Provision for expenses 1,854 1,900
Total 6,597 5,970
26  Net employee defined benefit Liabilities
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (refer note 37) 216 218
Provision for compensated absences 26 14
Total 242 232
27 Other current liabilities
Provision for income tax (nct of advance tax ¥ Nil (Previous year ¥ Nil)) 23 23
Other Payables
- Statutory dues payable (Contributions to PF, withholding taxes, sales tax, service tax, etc) 289 2,025
- Net Insurance and maintenance rescrves of operating leasce - 32
- Contract liabilities 537 483
- Provision for cxpenscs 408 361
- Other Payables i !
Total 1,258 2925
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63032MI11995PLCU86014

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 3% Mareh 2022
(AH amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended

31 March 2021

28

28.1

28.

(8]

283

Revenue from operations

Sale of products

Spares and Consumables 1,608 1,343
Sale of services

Operating leases on vehicles 24,922 25,250
Car rentals 11,713 6,855
Car rental - self drive 1,768 1,364
Business wansport solutions 7,077 7,608
Service centre revenue 204 145
Maintepanee revenue 981 878
FMS revenue 1,687 1,249
Other operating revenue

Income on pre termination of lease 143 23
[nsurance commission 311 213
Total revenue from operations 50,414 44,988
Tndia 50,414 44,988
Outside India - -
Total revenue from operations 50,414 44,988
Timing of revenue recognisation

Goods transferred at a point in time 1,608 1,343
Services transferred over thime 48,806 43,645
Total revente from operations 50,414 44,988
Contract balances

Tradc receivables 7,515 6,200
Contract assets 854 966
Contract liabilitics 537 483

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days. In March 2022, X 448 (March 2021: X 515) was recognised as

provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables.

Contract assets relates to revene carned from Business transport solutions. As such, the balances of this account vary and depend on the services provided

at the end of the year.
In March 2022, ¥ 5 (March 2021: % 6 ) was recognised as provision for expected credit losses on contract assets.

Contract liabilites includes deferred revenue.

Amount of revenue recognised from :

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

Amount inctuded in contract liabilites at the beginning of the year 483
Performance obligations satistied in previous years 483

Right of return assets and refund liabilities

Right on returm assets -
Refund liabilities
Arising from retrospective volume rebates -
Arising from rights of return -

666
666

Total ) -
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63832MI11995P1.CO86014

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
28.4 Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the Statement of Profit and loss with the contracted

price
Revenue as per contracted price 50,414 44,988
Adjustment
Discount - -
Total revenuc from operations 50,414 44,988

28.5 Performance obligation

Car rental

For certain contracts, the performance obligation is satisfied over time. In this contract advance is received before the complition of service.

Operating leascs on vehicles

The performance obligation is satisfied over time and payment is generally due upon receipt of bill by customer.

The transaction price allocated to the vemaining performance obligations (unsatistied or partially unsatistied) as at 31 March are, as follows:

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Within one year - -
More than one year - -

29 Other income

Interest inconte on:

Bank deposits 14 5
Loans and advances 83 85
Security deposits-premises 11 15

Other non-operating income

Sundry bakances written back 116 130
Management fees 538 538
Rental income 134 134
Discount- business transport solutions vendors 144 H3
Profit on sale of vehicles 199 536
Miscellaneous income 337 389
Total 1,576 1,945
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st

Digitally signed by
SA JAY SANJAY BACHCHANI

g};\c H CH AN ] Date: 2022.07.29

19:15:26 +05'30"



ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63032MI11995PLCO86014

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
30 Caost of material consumed
Spare parts, accessories
Inventory at the beginning of the year 6 29
Add: Purchases 1,485 1,207
1,491 1,236
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 33) (&)
Total 1,458 1,230
34 Employee benefit expenses
Salaries and wages 6,258 6,686
Contribution to provident and other funds 458 455
Gratuity expenses (refer note 37) 165 192
Staft welfare expenses 140 101
Total 7,021 7,434
32 Iinance cost
Interest expense on financiat liabilities 5,000 5,598
Interest on lease liability (Refer note no. 38) 97 84
Other borrowing costs 355 474
Total 5,452 6,156
33 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation on property, plant and equipments (refer note 02) 20,861 21,989
Amortisation of right-of-usc asscts (refer note 04) 268 282
Amortization on other intangible assets (refer note 03) 134 132
Total 21,263 22,403
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63032MHI1995PLCU86014

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

34 Other expenses

Contract labour / chauffeurs cost

Service station labour cost

Car hire charges for car rental

Vehicle hire charges for business transport sofution
Rent

Electricity

Travelling and conveyance

Communication expenses

Professional and legal fees

Vehicle running expenses

Repairs and majntenance :

- Building

- Machinery

- Others

Insurance premium

Rates and taxes

Directors' sitting fees

Printing and stationery

Software maintenance expenses

Freight & forwarding charges

Expected credit losses - trade receivables, advances and deposits
Bad debis written of

Corporale social responsibility expenditure (refer note (i) below)
Loss / veversal on NRV

Payment to the auditor {refer note (ii) below)
Miscellaneous expenses

Total

(This space have been intentionally left blank)

1,811 1,933
90 74
2,773 610
5,126 4,644
143 189
102 97
159 126
157 212
464 516
1,932 1,481
i 1
55 53
1,070 836
1,404 1,342
637 421
7 8
33 22
455 343
30 16
148 108
11 -
- 50
(148) 75
62 69
1,078 661
17,600 13,887
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63032MII1995PL.CO8601 4

Notes to the financial statements {or the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwisce)

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended

3 March 2021

34 Other expenses (Continted)

Notes :
1) Details of corporate social responsibility expenditure (CSR) :

a) Gross amount required to be spent by Company during the year

b) Amount approved by the Board 1o be spend during the year

¢) Amount spent during the year ending on 31st March 2022 :
1. Construction/acquisition of any assct

2. On pwrposes other than (1) above

Total

d) Amount spent dwring the year ending on 31st March 2021 :.

1. Construction/acquisition of any asset
2. On purposes other than (1) above

Total

¢) Details realted to spent/unspent obligations:

i) Contribution to Public Trust
i) Contribution to Charitable Trust

2) Payment to Auditors:
As auditor
Audit fees
In other capacity :
Other services (certification fees)

Total

(This space have been inteationally left blank)

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

- 50

- 50

In Cash Toral
In Cash Total
-50 -50

50 50

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

- 50
59 66

3 3
62 [
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63632MH1995PLCU86414

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounts are in INR Lalhs, except as stated otherwise)

Income taxes and Deferred taxes

hicome taxes

() The major component of income tax expenses for the year ended:

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Current income tax:
Current income tax charge
Adjustments in respeet of current income tax of previous year

Deferred tax:
Deferred tax expense
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss

() Amounts recognised in other comprebensive income

Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans

(v) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit

Accounting profit before tax
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate

31 -
(75) -

(48) (1,040
(92) (1,040)

Tax (expense) benefit

Tax {expense) benefit

(49)

“9)

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating (axable income:
Corporate social responsibility expenditure

Current tax expenses relating to prior years

Other

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss

(804) (4,177
(202) (1,051)
- 13
(75) -
185 @
(92) (1,040)

The applicable Indian corporate statutory tax rate for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 is 25.168%.
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63032MH1995P1L.C086014

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 3% March 2022
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

Deferred tax and Current tax

%)
wn

Deferred Taxes

(d) Reconciliation of deferred tax asset

31 March 2022

Net balance  Recognised in Recognised Net Deferred tax Deferred tax
Avpril 1, 2021 profit ox loss in OCY asset liability
Deferred tax asset
Depreciation 6,909 402 - 7311 7,381 -
Provisions 342 32 - 374 374 -
Expected Credit Losses 173 (57) - 116 116 -
Maintenance linked Reserves (MLL) 187 20 - 207 207 -
Carry forward loss 317 317 - - - -
Ind AS Adjustments
Lcasc rental Straightlining (85) 85 - 0 0 -
Effective interest rate on Borrowings 0 30 - 30 30 -
Employee benefits P&L (72) (7) - 79 - (2))]
Employee benefits OCI 72 - 7 79 9 -
Discounting of security deposits paid for prer 1y 1 - 0 0 -
Inventory Revaluation for retived vehicles 20 172 - 192 192 -
Right-of-use assets 242 (291) - 49 - (49)
Others 21 21y - - - -
Tax assets (Liabilities) 8,125 49 7 8,181 8,309 (128)
Net tax assets 8,125 49 7 8,181 8,309 (128)

31 Mareh 2021

Net balance  Recognised in Recognised Net Deterred tax Deferred tax
April 1, 2020 profit or loss in OCI assel Hability
Deferred tax asset
Depreciation 6,339 370 - 6,909 6,909 -
Provisions 292 50 - 342 342 -
Fxpected Credit Tosses 146 27 - 173 173 -
Maintenance linked Reserves (MLL) 184 3 - 187 187 -
Carry forward loss 317 - 317 317 -
Ind AS Adjustments
Lease rental Straightlining 0 (85) - (85) - (85)
Effective interest rate on Borrowings 0 - - 0 0 -
Employee benefits P&L (121) 49 - (72) - (72)
Employee benefits OCT 121 (49) 72 72 -
Discounting ot sceurity deposits paid for prer 2 3) - (1) - (§3)
Inventory Revaluation for retired vehicles 1 19 - 20 20 -
Right-of-use assets 171 71 - 242 242 -
Others - 21 - 21 21 -
Tax assets (Liabilities) 7.135 1,039 (49) 8,125 8,283 (158)
Net tax assets 7.135 1,039 (49) 8,125 8,283 (158)

The company offscts tax assets and fiabilitics if and only if it has a legally cnforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilitics and the
deferred tax asscts and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Significant management judgment is required in determining provision for income tax, deterred income tax assets and liabilities and vecoverability of
deferred income tax assets. The recoverability of deferred income tax assets is based on estimates of taxable income in which the refevant entity operates
and the period over which deferred income tax assets will be recovered.

The applicable Indian corporate statutory tax rate for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2022 is 25.168%

During the previous year under Income tax, option is provided to Corporates to choose tax rate i.c. cither 25.168% including Surcharge and Cess without
claiming any deduction and exemption available in IT Act or 34.944% including Surcharge and Cess with claim of eligible deductions and exemptions
available in Income Tax Act. Company has opted for first option i.c. 25.168% without claiming any deductions and excmptions.

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is probable, that some portion, or all, of the deferred tax assets will be
realised. The ultimate realisation of deferred tax asscts is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which the
wemporary ditferences become deductible. Management considers the projected future taxable mcome and tax planning strategies in making this
assessment. Based on the level of historical taxable income and projections for future faxable incomes over the periods in whicl the deferred tax assets are
deductible, management believes that it is probable that the Company will be able to realise the benefits of those deductible differences in future.
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Scrvices Limited
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwisc)

36

Earnings per equity share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable fo equity holders of the Company. by the weighted average number of
Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for tie year attributable to equity holders of the Company, by the weighted average number of!
equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all dilutive potential
equity shares into equity shares.

As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Profit after tax attributable 1 equity shareholders (735) (2,990)
Weighted average number of equily shares used for computing earing per share (Basic/diluted) 12,79.96,498 12,79,96,498

Basic and diluted earnings per share (nominat vatue - T 10 per share) (0.57) (2.34)
Face value per share (%) 10 10

Earnings per share (EPS) caleulation is in accordance with Ind-AS 33 - Eavning Per Share.

Weighted average number of shares is the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year adjusted by the number of equity shares issued
during year, multiplied by the time weighting factor. The time weighting factor is the number of days for which the specific shares are oufstanding as a
proportion of total number of days during the year.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

37 Gratuity and other post-employement benetit plans
The Company contributes to the following post-employment defined benefit plans in India.
U] Defined Contribution Plans:
The Company makes contributions towards provident fund, superannuation fund and other retirement benetits to a defined contribution retirement benefit
plan for qualifying employees. The Company also contributes to Employees State insurance.
The Provident fund and the state defined contribution plan are operated by Employees Providend Fund Organisation. Under the scheme, the Company is
required to contribute a specified percentage of payvoll cost to the retivement benifit / scheme to fund the benefits,
For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Contribution to provident fund 339 344
Contribution to super annuation 54 5t
Contribution to EST 26 34
Contribution to national pension scheme 39 26
Labour welfare fund 0 1
Total 458 456
(i)  Defined Benefit Plan:

The Company has defined benefit plan. The Company makes annual contributions to the Group Grawity cum Life Assurance Schemes administered by the
Life Insurance Corporation of India, a funded defined benefit plan for qualifying employees. The scheme provides for payment as under:

i) On normal retirement / early retirement / withdrawal / resignation:

As per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 with vesting period of 5 years of service.

1) Ou death in service:

As per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 without any vesting period.

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation for gratuity were carried out as at 31 March 2022,

The present value of the defined benetit abligations and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit
Credit Method.

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table scts out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the
Company's financial statements as at Balance sheet date:

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Gratuity Funded
Detined benefit obligation 1,761 1,573
Fair value of plan assets 1,195 1,202
Net defined benefit (obligation)/assets 566 371
Nogn-current 350 153
Current 216 218

Movement in net defined benefit (asset) / lability

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (asset) / liability and its components

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Gratuity Funded

Defined benefit obligation

Opening balance 1,573 1,653

Included in profit or loss

Currenl service cost 139 166

Interest cost 110 113
1,822 1,932

Included in OCT

Remeasurement loss / (gain): [£))) “47)

Actuarial loss / (gain) 57 (120)
1,848 1,765
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37

(i)

Employee benefit

Defined Benefit Plan:

B. Movement in net defined benefit {asset) / liability

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Gratuity Funded

Other

Contributions paid by the employer
Benefits paid

Closing balance

Fair value of plan asset

Opening balance

Included in profit or loss

Interest income

Included in OCI

Remeasurement gain (loss):

Actuarial pain (loss)

Demographic assumptions

Financial assumptions

Experience adjustment

Return on plan asscts excluding interest income

Other

Contributions paid by the employer
Benefits paid

Closing balance

Represented by
Net defined benefit asset
Net detfined benetit liability

C. Plan assets

Plan assets comprise the following :

87 {192)
1,761 1,573
1,202 1,270

84 87
1,286 1357
) 29
1,282 1,386
. 8

(87) (192)
1,195 1,202

566 371

566 371

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Gratuity Funded

Investment in scheme of insurance

D. Defined benefit obligations

Actuarial assumptions

The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages).

100%

100%

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Discount rate 7.23% 7.02%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.23% 7.02%
7.00% 7.00%

Salary escalation
Mortality pre retirement

Mortality post retirement
Employee turmover rate (for different age groups)

Indian Assured
Lives Mortality
(2006-08) Ultimate

N. A,
21.00% - 2.00%

Indian Assured
Lives Mottality
(2006-08) Uliimate

N.A.
21.00% - 2.00%

The estimate of future satary increases, considered in actuarial valuation takes into consideration inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors

such as supply and demand in the employment matket.

The overall expected rate of retwrn on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period over which the

obligation is to be settled.
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CIN : L63032MHI1995PLCO86014

Notes to the finanecial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al} amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

37 Employee benefit

(i} Defined Benefit Plan:

E. Reconciliation of net liability/asset

Gratuity As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Opening Balance 37 3383
Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 165 192
Expenses Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) 30 (196)
(Employer's Contribution } - )
Net lability / (Asset) recognised in the balance sheet 566 371
F. Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and loss
As at As at

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Lxpenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss for Curgent
Period

Current Service Cost

Net Interest Cost

Past Service Cost

(Expected Contributions by the Employees)

(Gains)/Losses on Curtailments And Settlements

Net Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Expenses Recognized

G. Expenses recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

139
26

166

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Expenses Recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
for Current Period

Actuarial (Gains)/losses on Obligation for the year 26 (167)
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income 4 29)
Change in Assct Ceiling - -
Net (Income)/Expense For the Period Recognized in Other 30 (196)
Comprehensive Income (OCly
H. Reconciliation of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Gratuity As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Opening Balance 526 673
Acturies losses during the year 23 (147)
Balance end of the year 549 526
1. Other Details
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Prescribed contribution for next years (12 months) 216 218
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37

@i

Employee benefit
Defined Benefit Plan:

J. Maturity Analysis of Projected Benefit Obligation : From the Fund

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reparting

1st following Ycar
2nd following Year
3rd following Year
44h following Year
5th following Year
Sum of years 6 to [0

K. Sensitivity analysis

91
73
131
173
961

43
156
64
143
880

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date 1o one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, halding other assumptions constant, would have affected

the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Gratuity Gratuity
Discount rate (1% movement) (135) 154 (113) 175
Tuture salary growth (1% movement) 153 (137) 174 (114)
Employce turnover rate (1% movement) 1 ) 20 (22)
Mortality post retirement N.A. N.A. N. A N A

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the

sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

iii. Other long term employee benefits.

Compensated absenves are payable (o employees. The charge (owards compensated absences for the year ended 31 March 2022 bused on actuatial

valuation using the projected accrucd benefit method is ¥ 365 (Previous year 31 March 2021 % 296).

(This space have been intentionally left blank)
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited
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Notes {0 the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

38 Leases
Operating lease

s whether a contract is or contains a lease. Accordingly, the definition of lease in accordance with Ind AS 17 will continue

The Company will not reass
to be applied to tease contracts entered by the Company or modified by the Company before 01 April 2018,

b) The Company has applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment. Consequently, the Company
has recorded its leasc liability using the present value of remaining lease payments, discownted using the incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial

application and the right-of-use asset at its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date of the lease, but discounted

=

using the incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application,

¢) The Company does not recognize ROU assets and lease liabilities for leases with less than twelve months of lease term on the date of initial application.

‘The Company had taken office premises under cancellable and non-cancellable operating lease agreements that were renewable on a periodic basis at the
aption of both the lessor and the lessce. The operating lease agreements extended up to a maximum of nine years from their respective dates of incoption

d

and some of these lease agreements had price escalation clause.

As a result of ongoing pandemic, during the year 2021-22 , the lessor and the Company mutually agreed concession in rental for premises. There is a
reduction in lease payments duc to rent concussion. As these concessions are short term, the change in lease payments of R 40 is credited to profit and loss

e

account.
The company has applied the practical expedient to alt rent concessions as these concession meet the conditions of practical expedient.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities recogmised with the moventents during the period:

Particular As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Carrying amount of Right of use assets recognised and the movements during the period :
Balance at the beginming of the reporting year 730 1,038
Addition (Note 04) 673 14
Depreciation cxpenscs (268) (282}
Disposal of assct during the year o - (40)
Balance at the end of the reporting year 1,135 730

Carrying amount of leasc liabilitics and the movements during the period :

Balance at the beginning of the reporting year 885 1,180
Addition - 672 4
Deletion (40) (114
Accretion of inferest 97 84
Payments (283) (279)
Balance at the end ol the reporting year 1,331 885
Current 248 141
Non-Current 1,083 744
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Maturity analysis of undiscounted lease cash flows
Less than 6 months 169 114
6-12 months 165 92
1-2 ycars 321 186
2-5 years 773 423
More than 5 years 190 332
Total 1,618 1.147

The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is in e range of 5.89% - 8.74% with maturity between Nov 2022 (o Sept 2028

Depreciation expense of Right of use assets 268 282
Tnterest expenscs on leasc liabilitics 97 84
Expenses related to short term leases (included in other expenses) 114 160
Expenses related to lease of low value assets -

Total amount recognised in Profit or loss 479 526
Cash outflow of leascs during the ycar 283 279

The Company had total cash outflows for leases of T 283 in 31 March 2022 (¥ 279 in 31 March 2021). The Company also had non-cash additions o right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities of X 673 in 31 March 2022 R 14 in 31 March 2021).
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38

Leases

Company as a lessor

The Company is in the business of leasing vehicles. The lease term for these contracts ranges from 2 to 4 years and ave fixed and cannot be terminated
without consent of both the lessor and lessee. No purchase options are given to the lessees during or at the end of the lease term. On retirement of vehicles
from the rental business i.e. when a vehicle is not actively let oul on a lease for more than 6 months, the vehicle becomes held for sale and reclassified to
inventory. Any contingent rent is not conisdered as part of MLP as they are not resonably measured at the conmmncement of the lease and recognised in

profit and loss as income when recieved.

Risk management on the residual interest of the leasing portfolio happens through the process of RV committee. RV committee meels on a periodic basis

and determines the RV that are offered for each model.

In case ol Operating lease transaction RV commitiee decides the residual value of cach asset class. The Company has adequate expertise, data and

resources to estimate the RVs at the inception of Icase and manage the sale process at the end of lease tenor.

Category of lease

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Vchicles 24,922 25,250
The future minimum {ease renta! receivable under non-cancellable operating fease are as follows:
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Within one year 30,725 21,716
Afier one but not more than five years 45,689 24,458
Total 76,414 46,174

Company as a lessce
Finance lease

The Company has enlered into lease agreements for leasehold land and building, the land and building has been classfied as finance lease. The lease teym
is for 62 years expiring on 31 March 2068. The arrangement does not grant an extension option to the Company. Following is the carrying amount of the

leasehold buliding:

As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 202t
Gross carrying amount 3,103 3.103
Addition - -
Net carrying amount 3,103 3,103
Opening Accumulated depreciation 296 237
Depreciation for the year 59 59
Net carrying amount 2,748 2,807
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39 Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for):

i) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts

31 March 2022 31 Match 2021
Income tax 649 649
Sales tax and Value added tax 3,925 5,785
Service tax 1,204 16,295
Litigation pending against the Company 97 74
Total 5,875 22,803

The Company's pending litigations comprise of claims against the Company primarily by the customers and proceedings pending with Income Tax, Sales
Tax and Service Tax authoritics. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequatcly provided for where provisions
are required and disclosed the contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial stateents. The amount of pravisions / contingent liabilities is based
on management’s estimate, and no significant liability is expected to arise out of the same.

i) The company has veccived various claims from its customers in relation to the service rendered by it. The Company has cither vesponded ta such claims
directly to customers or filed a response with appropriate authorites, where such claims were logged by the customers, There exisis an uncertainty over the
customer of such cases, however the management is confident of favourable outcome based on the advice of its legal counscl and therefore not recorded
any provision against such claim.
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40 A. Name of related parties and related party relationship

1 Holding Company ORIX Corporation
2 Subsidiary Company ORIX leasing & Mancial services India Himited (OLFS)
ORIX Housing financial corporation India limited
3 Fellow Associate Infrastructure Leasing and Financial Services Limited
4 Key Management Personnel Mr. Sandeep Gambhir, Managing Dircctor and Chicf Exceutive Ofticer
Mr. Vivek Wadhera, Chief Financial Ofticer
Mr. Yoshiaki Matsuoka, Chairman and Director
Mr. Nagesh Dubey, Independent Director
Mr. Abhay Kakkar, Independent Director
Mr. Ryohei Suzuki, Whole time Director (from 03 September 2021)
Mr. Takashi Yamasaki, Additional Director (from 29 July 2021)
Mr. Takashi Nakayama, Director (upto 29 July 2021)
Mr. Takehiro Onishi, Additional Director
Mr. Shin Hamada, Additional Director
Ms. Meeta Sanghvi, Director

ol il ol ol ol e

A. Name of related parties and related party relationship

Holding Company ORTX Corporation
Subsidiary Company ORIX leasing & financial services India himited (OLFS)
ORTX Housing financial corporation India limited
Fellow Associate Infrastructure leasing and financial services limited
Key Management Personnel Mr. Sandeep Gambhir, Managing Director and Chief Fxecutive Officer

Mr. Vivek Wadhera, Chief Financial Otficer
M. Nagesh Dubey, Tndependent Director
Mr. Abhay Kakkar, Independent Director
Mr. Ryohei Suzuki, Whole 1ime Director
M. Jay Gandhi, Company Secretary

C Related party transactions for the year ended

Holding Key
Subsidiaries ° management  Fellow associate
company
personnel

i. Rentincome 134 - - -
(134) ) =) (=)
it.  Management fees income 538 - - -
(538) (=) ) )
iii. Intercst income on infer company current account 80 - - -
(69) (-) (<) )
iv. Finance lease vehicles transfer - - - -
(458) ) ) )
v. Interest and other expenses 13 - - -
(25) ) ) )
vi. Finance lease rental 61 - . _
(92) g ) )
vit. Finance lease addition - - - -
(75) ) ) (-)
viii. Reimbursement of administrative expenses 10 - - -
(5 ) =) )
ix. Interest expenses on ECB - 1,154 - -
) (1.154) ) -
x.  Bank guarantee & gfobal fees charges - 64 - -
¢ (62) Q] -
xi. Commitment charges - 920 - -
O] (€)) O] )
xii. Reimbursement ol salary - 33 - -
S (R2) ) )

xiii. Mr. Sandeep Gambhir, Managing divector and chicf’
executive officer - - 260 -
G ) (285) ©)
xiv. Mr, Vivek Wadhera, Chief financial officer - - 206 -
N O] ) (199) )
xv. Mr. Ryohei Suzuki, Whole time director - - 96 -
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63032MI1995PLCU86014

Noftes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

e . Holding Key .
Subsidiaries company management  Fellow associate
personnel
xvi. Mr. Jay Gandhi, Company Secretary - - 66 -
) ) (68) )
xvil. Mr. Abhay Kakkar, Independent director - - 4 -
) (-) (4 ()
xviii. Mr. Nagesh Dubey, Independent divector - - 3 -
() (-} 4 )
xix. Expenses paid on behalf of OHFC 18 - - -
(15) ) - ()
xx. Expenses towards rent and electricity - - - 60
() =) (=) (79
Figures in brackets relate to previous year.
D Balance at the end of the period
Subsidiary Holding Key  Fellow Associate
Company management
personnel
Receivable
Management charges 135 - - -
(344) ) Q] )
Rent expense 34 - - -
(34) O] ¢ (O]
Cost reimbursement 5 - - -
(1) ) Q) ()
Interest Income 80 - - -
(69) ) ) )
Other veceivable 1,021 - - -
(594) ) ) )
Pavable
Interest & other expenscs - 49 - -
) (30) ) )
ECB borrowing - 15,000 - -
Q] (15,000) ) )
Reimbursement of salary - 33 - -
O] (82) ) )
Payable towards lease assets 89 - - -
(137 ) ) )
Payable towards director sitting fees
Abhay Kakkar - - - -
) ) (€] )
Nagesh Dubey - - . -
) ) ) )
Receivable towards premises deposit paid - - - 20
) ) ) (20)
Payablc towards rent & clectricity Expenscs - - - 8
) ) ) (8)

Figures in brackets relate to previous year.

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sales to and purchases from related partics arc made on terms cquivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding
balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settiement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for
any related party receivables or payables. Tor the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables
relating to amounts owed by related parties (31 March 2021: T Nil). This assessment is undertaken cach financial year through examining the
financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.
Digitally signed by
SANJAY BACHCHANI

Date: 2022.07.29
19:33:18 +05'30°




ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63032MII1995PLCO86014

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounts are in INR Lalkhs, except as stated otherwise)

Compensation of key management personnel of the Company

31-Mar-22 3i-Mar-21

Short-term employee benefits 593 631

Post-employment gratuity and medical benefits 45 36
Termination benefits - -
Share-based payment ransactions - -

638 667

Total compensation paid to key managenient personnel
The amounts disclosed in the tuble are the amounts recognised as an expense during the reporting period related to key management personnel.

Generally, the independent directors do not receive grawity entitlements from the Company. During the year ended 31 March 2022, an amotnt

of ¥ 7 lakhs paid as divector sitting fees.
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41

Segment information

The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) been identified as the Chiet Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CEQ vegularly reviews the perfonmance veports
and make decisions about allocation of resources.

An operating segment is a companent of the company that engages in business activities from which it may eam revenue and incur expenses, for which
discrete financial information is available.

The Company is engaged in the business of providing {ransport solutions in the form of Operating Lease, Car rentals and Employee Transport solutions.
The company operales only iy one segment and thus there are no reportable segments as per Ind As 108 on Operating segiaents. Also, the Company
operates only in India and it perceives that there is no significant difference in its risks and returns in operating from ditferent geographic areas within
India.

The Company docs not disclosc separate scgment information as the external reporting information provided in these financial statements reflects internal
managenient information. Thus the asscts and results of the segment can be determined by reference to the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss

for year respectively.

Information about major customers

No revenue from single customer amounted to 10% or more of the Company's total revenuc in the year ended 31 March 2022 or 31 March 2021,

(This space have been intentionally left blank)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
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42 Fair values
Accounting classification and fair values
The carrying value of (inancial instruments by categories is as under:

Risk management on the tesidual interest of the leasing portfolio happens through the process of RV committee. RV committes meets on a periodic basis and
determines the RV that ave offered for cach modcl.

As at 31 March 2022

Amortised cost IFVTPL FVTOCI

Financial asscts

Trade receivables 7,515 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 901 - -
Bank balances other than above 334 - -
Loans 4 - -
Other financial assets 8,694 - -
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 86,832 - -
Lease liabilities 1,331 - -
Trade payables 7,938 - -
Other {inancial liabilities 6,664 - -

As at 31 March 2021

Amortised cost FVTPL. FVTOCI

Financial assets

Trade receivables 6,200 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 1414 - -
Bank balances other than above 319 - -
Loans 3 - -
Othet financial asscts 6,281 - -
Financiul liabilities

Borrowings 74,067 - -
Leasc Habilitics 884 - -
Trade payables 6,871 - -
Other financial liabilities 6.016 - -

The following assumptions/ methods were used to estimate fair values:

i The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, other current financial assets and trade payables are considered to be same as their carrying values due to their
short term nature

ii. The carrying amount of otlier items carried at amortised cost are reasonable approximation of their fair valne.

. The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instruments could be exchanged in a cursent transaction between
willing parties, other thau in a forced or liquidation sale.

Fair value hierarchy

All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed arc categorised within the fair value hicrarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is signiticant to the fair value measurement as a whole

Level L quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilitics

Level 2: valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that has a significant effect on the fair value measurement are observable, either directly or
indircetly.

Level 3: valuation techniques for which the lowest tevel input which has a significant effect on the fair value measurement is not based on observable market
data.
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42

Fair value erarchy

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities.

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hicrarchy for assets as at 31 March 2022

31 March 2022

Fair value

Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Trade receivables 7,515 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 901 . - - -
Bank balances other than above 334 - - - -
T.oans 14 - - - -
Other financial assels 8,694 - - - -
17,458 - - - -
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilites measured at amortised cost
Borrowings 86,832 - - - -
Lease habihities 1331 - - - -
Trade payables 7,938 - - - -
Other financial liabilitics 6,664 - - - -
1,02,765 - B . -
Fair value
31 March 2021 Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Financial Asse(s measured at amortised cost
Trade reccivables 6,200 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 1,414 - - - .
Bank balances other than above 319 - - - -
Loans 3 - - - -
Other financial assets 6,281 - - - -
14,217 - B B -
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilites measured at amortised cosi
Borrowings 74,067 - _ - _
Lease Habilities 884 - . - .
Trade payables 6,871 - - - -
Other financial Habilities 6,016 - - - -
87,838 - - - -
(This space have been intentionally left blank)
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1. Financial instruments ~ Fair values and risk management

A. Accounting classitication and fair values

(1) Asscts that are not linancial assets (such as prepaid expenses, advanees to suppliers cte.), are not included.

(2) In this table, the Company has disclosed the fair value of each class of financial assets and financial labilities in a way that permits the information to
be compared with their carrying amounts. In addition, it has reconciled the assets and Tabilities (o the difterent categories of financial instrumen(s as
defined in Ind AS 109, This presentation method is optional and a different presentation method may be more appropriate, depending on circumstances.
(3) Investments in subsidiaries is measured at cost in ceordance with Ind AS 27 and hence not inctuded in the table above.

{4) Fairvaluc 1s done as at the year end.

B. Measurement of fair vatues

\'aluation lechniques and significant unobservable inputs

a. Fair value of cash and bank balances. prepaid guarantee commission, other short term receivables, trade payables, other current Jiabilities, security

deposits approximate their carrying amousnts largely due to short term malturitics of these instruments.

b. The following tables show the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values, as well as the significant unobservable inputs

used.

TFinancial instruments measured at fair value

Type Valuation technique

Fixed rates long tenm borrowings The valuation model considers present value of expected payments discounted using an
appropriate discounting rate.

Sceurity deposits for premises The valuation mode! considers present value of cxpeoted payments discounted using an
appropsiate discounting rate.
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42

Financial instruments — Financial risk management obejetives and policies

The Company’s principal tinancial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, wade and other payables. The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and 1o provide guarantees to support its operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include
trade and other reccivables, security deposits, cash and cash cquivalents, bank balances that derive direetly from its operations.

Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the tollowing risks arising from financial instruments:
= Market risk ;

= Interest rate risk ;

« Foreign cmrency risk ;

= Credit risk ; and

= Liquidity risk

Risk management framework

The Company’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework.

The Company’s risk management policics are established to identity and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to sct appropriate risk limits and controls and
10 monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly 1o reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company’s activities. The Campany, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices ~ will affect the Company’s income or the
value of its holdings of financial instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency receivables
and payables and long term debt.

The sensitivity analyses have been preparcd on the basis that the amount of net debr, the ratio of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt.

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying valucs of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the
non-financial assets and liabilities of foreign opevations. The analysis tor the contingent consideration liability is provided in Note 39,

The assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective
market visks. This is based on the financial assets and financial Habilities held at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

i. Interes( rate risk
Intorest rate risk is (he risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates primarily to the Company's borrowings with tloating intevest rates.

Exposure to interest rate risk
Company’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings. The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans
and borrowings. The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to the management of the Company is as follows.

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Interest bearing financial liabilities
Fixed rate borrowings
Term Loan from Banks 15,625 7,500
‘Term loan from Parent Company (ORIX Corpoartion-Japan) 15,000 15,000
Lease liabilities 1,331 885
Security Deposits 209 204
Total 32,165 23,589
Variable rate borrowings
Term Loan from Banks 25,083 30,332
Short Term Loan From Banks 1,000 -
Cash Credit and Overdraft facilities From Banks 619 -
Working capital Demand Loan 29,500 21,100
Book Overdraft 3 125
Total 56,205 51.557
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42 Financial instruments — Financial risk management obejctives and policies

Interest bearing financial assets

As at

31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Fixed Rate

Bank Deposits 334 322
Loan to Employees 14 3
Security Deposits 513 410
Total 861 735

Variable Rate
Receivable on account of cost recoveries 1,275 1,042
Total 1,278 1,042

i. Interest rate risk

Fair valuc sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments

The Company does not account tor any fixed-rate tinancial as
the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

ets or financial Habilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on the affected portion of loans and borrowings. The Company’s

profit before tax is affected through the impact on floaling rate borrowings, as follows:

104 bp increase

Profit or (loss)

100 bp decrease

As at

31 March 2022

Variable-rate instruments (549) 549
Cash flow sensitivity (net) (549) 549
As at

31 March 2021

Variable-rate instruments (505) 505
Cash flow sensitivity (net) (505) 505

The risk estimates provided assume a parallel shift of 100 basis points interest rate across all yield curves. The sensitivity has been calculated assuming the

borrowings outstanding at the reporting date have been outstanding for the entire reporting period.

ii) Foreign Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Company’s expasure 1o the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily 1o the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is
denominated in a foreign currency) and the Company’s net investments in foreign subsidiaries

The Company has its revenues and other transactions in its functional currency i.e. INR except immaterial expenditure in foreign currency. Accordingly the
Company has no material exposurce to currency risk as on 31st March, 2022
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Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Continued)

ifi. Credit risk
Credit risk is the visk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial inshument fails to meet its contracrual obligations, and arises
principally from the Company's receivables from customers and loans and advances.

The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from Operating Lease, Rent-a-car and business transport solutions receivables.

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics ot each customer.

a, Amounts arising frem ECI,

i. Inputs, assumptions and techuiques used for estimating impairment on Operating Leasc, Rent-a-car and business transport solutions receivables

Assumption and Estimation technigues considered in the ECL modck:

- “Loss given default” (1.GD) is an estimate ol toss [rom a transaction given that a default ocowrs.

- "Probability of default” (PD) is detined as the probability of whether the borrowers will default on their obligations in the future. Stage 3 assets are considered to
have a 100% PD.

- “Exposure at default" (EADY represents the expected exposure in the event of a default and is the gross camying amount in case of the financial assets held by
the Company.

The ECL has been computed on trade receivables in accordance with simplified approach based on days past due buckets of respective portfolios. The days past
duc has been adjusted to give cffect to following:

- the time lag between the raising of invoices and handing it over to the customer.

- the credit period mentioned in respective invoice

- the time lag incorporated for Cac Rental and Business Transport Sotution ('BTS') is 90 days. *

- the probuability of default is based on the historical trends of impairment of trade receivables. The historical trends are adjusted with macro economic factors 1o
make it forward looking.

- Toss given default is based on the recovery patter for the default clients, as well as Basel guidelines.

-Given the economic scenario, an additional LGD of 5% has been factored in for Car Rental and BTS

-The company categorises receivables into stages based on the days past due staws adjusted to give effeect of credit period and time lag for invoicing.

Davys past due

Stave Operating Lease * Car Rental * Business Others
= Transport
Solution

Stage 1 0-30 0-120 0-120 0-30

Stage 2 31-90 120-180 120-180 31-%0

Stage 3 More than 90 More than 180 More than 180 More than 90
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwisc)

iii. Credit visk

b. Amounts arising {rom ECL

Forward looking information:

The below table shows the values of forward looking macre economic variable used in each of the scenarios for the ECL calculation. For this purpose the
Company has used the data source of Economist Intelligence Unit. GDP has been used as a macro economic factor to caleulate the forward looking probablities
of defanlt. The upside and downside % change has been derived using historical standard deviation from the base scenario.

Sccnario Weights have been arrived at taking into consideration product characieristics and prevailing macro-cconomic conditions. Given the cconomic
conditions, the worst case scenario weights have been increased for Car Rental. This is basis management's estimation of the matket scenario and related impact
on product-specific portlolio guality.

Probability assigned

ECL Scenario - 31 March 2022 Business
Operating Lease Car Rental Transport

Solution

Best Case 21.20% 21.20% 21.20%
Base Case 68.20% 48.40% 68.20%
Waorst Case 10.60% 30.40% 10.60%

Probability assigned

ECL Scenario - 31 March 2021 Business
Opcrating Lease Car Rental Transport

Solution

Rest Case 21.20% 21.20% 21.20%
Base Case 68.20% 48.40% 68.20%
Worst Case 10.60% 30.40% 10.60%

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk:
As the simplified approach has been followed, there would not be any assessment of signiticant increase in credit risk.

Definition of default

A default on a financial asset is when the counterpasty fails to make the contractual payments within 180 days of raising the invoice for rent a car and business
transport solutions portfolios. For operating lease receivables portfolio, the same would be within 90 days from the due date of the rental. This definition of
default is determined by considering the business environment in which the company operates and other micro-cconomic factors.

Policy for write-off of receivables
The management reviews trade receivables and expected credit losses on the same periodically. Basis past experience and management's expectations about the
collectebility of receivables, receivables are written off in the statement of profit and loss.
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iii. Credit risk

b. Amounts arising from ECL

it Kxposure at default and Loss allowance

Expeosure at default

31 March 2022 Ol RAC Business Others Total
Transport
Solution
Stage | 1.547 3,382 1,440 6,501 12,870
Stage 2 245 34 30 32 341
Stage 3 482 206 292 82 1,062
Total 2274 3,622 1,762 6,615 14,273
Loss Allowance o 81 124 159 98 458
31 March 2025 OL RAC Business Others Total
Transport
Solution
Stage | 1,400 2011 1,074 4,288 8,773
Stage 2 649 90 7 94 840
Stage 3 359 413 333 123 1,228
Total 2,408 2,514 1,414 4,505 10,841
Loss Allowance 37 225 165 103 529
Loss allowance
The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade and other receivable during the year was as follows:
As at As at

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Operating Lease

Balunce as the beginning of the year
Impairment loss recognised (nct)
Balance as al the year end

RAC

Balance as the beginning of the year
Impairment loss recognised (net)
Balance as at the year end

BTS

Balancc as the beginning of the year
Impairment loss recognised (net)
Balance as at the year end

Others

Ralance as the beginning of the year
Tmpairment loss recognised (net}
Balance as at the year end

Total Loss alfowance

There is no material concentration of Joss allowance at any perticular geographic area.
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42 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk managenient

iv. Liquidity risk

Liquidity visk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficutty in meeting the obtigations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
detivering cash or another fimancial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is. that it will have sufficient liquidity to mect its Habilities
when they are due, under both normal and siressed conditions. without incwrring unacceptable fasses or risking damage (o the Company’s reputation.
The Company closely monitors it's liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. The Company manages liquidity risk by
maintaining borrowing Labilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, profile of financial assets and liabilities. It maintain
adequate source of financing including loans from bank at optimise cost.

Ma(urity profile of financial asscts and Habilitics
The following arc the remaining contractual maturitics of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted and
include cstimated interest payments.

Contractual cash tlows

31 March 2022 Carrying Total Less than  6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5years  More than.
amount 6 months 5 years

Non-derivative financial assets

Trade receivables 71515 7,515 7.515

Cash and cash equivalents 9 91 901

Bank balances other than above 334 334 334

Loans 14 14 14

Other financial agsets 8.694 8,694 4,099 1,201 1,742 1,611 41

Total : 17,458

Contractual cash flows

21 March 2622 Carrying Total Less than  6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5 years  More (han‘
amount 6 months 5 years

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Borrowings 86,832 95,010 31,478 23,967 20,430 19,135 -

Lease liabilitics 1,331 1,331 124 124 241 663 179

Trade payables 7,938 7,938 7,938

Other financial liabilitics 6,664 6,664 6,584 12 11 a7 -

Total :

Contractual cash flows

31 March 2021 Carrying Total Less than  6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5years  More than
amount 6 months 5 years

Non-derivative financial assets

Trade reccivables 6,200 6,200 6,200

Cash and cash equivalents 1414 1414 1.414

Bank balances other than above 319 319 ile

Loans 3 3 3

Other financial assets 6,281 6,281 3,341 ™ 1,020 1,088 41

Total : 14,217

Contractual cash flows

‘ot Less the 12 S -2 years 2-5 year: Mare the
31 March 2021 Carrying Total ess than  6-12 months 1-2 years vears ore than
amount 6 months S years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings 74,067 80,421 40,649 7,716 10,023 22,033 -
Lease liabilities 885 835 80 61 131 311 302
Trade payables 6,871 6,786 6,786
Other financial liabilities 6,016 6,016 5,963 7 7 39 -
Total : 8

The gross inflows/(outflows) disclosed in the above table represent the contractual undiscounted cash flows relating to the financial liabilitics.
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43 Capital Management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are 1o (a) maximisc sharcholders value and provide benefit to the stakeholders and (b) maintain an

optimal capital structure 1o reduce the cost of capital.

The Company monitors capital using a ratio of “adjusted net debt” to "adjusted equity”. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total
Habilities,comprising interest bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Equity comprises all components of equity.

As af As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Non-Current Borrowings 39,377 28,510
Current Borrowings 31,124 24,235
Current maturity of long term debt 16,331 24322
1ease liabilities {vefer note 38) 1,331 884
Gross Debt 88,163 74951
Less - Cash and Cash Equivalents o1y (1,414)
Adjusted Net debt 87,262 73,537
Total equity 51,812 52,547
1.68 1.40

Adjusted Net debt to adjusted equity ratio
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44 Ratio Analysis and ifs elunents
Rativ Numerator Denominator Asal Asat % chiange Renark
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Curzent Ratio Currenl Assels Current Liabilites .32 0.33 -1.25%
Debt - Rquity Ratio Total Nebts Sharcholder's Fquity 6.78 539 17.23%
Debit Service Coverage ratio Larnings tor debt service = Net profit Debt service = interest & Lease 49 048 L33%
after taxes tNan-cash operating Payments ~Deincipal Repayments
expens
Reaurn on Fguity ratio Net Profit after faxes - Preference Average Sharchotder's Equity -5.50% S2481% 77.31% Incraase in the radio on

Dividend

account of reduction i
Toss incurred during the
year,

Inventory Turmover raatio Cost of goods sold Average Inventory 6641 5482 24 04%
Trade Reeeivable Turnover ratio Net credit sales — Gross credit sales - Average Trade Receivables 1.86 443 17.57% Increase i ratio on
Sales returm account of increase it
revenue and decrease n
receivables in - current
year
Trade Payable Tuvoover ratio Net credit purcly oss credit Average Trade Payables .20 14 40.01% Increase  in vatio on
purchases - Purchase return account of decrcase i
payables
Net Capital Turcaver Ratio “atal sales - sales return Warking capital = Current assets « (1.20) (1.13) -6.59%
Current fiabilitics
Net Prolit raiio Nel Prolit Net sates = Total sales ~ sales refurn -1.37% -6.68% 79.51% lacrease in the ratio an
aceount of reduction i
lass incurred during the
y
Retrm on Capital Employed Tarningss before inferest and taxas Capital Employed = Tangible Ney 2.91% 1.43% 103.93% Inerease  in ratio on
Worth +Total Debts +Deferred Tax accownt of increase in
Liabifity carnings and increase in
capital employed
Return on investment interest (Finance income) Investment 0.03% 0.01% 168.65% Increase in  ratio on
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63032MH1995PL.C0OR6014

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in INR Lalkhs, except as stated otherwise)

45 Other Statutory Information
i) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.
ii) The Company do not have any trasactions with companies struck off.

iii) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

=

iv
v) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign enticies (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the intcrmediary shall ©
a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalt of the company (Ultimate
Benificiaries) or
b) provide any guarantee, security or the like (0 or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall

Vi)

=

a) dircetly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsocver by or on behali of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or
by provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
vii) The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in the tax assessments unde the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

viii) The Companty has not been declared wilful defanlter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN 1 U63032MH1995P1L.C086014

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in INR Lakhbs, except as stated otherwise)

46 Repayment schedule of long term borrowing :

Loau as on 31 March 2022 are vepayble as stated blow

Interest Rate 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-5 years Tatal
Floating
Monthly 7.40% - 9.15% 1,277 1,277 532 3,086
Quarterly 7.40% - B.15% 5,089 3,750 1,563 10,402
Fixed
Mounthly 6.30% 1,875 1,875 - 3,750
Quarterly 6.25% 4,000 3,000 - 7,000
Bullet Payment 7.69% - 15,000 - 15,000
Total 12,241 24,902 2,095 39,238
Loan as on 31 March 2021 are repayble as stated blow

Interest Rate 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-5 years Total
Floating
Monthly 7.65% - 9.15% 2,604 - - 2,604
Quarterly 7.40% - 8.15% 3,845 1,339 - 5,184
Bullet Payment .
Fixed
Monthly 6.30% L875 1,875 1,875 5,625
Bullet Payment 7.69% - - 15,000 15,000
Total 8,324 3,214 16,875 28,413

Note : Processing fees of T -0 (Previous year ¥ -2) and Interest payable on term loan of X 140 (Previous year % 98) not included in above table.
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63032MH1995PLCO86014

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(AN amounts are in INR Lakhg, except as stated otherwise)

Change in liabilities arising from financing activities

OF April 2021 Cash Flows 31 March 2022
Long term borrowing 37,832 2,875 40,707
Short term borrowing 21,110 9,392 30,502
Cash credit & overdraft facility from bank - 619 619
ECB Borrowing 15,000 - 15,000
Lease Liability on principal component 882 (187) 695
Lease liabilty Interest portion 19 (C)] (78)
Finance cost - (5,333) (3,335)
Total 74,843 7,247 82,090

01 April 2020 Cash Flows 31 Mareh 2021
Long term borrowing 40,780 (8,948) 37,832
Short term borrowing 27,184 (6,074) 21,110
ECB Borrowing 13,000 - 15,000
Lease Liability on principal component 1,077 (193) 882
Lease Habilty Interest portion 103 (84) 19
Finance cost - (6,071) 6,071)
Total 90,144 (21,372) 68,772
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN ; U63032MH1995PLC086014

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

4

4
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Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under under the MSMED Act, 2006,

Based on and o the extent of the information received by the Company from the suppliers duving the year regarding their status under the Micro, Small and
Mediwm Enterprises Development Act. 2006 (MSMED Act).

As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

The principal amount and the interest duc thercon remaining unpaid to any supplicr as at the end of cach accounting
year
-Principal amount due (o micxo and small enterprises 816 164
-Interest due on above -
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of scetion 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of’ - -
the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond - -
the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specitied under the MSMED Act 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of cach accounting year - -

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues as above are actally paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible “ -
cxpenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

Fareign currency exposures not hedged by derivative insttuments are as follows:

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Amount in foreign Amountin T Amount in foreign Amountin ¥
currency curvency
Amount payable for Bank Guarantee fees (USD) 0 35 0 29
Amount payable for Bank Commitment Charges (USD) 0 15 0 1
Amgunt payable tor Reimbursement of Salary (YEN) 53 33 124 82

The Company has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts are assessed for material foreseeable losses. The Company did not enter into any
derivative transactions during the year.

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment benefits received Presidential assent in
September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the code will come into efferct has not been notified and the
final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact
in the period the Code becomes effective. Based on a preliminary assessment, the entity believes the impact of the change will not be significant.

In view of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Company has assessed the counter party credit risk in case of financial assets (comprising cash and cash equivalents,
bank deposits and investments) and considered subsequent secoverics, past trends, credit risks profile of customers in casc of trade reccivables and unbilicd
revenucs. The company while assessing Right to Usc and Investnent in subsidiarics have considered past trend. future business projections and docsn’t foresce
any significant downsizing of operations. As at the balance sheet date and period subsequent to that until adoption of financial statement, the Company has
evaluated impact of COVID 19 on its financial statements and recorded necessary adjustments if required. The Impact of COVID 19 may differ in future from
that of csthmated as at the date of approval of these tinancial statements.

There has been no other events atter the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial statement.

Value zero represent amount less than fifty thousand and (-) represent Nil,
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Seyvices Limited

CIN : U63032MH1995PLCO86014

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)
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The Supreme court of India in its judgement dated 28th February 2019, has clarified that any cmolument paid universally, necessarily and ordinarily to all
employees across the board are to be considered as basic wage and accordingly needs to be considered for caleulation of Provident Fund contribution. The
Company has been legally advised that there are interpretative challenges on the application of judgement retrospectively and as such does not consider there is

hence not acerued this obligation.

Capital commitments

As at As a(
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Capital conunitment (net of advances) 5,079 454

Previous year figures have been audited by a firm other than S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP and have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary.

As per our report of even date attached.

For S.R. Batliboi & Asseciates LLP
Cliartered Accountants
Firnt Registration No. 101049W/E300004

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of ORIX AUTO INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services
Limited (hercinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™), its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) comprising of the consolidated Balance sheet as at 31 March,
2022, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial information
of the subsidiaries, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the
Group, as at 31 March, 2022, their consolidated profit and their consolidated cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements’ section of
our report. We are independent of the Group, in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics® issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
consolidated financial statements.

Other Information

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board of Director’s report, but does not include the consoclidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. '

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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SR BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

Responsibilitics of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of thesc
consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consotidated cash flows of the Group
including in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors
of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have
been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of
the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Companies included
in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, maiters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from etror, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
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in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated {inancial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

f)  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors and whose financial information we
have audited, to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in
the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other
auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included
in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

a) We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of 1 subsidiary, whose
financial statements include total assets of Rs 2,38,209 Lakhs as at 31 March, 2022, and total revenues of Rs
25,176 Lakhs and net cash inflows of Rs 17 Lakhs for the year ended on that date. These financial statement
and other financial information have been audited by other auditors, whose financial statements, other
financial information and auditor’s reports have been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of
these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates
to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the report(s) of such other auditors

b) The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March, 2021, included in these
consolidated financial statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified
opinion on those statements on 29 July, 2021.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work
done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements and other financial information certified
by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and on the
consideration of report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial
information of the subsidiary companies, , incorporated in India, as noted in the ‘Other Matter’ paragraph we
give in the “Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) of the Order.
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2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other
auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries, as noted in the
‘other matter’ paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(2)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(©)

®

(2

(h)

iv.

We/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and reports of the other auditors;

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained
for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2021 specified under section 133 of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on
31 March, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of
the statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary companies, none
of the directors of the Group’s companies, is disqualified as on 31 March, 2022 from being appointed
as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal {inancial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, , and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;

In our opinion and based on the consideration of reports of other statutory auditors of the subsidiaries,
incorporated in India, the managerial remuneration for the year ended 31 March, 2022 has been paid /
provided by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries, incorporated in India to their directors in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinjon and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us [and based on the consideration of the report
of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial information of the
subsidiaries, as noted in the ‘Other matter’ paragraph:

i.  The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its consolidated
financial position of the Group, in its consolidated financial statements — Refer Note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements;

ii. The Group, did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term contracts including

derivative contracts during the year ended 31 March, 2022;

iii.  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Tnvestor

Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries incorporated in India
during the year ended 31 March, 2022.

a) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented
to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries respectively that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the note 45 to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have
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v)

been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries, to or in any other
person or entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
respective Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented
to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries, respectively that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the note 45 to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have
been received by the respective Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries from any person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act,
nothing has come to our or other auditor’s notice that has caused us or the other auditors to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries

companies, incorporated in India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LI.P
Chartered Accountants
[CAT Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 of report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Re: ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited (‘the Group’)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that:

(i) There are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies
(Auditors Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial
statements. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable
to the Holding Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 101049W/E300004
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ORIX AUTO INFRASTRUCTURE
SERVICES LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of ORIX Auto Infrastructure
Services Limited (hereinafier referred to as the “Holding Company™) as of and for the year ended 31
March , 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
together referred to as “the Group™), which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group, which are companies
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAD).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Conftrols Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both, issued by ICAI. These Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if' such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal f{inancial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements.
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SR BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group, which are companies incorporated in India, have, maintained in all material
respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and
such internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were operating
effectively as at 31 March, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note issued by the ICAT

Other Matters

Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company, in so
far as it relates to the 1 subsidiary which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the
corresponding reports of the auditors of such subsidiary incorporated in India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN: LU63032MHT1995PLCO86014

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022

(Alt amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as siated otherwise}

As at Asat
Notes 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
1 Assets
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 2 72,805 65,020
(b)  Otherintangible assets 3 496 615
(c) Intangible assets under development 3 96 -
(d) Righ-of-u 4 1,510 262
{¢) TFinancial assets
i. Loans 1,62,661 1,79,296
ii. Other financial assels 7,725 4,732
()  Deferred tax assets (net) 35 15,398 14,790
() Other non-curvent assets 7 12,984 8,319
Taotal non-current assets 273,675 273,634
Carrent assets
{a) Inventories 8 2,453 337
(b) Financial Assets
i. Trade receivables 9 8.666 7,393
if, Cash and cash equivalents 10 5,983 6,394
iii. Bank halances other than (if) above 1t 443 411
iv. Loans 12 41,605 42,133
v, Other financial assets 13 6,117 4,480
(c}  Other cugrent asscts 14 15,493 11,658
Total current assets 80,760 72,806
Total assets 3,54,435 3,46,440
I  Lquity and Habilities
Equity
(a) Equity sharc capital 15 12,800 12,800
(b)  Other cquity 16 62,124 61,428
Total equity 74,924 74,228
Non-current liabilities
() Yinancial liabilitics
i. Borrowings L7 139,594 1,35,540
ii. Lease liabilities 18 1,389 847
ii. Other financial abilities 19 1,221 974
(b) Net employee detined benetit liabilitics 20 878 590
{c) Other non-current Hahilities 21 1,095 1,054
Total non-current Habilitics 1,44,177 1,39,005
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
i. Borrowings 22 1,10,314 1,10,314
H. Lease labilities 23 350 193
iii. Trade payables 24
- total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 817 168
- total outstanding ducs of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 10,782 9,380
iv. Other financial liabilitics 25 11,161 9,320
(b) Net employee defined benefit liabilities 26 411 338
(¢} Other current liabililies 27 1,499 3494
TFotal current liabilities 1,35,334 1,33,207
Total equity and liahilitics 3,54,435 3,46,440
1

Summary of significant accounting policics

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached.
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63032MH1995P1L.C086014

Cousolidated statement of profit and loss for the year ended 3t March 2022
(Al amounts are in INR Laldhs, except as stated otherwise)

Not Year ended Year ended
otes 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
1 Revenue
Revenue from operations 28 75,568 78270
Other income 29 1,477 1.815
Total income 77,045 80.085
i Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 30 1,458 1,230
Employee benefit expense 31 10,282 10,728
Finance cost 32 17,159 20,8238
Depreciation and amortisation expense 33 22,159 23,350
Other expenses 34 25,695 21,539
Total expenses 76,753 77.675
III  Profit before tax 292 2410
IV Tax expenses
Current tax 35 1,313 2947
Adjustntents of tax relating 1o carlier years (1,162) -
Deterred tax (596) (2.244)
Total tax expenses (445) 703
A% Profit for the year 737 1,707
VI Other comprehensive income
A Other comprehensive incomenot be reclass to profit or loss in subsequent period
Re-measurements on defined benefit plan (53) 200
Income tax cffect 12 (48)
Total other comprehensive income n 152
VII  Total comprehensive income for the year 696 1,859
VHI Earnings per equity share (Face value ¥ 10 per share (31st March 2021 X 10 per 36
share)
Basic and diluted earning per share in ¥ 0.54 1.45
Summary of significant accounting policies 1
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these tinancial statements
As per our report of even date atached.
For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Scrvices Limited
CIN : U63032MH1995PLCO86014

Consolidated statement of Changes in Equity (SOCIE) for the year ended 31 March 2022

(A}l amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

(a) Equity share capital

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Number Amount Number Amount
Lquity share of T 10 cach Issucd, subscribed and fully
paid
Balanee at the beginning of the reporting year 12,79,96,498 12,800 12,79,96,498 12,800
Changes in Equity share capital due to prior period - - - -
errors
Restated balance 12,79.96.498 12,800 12,79,96,498 12,800
Issue of Share Capital - - - .
Balance at the end of the reporting year 12,800 12,800

() Other equity
Reserves and Surplus Otlier Reserves
eI Total
Statufory Securities General Retained Other .
: . . Comprehensive
reserve premium Reserve earnings
Income
Balance at 1 April 2020 3,527 39,985 1,856 14,984 (783) 59,569
Profit for the year - - - 1,707 - 1,707
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - 152 152
Transfer to statutory reserve 952 - - (952) - -
Balance at 31 March 2021 4479 39.985 1,856 15,739 (631) 61,428
Balance at 1 April 2021 4,479 39,985 1.856 15,739 (631) 61,428
Profit for the year - - - 737 - 737
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - 4h 41
Transier 1o statulory reserve 277 - - 277 - -
Balance at 31 March 2022 4,756 39,985 1,856 16,199 (672) 62,124
Summary of significant accounting policies 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial stalements

As per our report of even date attached.
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ORIX Aute Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63032MHI993PL.C0O86014

Consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

Year ended
31 March 2622

Year ended
31 March 2021

Operating activities

Profit before tax 292 2,410
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flow:
Depreciation of property plant and equipment and right-of-use assct 21,949 23,148
Amortisation on other intangiblc asscts 210 203
Provisions for gratvity & leave encashment 308 83
Gain on disposal of property plant and equipment (196) (537)
Financc costs (including fair value change in financial instrument) 17,127 20,816
Gain on termination of lease (45) (108)
Intcrest on lease liability 125 105
Interest income on fixed deposits 89) 116y
Provision for expected credit losses 1,364 4,099
Bad debts written oft 3,754 -
Miscellaneous expenses (sundry balances written off) 3 41
Sundry balances written back (168) (198)
Operating profit before working capital changes 44,644 49,946
Working capital adjustments:
(Increase) / Deerease in inventories (2,116} 54
(Increase)} / Decrease in trade receivable (1,202) 7,819
Decrease in loan and advances 12,387 19,279
(Tncrease) / Decrease in short term loan (10) 54
(Increase) in other financial asscts (4,724) (2,390}
{Increase) / Decrease in other assets (4,101) 3,384
Increase in provisions 0 25
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables 2,002 (3,035)
Increase in financial liabilities 2,208 3,839
Increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilities (1,806) 684
Increasce in other non current liabilities 41 80
47,320 79,739
Loss @ taxes paid (net of refund) (3,757) (3,366)
Net cash flows from operating activities - A 43,563 76,373
Investing activities
Purchase of property plant and equipment including capital advances, capital credirors and (40,495) (23,653)
capital work-in-progress
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment 9,935 12,622
Investment in fixed deposits (184) (391)
Redemption of fixed deposits 154 143
Interest income on fixed deposits 94 95
Net cash used in by investing activities - B (30,496) (11,184)
Financing activities
Proceeds from long term borrowing 62,907 61,921
Repayment of Tong term borrowing (80,102) (93.193)
Proceeds from short term borrowing 1,38,850 77,478
Repayment of short term borrowing (1,20,858) (92,152)
Proceeds from cash credit 3,378 40
(Decrease) in lease liability on principal component (280) (305)
(Decrease) in lease liabilty Interest portion (125) (105)
Finance costs (including fair value change in financial instrument) (17,127) (20,817)
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities - C (13,357) (67,133}
Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (290) (1,944)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 6,269 8,213
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year (Refer Note no. 10) 8,979 6,269
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Sexvices Limited

CIN : U63032MH1995PL.CO860T4

Consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Alt amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

Year ended
31 March 2622

Year ended
31 March 2021

Compeonents of cash and cash cquivalents

Cash on hand 71 115
Balances with banks

- in current accounts 3.603 4,032

- Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 2.309 2,230

- Cheques on hand - 17

- Book overdraft “) (125}
Total cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 10) 5979 0,269
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from finaneing activities

Lease liability

As at 01 April 2020 1,528
Cash flow (410)
Non cash changes 78
As at 31 March 2021 1,040
Asat 01 April 2021 1,040
Cash flow (404)
Non cash changes (1,103)
As at 31 March 2022 1,739

Note :
1) Cash and cash equivalent comprise of balances with banks in current account and fixed deposit accounts ( Refer Note 10)
2) The bank deposits have been kept as a security for registration with the VAT authorities of various states.

3) Refer note 47 for Change in Habilities arising from financing activities

Summary of significant accounting policies 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached.
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63032ZMHI1995PLC086014

Consolidated notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

1.1

1.2

(a)

Group information and significant accounting policies

Group information

The consolidated financial statements relate to ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited
("the Group"/ "QAIS") its subsidiaries for the year euded 31 March 2022. The Company 1s
the public company domiciled in India and is incorporate under the Companies Act, 1956
on 2 March 1995 and obtained certificate of commencement of business in 1995, The
Company’s registered office is at Plot 10.94, Marol Co. op. industrial estate, Andheri-kurla
road, Andheri (E), Mumbai-400 059, Maharashtra, India.

The Group is engaged in the business of providing transport solutions in the form of
operating lease, finance lease, car rentals, self-drive vehicles, employee transport solutions,
commercial vehicles loan and loan against property. Information on the Group’s structurc is
provided in Note 51. Information on other related party relationships of the Group is
provided in Note 40.

OHFC was incorporated on April 21, 2018 with the objective of carrying out the business of
Housing Finance Company (HFC) in India. It had also made an application to National
Housing Bank for issue of Certificate of Registration to commence the business of a HFC in
India. However, due to then prevailing unfavourable market scenario with the Non-banking
Finance Companics and Housing Finance Companies, the Board of Directors of OHFC had
approved for the withdrawal of the HFC application and accordingly the application was
withdrawn in the FY 2019-20. The Board of Directors of the OAIS had approved for merger
of the OHFC into OAIS in their meeting held on March 22, 2022, subject to approval of
shareholders, creditors and Ministry ol Corporate Affairs. Accordingly, OAIS and OHFC
are in the process of merger,

Significant Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements of the Group has been prepared in accordance with
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended f{rom time to time) and presentation requirements of
Division II of Schedule TII to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule I1I),as
applicable.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in Indian Rupee (%), which is the
functional currency of the Group. All amounts are rounded to nearest Indian Rupee (%) in
lakhs except where otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for
certain financial instruments which are measured at fair value or amortised cost at the cnd
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

These consolidated financial statements were approved by the Company's Board of Directors
and authorised for issue on 29" July 2022

The Statement of Cash Flows has been presented as per the requirements of Ind-AS 7
Statement of Cash Flows. The statement of cash flows have been prepared under indirect
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63032MHI1995PLC086014

Consolidated notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

(b)

()

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting
standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change
in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:

a)

b)

c)

d)

The financial statements of the parent and its subsidiarics have been combined on a line-
by-line basis by adding together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities,
incomes and expenses after eliminating intra-group balances/ transactions and resulting
profits in full. Unrealized profit / losses resulting from intra-group transactions have also
been eliminated except to the extent that recoverable value of related assets is lower than
their cost to the group.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared using uniform accounting
policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are presented
to the extent possible, in the same manner as the Group's separate financial statements.
Differences in accounting policies have been disclosed separately.

The difference between the cost to the Group of investment in Subsidiaries and the
proportionate share in the equity of the investee company as at the date of acquisition of
stake, if any, is recognized in the consolidated financial statements as Goodwill or
Capital reserve, as the case may be. Goodwill arising on consolidation is tested for
impairment at the Balance Sheet date.

Minority interest in net profits of consolidated subsidiaries for the period is identified
and adjusted against the income in order to arrive at the net income attributable to the
shareholders of the Group. Their share of net assets is identified and presented in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet separately. Where accumulated losses attributable to the
minority are in excess of their equity, in the absence of the contractual obligation on the
minority, the same is accounted for by the holding company.

Minority interest in net profits of consolidated subsidiaries for the period is identified
and adjusted against the income in order to arrive at the net income attributable to the
shareholders of the Group. Their share of net assets is identified and presented in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet separately. Where accumulated losses attributable to the
minority are in excess of their equity, in the absence of the contractual obligation on the
minority, the same is accounted for by the holding company.

The financial statements of the entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn
up to same reporting date as that of the group i.e. period ended 31 March 2022.

Current vs. non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

All other assets are classified as non-current.

e Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

e Hecld primarily for the purposc of trading

e Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63032MHI1995P1.C086014

Consolidated notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

(d)

(e)

A Hability is current when:

e [Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

e Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

e It 1s due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e There is no unconditional right to defer the seitlement of the liability for atleast
twelve months after the reporting period

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement
by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

The Group classifics all other hiabilitics as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are classified as non-current assets and liabilitics.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
rcalisation in cash and cash cquivalents. The Group has identificd twelve months as its
operating cycle.

Foreign currencies

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the
Group’s functional currency.

Transactions and balances:

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group at their respective
functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction and for recognition uses the
exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency as at that date.

Monetary asscts and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised
in profit or loss

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monctary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value is determined.

Fair value measurement

The Group measurcs financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value

measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
¢ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the assel

or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market

participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants g
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A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
sclling it to another market participant that would usc the assct in its highest and best usc.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

+ Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilitics

e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each balance sheet date.

The Group determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement, such as unquoted financial assets measured at fair value.

Exteral valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, unquoted financial assets,
and significant liabilities, such as valuation of unquoted investments and equity settied
employee share based payment plan. Tnvolvement of external valuers is decided upon
annually by the Company’s management. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained. The
Company’s management decides with the Group’s external valuers, which valuation
techniques and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, the Company’s management analyses the movements in the values
of assets and liabilities which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the
Group’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the Company’s management verifies the
major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation
computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Company’s management, in conjunction with the Group’s external valuers, also
compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external
sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

The Company management present the valuation results to the Board of Directors and the
Group’s independent auditors. This includes a discussion of the major assumptions used in
the valuations.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
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This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosure
are given in the relevant notes

e Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (Note 42)
e Investment in ungquoted equity shares (Note 5)
e Financial instruments (including those carricd at amortised cost) (Notc 42)

Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from confracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services
are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to
revenue from contracts with customers are provided in Note 28

The Group earns revenue primarily from providing assets on operating lease, rentals of cars
and rentals of self-drive vehicles, employee transport solutions and maintenance of vehicles.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers
in an amount that reflects the consideration which the Group expects to receive in exchange
for those products or scrvices.

Income from operations is recognized on accrual basis.
Operating lease income:

Leases in which the Group as a lessor does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Lease rental income on an
operating lease is recognized in the Statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

In respect of Maintenance Linked Leases (MLL), lease rentals arc segregated between
income for asset leased and maintenance charges. For maintenance contract, a budgeted
maintenance reserve is created and a corresponding asset as lease finance charge. The
maintenance reserve is amortised using the sum of years digit method and lease finance
charges is amortised using the Internal Rate of Return Method. The maintenance costs are
recognised and accounted for as expenses as and when incurred.

Finance lease income:

Finance income is apportioned over the period of primary lease at the Internal Rate of Return
and in respect of Loans.

In respect of Maintenance Linked Leases (MLL), lease rentals are segregated between
income for asset leased and maintenance charges. The Finance income is apportioned over
the primary lease at Internal Rate of Return Method. For maintenance contract, a budgeted
maintenance reserve is created and a corresponding asset as lease finance charge. The
maintenance reserve is amortised using the sum of years digit method and lease finance
charges is amortised using the Internal Rate of Return Method. The maintenance costs are
recognised and accounted for as expenses as and when incurred.

Income arising out of modification in Finance Lease is rccognised when the recoverability
of the same is ascertained.

Initial Direct Cost including incremental employee cost for lease is amortised as expense

over the lease period.
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Loan against hypothecation and Loan against property income:
The loan income is apportioned over the tenure at Internal Rate of Return Method.

Initial direct cost including origination fees, brokerage expenses, is amorlised as
income/expense on effective interest rate basis over the loan period. Initial direct cost
including incremental employce cost and eredit cvaluation cost is amortised as expensc over
the lease period.

Income arising out of delayed payment in Loans is recognised when they become
measurable and when it is not unreasonable to expect their ultimate collection.

Rental Income from Rent a Car (RAC):

Income carned on vehicles rented is recognised as rental income from Rent a Car. Car rental
income and service charges are recognised over the period.

Rental Income from Car Rental - Self Drive (SD):

Income earned on vehicles rented is recognised as rental income from Self Drive. Car rental
income and service charges are recognised over the period.

Business transport solutions (BTS):

Business Transport solutions income relates to services to corporates towards management
of their logistics requirements for transportation of employees. In order to provide these
setvices, the Group normally enters into arrangements with various vendors for use of
vehicles on back to back basis. Tncome is recognised over the period.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for
discounts, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes
collected from customers. In the event transaction price is revised for existing obligation, a
cumulative adjustment is accounted for.

Service centre:

Sales of automobile spare parts and accessories along with labour charges during service
/repairs of cars are accounted for on completion of jobs. Other sale of spares and accessories
are accounted for on dispatch basis.

Income on maintenance contracts included in service charges under sales and services has
been accounted on completion of service.

Other income

Other Income represents income earned from the activities incidental to the business and is
recognised when the right to receive the income is established as per the terms of the contract.

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is initially recognised for revenue earned from Business Transport Solutions
business because the receipt of consideration is conditional on successful completion of the
service. Upon completion of the service and acceptance by the customer, the amount
recognised as contract assets is reclassified to trade receivables.

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on
impairment of financial assets in section {) Financial instruments — initial recognition and

subscquent measurement.
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Trade receivables

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.c., only the
passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is duc). Refer to accounting
policies of financial assels in section (1) Financial instruments — initial recognilion and
subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received from a customer before the Group
transfers the related services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related services to the customer).

Taxes

Current tax

Income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers
whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The
Group shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using either
most likely method or expected value method, depending on which method predicts better
resolution of the treatment.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes
at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

a. When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

b. In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary dilferences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilised, except:

c. When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss 20 Digitally signed by SANJAY
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d. In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiarics, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax asscts are recogniscd
only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foresceable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
re-assessed al each reporting dale and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacied or substantively cnacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss (either in other comprchensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are
recognised in correlation (o the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax Habilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are stated at cost, less accunlated depreciation and
impairment, if any. Cost compriscs of cost of acquisition, cost of improvements and any
directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working condition for intended use.

Land and Buildings are taken on a long-term composite lease. The Group has assessed the
lease of land and building separately and concluded that both leases are finance leases in
nature.

Vehicles given by the Group under operating lease are included in property, plant and
equipment.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged on a pro-rata basis for Property, Plant and Equipment purchased and
sold during the year. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment has been provided on
the straighl-line method as per the useful lives prescribed in Schedule 1I to the Companies
Act, 2013,

The Group, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management
estimate, depreciates certain items of vehicles, plant and machinery, furniture and fixtures
over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule
II to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful lives
are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to
be used.
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Followings are the estimated useful lives of various category of assets used.

Category of assets Useful life
Leaschold improvements Over lease period
Selt-Drive vehicles 5 years
Business Transport Solution Own vehicles Over contract period
[Furniture, equipment’s to employees Block of 4 years
Furniture and fixtures 7 years
Own exccutive vehicles Over contract period
Ptant and machmery 5 years
Motor Vehicles under operating lease 5 years
Commercial Vehicles under operating lease 6 years

Fixed assets costing less than ¥ 5,000 are charged to the Statement of profit and loss in the
year of purchase.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no {uture economic benefits are expected {rom its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as separate
assets, as appropriate, only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated
with expenditure will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss at the time
of incurrence.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Intangibles arc capitalised at cost of acquisition
including cost attributable to readying the asset for use. Internally generated intangibles,
excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure for
use is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets under development are measured at the amount incurred till the asset is put
to use. This is separately disclosed under the Financial statement.

Intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
cxpected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derccognition of the assct (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the net carrying amount of the asset) is
recognised in the Statement of profit and loss in the year the asset is derecognised.

Support and maintenance payable annually are charged to the statement of profit and loss

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as finite are amortised over the useful

economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the

intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite

lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the available useful life of 6 years.
P
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Amortisation method and useful lives are reviewed periodically including at cach financial
year end. Changes in the cxpected uscful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Category of asscts | Useful life Amortisation mcthod Internally generated or acquired

Software 6 years Straight line method Acquired

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or
sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes
exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs

L.eases

The Group assesses at contract inceplion whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is,
if the contract conveys the right to conirol the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

Group as a Lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to owncrship of an assct is classificd as operating leascs. Rental income arising is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership transfer from the Group to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance
leases are recorded as receivables at the Group’s net investment in the [eases. Finance lease
income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return
on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

Group as a lessec:

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying
assets.

1) Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease
(i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liahilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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i1) Lease Liabilitics

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities
measured at the present value of Tease payments to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include fixed payments to the lessor. In calculating the present value
of lcasc payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lcasc
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change
in the lease term, a change in the lease payments.

iii) Short-term leases and leases-of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term
leases of premises (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Inventories:

Inventories comprising of stock of spare parts, accessories and vehicles retired from active
usc in busincss arc initially recognised at cost.

At the end of each reporting period, the same are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost of spare parts and accessories is artived at on "First in first out" basis.

Obsolete, defective and unserviceable stocks are provided for as and when identified based
on technical evaluation by the management.

Impairment of Non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each balance sheet date, whether there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal,
recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified,
an appropriate valuation model is uscd. These calculations are corroborated by valuation
multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value
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The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations,
which arc preparcd scparately for cach of the Group’s CGUs to which the individual asscts
are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of three
years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future
cash flows after the third year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered
by the most reccent budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash flow projections in the
budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing
rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average
growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the Group operates,
or for the market in which the asset s used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except for properties previously revalued with
the revaluation surplus {aken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in
OCI up to the amount of any previous revaluation surplus.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at cach reporting date to determine
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist
or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU’s
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since
the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount
of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been delermined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a
revaluation increase.

Provisions, Contingent liability and Contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past
events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by occurrence or non- occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group or a present
obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.
Contingent liabilitics arc disclosed in the notes.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. A contingent asset is not
recognized unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise.
When an inflow of economic benefits is probable, contingent assets are disclosed in the Ind
AS Financial Statement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised
as a finance cost.

Provisions and contingent liabilitics are reviewed at each balance sheet date.
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Retirement and other employee benefits:

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund (PF) & employee state insurance (ESIC) 18
a defined contribution scheme. The Group has no obligation, other than the contribution
payable to the provident fund. The Group recognizes contribution payable to the provident
fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution
payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the
contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after
deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the
contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is
recognized as an asset to the extent of the pre-payment.

The Group operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to
be made to a separately administered fund. The Group has taken group gratuity- cum -life
assurance scheme of Life Insurance Corporation of India.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the
projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losscs, the effcet of the assct ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return
on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or
credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur.

Past service costs and net interest calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined
benetit liability or asset, are recognised in profit or loss.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as
short-term employee benefit. The group measures the expected cost of such absences as the
additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has
accumulated at the reporting date. These are presented as cutrent liabilities in the balance
shecet.

The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months,
as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated
absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
method at the reporting date. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement
of profit and loss and are not deferred. The obligations are presented as Non-current
liabilities in the balance sheet.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets
not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
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(regular way trades) arc recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits
to purchasc or scll the assct.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subscquent measurement, financial asscts arc classified in four categorics:
e TFinancial assets at amortised cost
e Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with
recycling of cumulative gains and losses
e Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at amortised cost
A ‘Financial instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions
arc met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using (he effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables, balances with
banks, and other financial asscts.

Financial asset at FVTOCI

Financial asset is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a. The objcctive of the business modcl is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and

b. The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL

Financial asset included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at
each balance sheet at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Group recognizes interest income, impairment
losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On de-recognition of the
asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the cquity
to P&L.

Financial assets at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial assets, which does not meet
the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to classify a financial asset, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as al FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’).

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
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De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group’s consolidated
balance sheet) when:

a) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b) The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks
and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of
the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset o the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In
that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Group applics cxpected credit loss (ECL) modcl for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
risk exposure:

a. Financial assets are measured at amortised cost e.g., deposits and trade receivables

b. Leasc receivables under Ind-AS 17.

c. Contract assets and trade receivables under Ind-AS 18.

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
Trade receivables and deposits. The application of simplified approach does not require the
Group to frack changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each balance sheet date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide
for impairment loss. [Towever, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used.
If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no
longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to
recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over
the expected lile of a {inancial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime
ECL which results from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12

months after the reporting date.
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As a practical expedient, the Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss
allowancce on portfolio of its trade reccivables. The provision matrix is based on its
historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is
adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every balance sheet date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under
the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial
instruments is described below:

The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

For financial asscts measurcd as at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.c. as
an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance
reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Group does not
reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Group combines financial
instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating
an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk, to be identified on
a timely basis.

The Group does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial
assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

Financial liabilities
Initial rccognition and measurcment

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables and loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for
the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading
are recognised in the profit or loss.
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Financial liabilitics designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial datc of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109
are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses atfributable to
changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/loss are not subsequently
transferred to P&L. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
cquity. All other changes in fair valuc of such liability arc recognised in the statcment of
profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing
loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. This
category generally applies to borrowings.

De-recognition

A financial lability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Re-classification of Financial Assets

The Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition.
After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity
instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those
assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior
management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal
changes which are significant to the Group’s operations. Such changes are evident to
external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Group either begins or
ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Group reclassifies
financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date
which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in
business model. The Group does not restate any previously recogniscd gains, losses
(including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a

financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
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(x)

(s)

Segment reporting:

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision maker.

The board of directors of the Group has appointed a CEO, who assesses the financial
performance and position of the Group and makes strategic decisions of allocation of
resources. Hence, CEO has been identified as being the chief operating decision maker.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting
policies of the Group. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assels and segment
liabilities have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating
activities of the segment.

Inter-segment revenue is accounted on the basis of transactions which are primarily
determined based on market / fair value factors.

Revenue, cxpenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Group as a whole and are not
allocable to segments on reasonable basis have been included under unallocated revenue /
expenses / assets / liabilities.

Group shall report separately information about operating segment that meets criteria as
per IND AS 108.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible
to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above.

Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity sharcholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for
cvents such as bonus issue, bonus clement in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share
split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding,
without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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®

Significant accounting judgement, estimates and assumptions

In application of Company's accounting policies, which are described mn Note 2, the
directors of the company are required to make judgements, estimations, and assumptions
about the carrying value of assets and labilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision or future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods. '

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made
the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments - Company as a lessee

The Company has entered into lease agreements with lessor and has determined, based
on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term
not constituting a major part of the economic life of the commercial property and the
fair value of the asset, that it does not retains the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of these properties and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of asscts and liabilitics within the next financial
year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due
to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company.
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. Estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised prospectively.

Taxes

Deferred tax assels are recognised to the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax asscts that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies.

Provision for tax liabilities require judgements on the interpretation of tax legislation,
developments in case law and the potential outcomes of tax audits and appeals which
may be subject to significant uncertainty. Therefore, the actual results may vary from
expectations resulting in adjustments to provisions, the valuation of deferred tax assets,
cash tax settlements and therefore the tax charge in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the fyture,
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increa$d§‘a
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mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term
nature, a defined bencfit plan is highly scnsitive to in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. The parameter most subject to change
is the discount rate. Tn determining the appropriate discount rate, the management
considers the interest rates of government bonds with term that correspond with the
expected term of the defined benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables
tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary
increases and gratuily increases are based on expected [(uture inflation rates for the
respective countries.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in note 37.
Provision for trade receivable

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as
reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Estimated
irrecoverable amounts are based on the ageing of the receivable balances and historical
experience adjusted for forward-looking estimates. Individual trade receivables are
written off when management deems them not to be collectible. For details of expected
credit losses please refer note 9.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax
assets, arc reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable
amount 1s estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (‘CGU”) is the greater of its
value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset or CGU. For the purpose of impairment testing, asscts that cannot be tested
individually are accompanied together into the smallest Company of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash
inflows of other assets or Company’s of assets (‘CGU’).

Market related information and estimates are used to determine the recoverable amount.
Key assumptions on which management has based its determination of recoverable
amount include estimated long term growth rates, weighted average cost of capital and
estimated operating margins. Cash flow projections take into account past expetience
and represent management’s best estimate about future developments.

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible Asscts

Refer note 2 and 3 for estimated useful life and carrying value of property, plant and
equipment respectively. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation/amortization is
derived after determining an estimate of an asset's expected useful life and the expected
residual value at the end of its life. Management at the time the assel is
acquired/capitalized periodically, including at each financial period/year end,
determines the useful lives and residual values of Company's assets. The lives are based
on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events,
which may affect their life, such as changes in technology. The estimated uselul life is
reviewed at least annually. .
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(w)

Fair value of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance
sheet cannot be measured based on quoted price in active markets, their fair value is
measured using valuation techniques including the present valuation technique. The
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where
this is not feasible a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair value.
Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and
volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could effect the reported fair
value of financial instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of
default and expecled cash loss rates. The Company uses judgemenis in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculations based on
Company’s history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking cstimatces at
the end of each reporting period. For details of expected credit losses and its
methodology please refer note 42.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore,
it uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the
rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and
with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment

New and amended standards
Amendments to Ind AS 116: Covid- 19-Related Rent Concessions

The amendments provide relicf to Iessees from applying Tnd AS 116 guidance on lease
modification accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the Covid-
19 pandemic. As a practical expedient, a lessee may elect not to assess whether a Covid- 19
related rent concession from a lessor is a lease modification. A lessee that makes this
clection accounts for any change in lcase payments resulting from the Covid- 19 related rent
concession the same way it would account for the change under Ind AS 116, if the change
were not a lease modification.

The amendments are applicable [or annual reporting periods beginning on or aller the 1
April 2020. In case, a lessee has not yet approved the financial statements for issue before
the issuance of this amendment, then the same may be applied for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after the 1 April 2019.

Amendments to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 8: Definition of Material

The amendments provide a new dcfinition of material that states, “information is material
if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose [inancial statements make on the basis of (hose
financial statements, which provide financial information about a specific reporting entity.”

The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information, either individually or in combination with other information, in the context of
the financial statements. A misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be
expecled to influence decisions made by the primary uscrs. These amendments had no
impact on the consolidated financial statements of, nor is there expected to be any future
impact to the Company.
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These amendments arc applicable prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after the
April 01, 2020. The amendments to the definition of material are not expected to have a
significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Amendment to Schedule 11

The Company has considered the amendments to Schedule IIT of the Companics Act 2013
notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) via notification dated March 24, 2021,
in the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements disclosures, wherever applicable.

Amendment to Ind AS 105, Ind AS' 16 and Ind AS 28

The definition of “Recoverable amount™ is amended such that the words “the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use™ are replaced with “higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use”. The consequential amendments are
madc in Ind AS 105, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 28.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2: Amendments to Ind AS 109, Ind AS 107,
Ind AS 104 and Ind AS 116

Thc amendments provide temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting effects
when an interbank offered rate (IBOR) is replaced with an alternative nearly risk-free
nterest rate (RFR).

The amendments include the following practical expedients:

A practical expedient to require contractual changes, or changes to cash flows that are
directly required by the reform, to be treated as changes to a floating interest rate, equivalent
to a movement in a market rate of interest.

Permit changes required by IBOR reform to be made to hedge designations and hedge
documentation without the hedging relationship being discontinucd.

Provide temporary relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable
requirement when an RFR instrument is designated as a hedge of a risk component

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company. The
Company intends to use the practical expedients in future periods if they become applicable.

Conceptual framework for financial reporting under Ind AS issued by ICAI

The Framework is not a Standard and it does not override any specific standard. Therefore,
this does not form part of a set of standards pronounced by the standard-setters. While, the
Framework is primarily meant for the standard-setter for formulating the standards, it has
relevance to the preparers in certain situations such as to develop consistent accounting
policics for arcas that arc not covered by a standard or where there is choice of accounting
policy, and to assist all parties to understand and interpret the Standards.

The amendments made in following standards due to Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting under Ind AS, includes amendment of the {ootnote to the definition of an equity
instrument in Ind AS 102- Share Based Payments, footnote to be added for definition of
liability i.c. dcfinition of liability is not revised on account of revision of definition in
conceptual framework in case of Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets, etc.

The MCA has notified the Amendments o Ind AS consequential to Conceptual Framework
under Ind AS vide notification dated June 18, 2021, applicable for annual periods beginning
on or after April 1, 2021. Accordingly, the Conceptual Framework is applicable for
preparers for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 .
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2 Property, plant and equipnent ¥

Vebicles given

Buildings undcer Leaschold Plant and Furnitere and s Data processing Office . -

- . - Vehicies . . under Operating Total

finance lease* cquipurents lixtures equipments cquipments lease
Gross block
As at 01 April 2020 3,144 866 12 215 22,876 1,157 471 98,735 1.27.476
Additions - - - 9 981 39 1o 20,299 21304
‘Fransfers - - - - - - - (5,167) (5.167)
Dispasals - - - 4 9,750 - 7 21,888 31,655
As at 31 March 2021 3.144 860 12 220 14,10) 1,216 480 91.979 112,018
As at 01 April 2021 3,144 866 12 padi] 14,11 1,216 480 91,979 112,018
Additions - - 3 19 2,299 86 35 36,654 39.096
Transfers - - - - - - - (1.877) (1,877)
Disposals - 26 - 27 3,240 118 66 24,985 28,462
As at 31 Match 2022 3144 840 15 212 13,160 1,184 449 1,601,771 1,20.775
Accumulated depreciation
As at 01 April 2020 240 570 10 mn 9,732 774 309 37,251
Charge for the year 60 136 1 34 3,613 157 75 18,662
Transfers - - - - - - - (3,705)
Disposals - - - 3 6,748 - 8 14,273

s at 31 March 2021 200 706 Il 142 6597 931 376 37,933 46,998

As at 01 April 2021 300 06 1 142 6,597 931 376 37,935 46,998
Charge for the year 60 ¥0 1 3% 2,561 133 74 18,626 21,573
Transfers - - - - - - (1,497 (1,497)
Disposals - 13 - 24 2,198 107 65 16,697 19,104
As at 31 Varch 2022 360 773 12 156 6,960 957 385 38,307 47,970
Net hook value
As at 31 March 2021 2.844 160 ) ™ 7.504 285 104 54,044 05,020
As at 31 March 2022 2,784 67 3 56 6,200 227 64 63,404 72,805

# The Group has neither revalued nor impaired it's Property, plant and equipmant during the year ended on 31 March 2022 and 3t March 2021

* This includes leaschold land.
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited
CIN ; U63032MHI1995PLCO86014

Consolidated notes to the tinancial statements as at 31 March 2022

(Al amounts are in INR Lalkhs, except as stated otherwise)

3 Other intangible assets #

Software Total
Gross block
As at 01 April 2020 927 927
Additions 387 387
Transfers - -
Disposals - -
As at 31 March 2021 1,314 1,314
As at 01 April 2021 1,314 1,314
Additions 93 93
Transfers - R
Disposals 6 6
As at 31 March 2022 1,401 1,401
Accumulated amortisation
As at 01 April 2020 496 496
Amortisation for the year 203 203
Disposals - -
As at 31 March 2021 699 699
As at 01 April 2021 699 699
Amortisation for the year 210 210
Disposals 4 4
As at 31 March 2022 905 905
Net book value
As at 31 March 2021 615 615
As at 31 March 2022 496 496
# The Group has neither revalued nor impaired it's intangible assets during the year ended on 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021
Intangible Asset under Development (IAUD) ageing schedule

Amount in TAUD for a period of
As at 31 March 2022 Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Software projects in progress 96 - - - 96
Amount in IAUD for a period of

As at 31 March 2021 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Less than 1 year

Software projects in progress

(This space have been intentionally left blank)
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Scrvices Limited

CIN : U63032MH1995P1.C086014

Consolidated notes to the financial statements as at 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

4 Right-of-use assets #

Right to usc Total
Gross carrying amount :
As at 01 April 2020 2,197 2,197
Additions 30 30
Disposals 265 265
As at 31 March 2021 1,962 1,962
As at 01 April 2021 1,962 1,962
Additions 1,025 1.025
Disposals 065 065
As at 31 March 2022 2,322 2,322
Accumulated amortisation :
As at 01 April 2020 850 850
Amortisation for the year 410 410
Disposals 160 160
As at 31 March 2021 1,100 1,100
As at 01 April 2021 1,100 1,100
Amortisation for the year 376 376
Disposals 664 664
As at 31 March 2022 812 8i2
Net book value
As at 31 March 2021 862 862
As at 31 March 2022 1,510 1,510

# Right-of-use assets mcludes office premises

* The Group has neither revalued nor impaired its Right-of-use assets during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021
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ORIX Aufoe Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN ; U63032MHI1995PL.C086014

Caonsolidated notes to the financial statements as at 31 March 2022
{All amounts arc in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwisce)

As at As al
31 March 2922 31 March 2021
5 Loans®
Loan against hypothecation of vehicle 3,707 9.877
Loan against property 1,22,346 1,49,600
Finance leases 44,307 25,732
Less: impairment loss allowance (7,699) (5,913)
1,62,661 1,79,296
*There are no loans measured at FVOCT or FYTPL or designated at FVTPL.
6 Other financial assets
Security deposit unsecured, considered good
Security deposits- premises 229 80
Less: expected credit foss alfowance am (14)
219 66
Security deposits- perrol and sundry deposits 209 163
428 229
Bank deposits with residual mawrity of more than 12 months* - 3
Retained interest on loan assigned 409 416
Out of pocket expenses recoverable 6,888 4,084
7.297 4,503
Total 7,725 4,732

* Bank deposit with residual maturity of more than 12 months is pledged with VAT audthoities in the year 31 March 2021 (current year : nil)

7 Other non-current assets
Unsccured, considered good

Other

Capital advance 3,112 1,902
Balances with statutory authoritics- VAT input credit 1,778 1,730
Prepaid expenses 213 223
Advance tax (net of provision for tax - ¥ 25,959 (31 March 2021 ¥ 22,936)) 7,881 4,464
Total 12,984 8,319

8 Inventorics

At lower of cost or net realisable value

Stores and spares 33 11
Assets held for sale 1,974 93
Retired vehicles held for sale® 446 235
Total 2,453 337

During the year, the Group has repossessed/acquired assets in satisfaction of debt amounting to ¥ 1,859 lakhs (Loan against property), ¥ 231 lakhs (Commercial
vehicle loans, with net fair value of ¥ 72 Lakh). Vchicles return back in case of finance leasc is T 43 lakhs. Such asscts have been accounted for as "asscts held for
sale".

* The Group has created provision of ¥ 229 (31 March 2021 % 229) which is netted off against retired vehicles held for sale.
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63032MH1995P1.CO86014

C tidated notes to the fi ial statements as at 31 March 2022
(AN amounts are in INR Laklis, except as stated otherwise)

Y9 Trade receivable
Asat Asal
B 31 March 2022 31 Mach 2021
Trade receivable 9,231 8,040

Break up
Secured, considered pood 9.113 5,540
Unsecured, considered goad
Trade » ables which hav

ignificant inercasc in credit risk Ly 97:

Trade receivable credit impaired - 1,229
9,231 3.044
Tmpaivinent Allowance (allowance far bad and doubtful debts)
Sceured, considered good {488) (96)
Unsecured, considered good - .
Trade receivables which have significantincrease in credit risk a7 (c4)
Trade reeeivable credit impaired - 487
(565) (647)
Total 8,066 7,393
Clause (iv) Trade receivable aging schedule
Current but not Outstanding for following perfods from due dates of payments
31 March 2022 due Less than 6 months - More than Total
6 months 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year 3 years
(i) Undisputed Vrade receivable -
considered good - 6,707 390 284 67 129 7,583
(i) Undisputed Trade receivable ~
which have significant increase jn
credit visk - 36 73 49 29 230 417
(iii) Undisputed Tvade receivable -
credit impaired - - - - N - -
(iv) Disputed Trade receivable «
Considered good - 345 115 A6 152 7 1,083
(v) Disputed Trade receivable -
which have significant inerease in
credit risk - 8 14 R7 34 N 148
(vi) Disputed Trade receivable «
credit impaired - - - - - . -
Total - 7,096 598 BE4 282 371 9,231
. Curcent but not Qutstanding for following periods from due dates of payments )
31 March 2021 due Less than 6 months - More than Total
-2 year 2-3 year
6 months 1 year - N 3 years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivable -
considered good - 5,802 372 336 8y 137 6,736
(if) Undisputed Trade receivable -
which have significant increase in
credit risk - §5 98 LN 50 210 518
(iii) Undisputed Trade receivable -
eredit impaired - - - - - - -
{iv) Disputed Frade reccivable -
Considered good - 188 164 282 22 1 657
(v} Disputed Trade veceivable -
which have significant increase in
credit visk - 10 23 85 1 0 129
(vi) Disputed Trade receivable «
credit impaived - - - - - - -
Total - 6,055 657 808 172 348 8.040

* Due date has been considered from invoice date,

No wrade or ather veceirable ave due from director ot ather officers of the Group either severally of jointly wilk any other person, Nat any frade oc other receivable
from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is i partner, a director or 2 ntember.

The movement in impairment allowance of (rade receivable as follows :

Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Opening balance 646 476
Addition / (Reversals) 170) 170
Write-off (net of recovery) (1) -

Closing balance 566 646
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63032MH1995PLCO86014

Consolidated notes to the financial statements as at 31 March 2022
(Al amounts arc in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

As at As al
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
10 Cash and cash equivalents
Ralance with banks :
On current accounts 3,603 4,032
Depogits with original maturity of Jless than 3 months 2,309 2,230
Cheques on hand - 17
Cash on hand 71 115
Total 5,983 6,394

11

For the purposc of cash flow, cash and cash cquivalents comprise the above table,
Cash at banks carns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three manths,

depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective shori-term deposit rates.

Bank balances other than (10) above

Bank balances other than cash and cash cquivalents

Deposit with original maturity of more than 3 months but residual maturity of fess than 12 months* 443 411

TOTAL 443 411

* The bank deposits of T 290 (31 March 2021 ¥ 366) have been kept as a sceurily for registration with the VAT authoritics of various states.
Short tevm deposits are made for varying periods between one day and three months depending on immediate cash requivements of the Group and cam inferest al the

respective short term deposit rates.
Loans*

Unsecured, Considered good unless otherwise stated

Loans and advances to employees 28 8
Sceured, Considered good unless otherwise stated
Finance lease receivables 30,803 21,588
Loan against hypothecation 6,822 15,729
Loan against property 5,981 7.482
Less: Tmpairment loss allowance (2,029) (2,674)
Totat 41,605 42,133
*There are no toans measured at FVOCT or FVTPL or designated at FVTPL.
Other financial assets
Non-Derivative assct
Security deposit unsecured, considered good
Security deposits- premises 14 198
Security deposits- petrol and sundry deposits 98 10
112 208
Contract Assets 854 966
Interest accrued but not duc on fixed deposits 16 22
Retained Interest on Loan Assigned 94 89
Recoverable from sale of assets 12 28
Exgratia receivable® - 197
Out of pocket expenses recoverable 5,063 2,985
Less: Expected credit loss allowance 34) (15)
Total 6,117 4,480

*The Government of India, Ministry of Finance, vide its notification dated October 23, 2020, had announced COVID-19 Relief Scheme for grant of ex-gratia payment
of difference between compound interest and simple interest for six months from March 20 to Aug 20 to borrowers in specified loan accounts (scheme), as per the
eligibility criteria and other aspects specified therein and irrespective of whether the moratorium was availed or not. The Group has implemented the scheme and
caleulated the amount (o be credited Lo the eligible borrowers loan account as per the scheme.
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63032MH1995PLCO86014

Consolidated notes to the tinancial statements as ac 31 March 2022
(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs. except as stated otherwise)

As al
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

14 Other current assets

Advances

Advances to suppliers - considered good

Advances to suppliers - considered doubtful

Less: Allowance for doubtfid advances to suppliers
Advance for expenses

Lusecured, considered good
Others

Prepaid expenses

Balance with statutory authoritics
Incentive receivable from dealers
Others receivables

Total
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196 593

1,681 1.057
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63032MH1995PLCO86014

Consolidated notes to the financial statements as at 31 March 2022
(AH amounts are in INR Lakhs, excep( as stated otherwise)

15 Share capital:
As at 31 March 2622 As at 31 March 2021
Number on shares Tin lakhs  Number on shares Tin lakhs
Authorised
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each 16,00,00,000 16,000 16,00,00,000 16,000
13.5% preference shares of ¥ 10 each 1,00,00,000 1,000 1,00,0(,000 1,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid equity capital
Equity shares of T 10 each 12,79,96,498 12,800 12,79,96,498 12,800
) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:
As at 31 March 2022 Asat 31 March 2021
Authorised share capital Number on shares Tin lakhs  Numbcr on shares R in lakhs
Equity shares of T10 each
Shares outstanding at the begimning of the year 16,00,00,000 16,000 16,00,00,000 16,000
Shares issued during the year - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 16,00,00,000 16,000 16,00,00,000 16,000
13.5% preference shares of ¥ 10 each
Sharcs outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,00.00,800 1,000 1.00,00,000 1,000
Shares issued during the year - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 1,00,00,000 1,000 1,00,00,000 1,000

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

Issued equity capital Number on shares Tinlakhs  Number on shares X in lakhs
Equity shares of T 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

Shares oustanding at the beginning of the year 12,79.96,498 12,800 12.79,90,498 12,800
Shaves issued during the year - - - -
Sharces outstanding at the end of the ycar 12,79,96,498 12,800 12,79,96,498 12,800

ii) Terws / rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend

proposed by the board of directors is subject to the approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing Annuat General Meeting.

In the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of cquity sharcs will be entitled to receive residual assets of the Company, after distibution of al
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholder.

iii) 127,984,998 Equity Shares (31 March 2021 - 127,984,998) are held by ORTX Corporation, Japan, the holding company and its nominees.

iv) Shares held by holding company and it’s nominces

Out of equity issued by the company, shares held by its holding company and their nominee are as follows:

AS Al AS 4l
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
ORIX Corporation (Japan), the holding company and its nominees 100% 100%
12,79,96,498 (31 March 2021 : 12,79,96,498) equity shares
v) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company / shares held by holding / ultimate holding company:
As at As at

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

No. of shaves held % of holding

No. of sharcs held % of holding

ORIX Corporation (Tapan), the holding company and its nominecs

oy
>
O
I
>

12,79,89,998 100.00%
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63032MHI1995P1.C086014

Consolidated notes to the financial statements as at 31 March 2022
(ANl amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

vi) Details of shares held by promoters

No. of shares at

Change during No. of shares af Ya of % change during
Pr ter N s heoingi . 8 g 4 i
romoter Rame the beginning of the year the end of the year Total Shares the year
the year N N
ORIX Corporation 12,79.89,992 - 12,79,89.992 100% 0%
ORIX Corporation and Mr. Harukazu i (1) - 0% 100%
Yamaguchi
ORIX Corporation and Mr. Takashi - 1 1 0% -100%
Nakayama
i ORTX Corporation and Mr. Vivek 1 - 1 0% 0%
Equity . Wadhera
shares of
TNR 10 each ORIX Corporation and Mr. Yoshiaki 1 - 1 0% 0%
fully paid Matsuoka
ORIX Corporation and Mr. Pankaj { - 1 0% 0%
Jain
ORIX Corporation and Mr. Sandcep 1 - 1 0% 0%
Gambhiv
ORIX Corporation and Mr. Jay 1 - 1 0% 0%
Gandhi
Total 12,79,89,998 - 12,79,89,998 100% -
Note :

- No shares have been alloted by way of bonus shares or pursuant to contracts without receipt of cash
- No shares have been reserved for issae under options

- No shares have been alloted pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash

- As per records of the Company, including its register of sharcholder / member and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest,

the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.
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ORIX Autoe Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN ; U63032MH1995PL.CO86014

Cansolidated notes to the financial statements as at 31 Mareh 2022
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
16 Other equity
Statutory reserve account
Balance at the beginning of the year 4,479 3,527
Transactions during the year 271 952
Balance at the end of the year 4,756 4,479
Sccuritics premium account
Balance at the beginning of the year 39,985 39,985
Transactions during the year - -
Balance at the end ol the year 39,985 39,985
General reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,856 1,856
Transactions during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 1,856 1,856
Reserves and sarplus
Balance al the beginning of the year 15,739 14,984
Profit for the year 737 1,707
Transfer to statutory reserve 277 (952)
Balance at the end of the year 16,199 15,739
Other Comprehensive Income
Balance at the beginning of the year 631 (783)
Add : Re-measurements on defined benetit plan (41) (52
Balance at the end of the year 672) (631}
Total 62,124 61,428

i) Securities premium is used for recording the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of section 52 of the Companics
Act, 2013,

ii) The general reserve comprises of transfer of profit from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. The reserve can be distributed/utilized by the Group in
accordance with the Companics Act, 2013,

iii) Reserves and surplus represents total of all profits retained since Group's inception. Retained carnings are credited with current ycar profits, reduced by losscs, it
any, transfers 1o General reserve or any such other appropriations to specific reserves.

iv) Actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit plans are recognized in other comprehensive income, net of taxes.

v) Statutovy reserve represents reserve fund created pursuant to Section 45-1C of the RBI Act, 1934 through tansfer of specified percentage of net protit every year
before any dividend is declared. The reserve fund can be utifised only for limited purposes as specified by RBI from time to time and every such utilisation shall be
reported to the RBI within specified period of time from the date of such utilisation.
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limifed
CIN : U63032MHT995PLCI86014
Consolidated notes to the tinancial statements as at 31 March 2022

(Al amounts arc in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
17 Borrowings
Non-current borrowing
Debt securities
Non-convertible unsceured debentwres (refer note a) 240,000 20,000
Unsecured borrowing
Term Loan
- From Banks (refer note b to 1) 83,656 05,853
- Masala Bond - 10,000
- ECB Borrowing from Bank 20,938 24,687
- From Parent Company (ORIX Corpoartion-Japan) (refer note m) 15,000 15,000
Teotal 1,39,594 1,35,540

&

(=2

o

=5

o

e

Nofes

Non convertible Debenture disbursement from BNP Paribas that carries interest @ 7.40% . The loan is repayable in bullet payment and will be repaid by december
2023.

Term loans disbursement from HDFC Bank Limited that carries interest @ 6.07% ta 7.35%. The loan is repayable in quarterly installments and will be fully repaid
between August, 2023 to September, 2025 . The instalment amount ranges trom ¥ 313 Lakhs to T 357 lakhs. The loan is guarantced by ORIX Corporation, Japan
(Holding company)

Term loans disbursenent from Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited that carries interest @ 6.10% to 6.30%. The loan is repayable in monthly installments and will be fully
repaid between March, 2025 to August 2025, The instalment amount ranges from ¥ 63 Lakhs to of T 106 lakhs. The loan is guarantced by ORIX Corporation, Japan
(Holding Company}

Term loan disbursement from Credit Agricole Corporate & Investment Bank that carries interest @ 6.23%. The loan is repayable in quarterly installments and will be
fully repaid by November,2024 . The instalment amount is of ¥ 1,000 lakhs. The loan is guarantced by ORIX Corporation, Japan (Holding Company)

Term loan disbursement from Mizuho Bank Ltd that carvies interest @ 7.00%. The loan is repayable in monthly installments and will be repaid by April, 2023. The
instalment amount is o' 133 Takhs. The loan is guaranteed by ORIX Corporation, Japan (Holding Company)

" Term loan disbursement from Mizuho Bank Ltd that carries interest @ 6.00% . The loan is repayable in bujlet payment and will be repaid by September 2024. The

loan is guarantced by ORIX Corporation, Japan (Holding Company)

Term loan disbursement from Axis Bank Ltd that carries interest @ 7.35%. The loan is repayable in monthly installments and will be fully repaid by Jun, 2023 . The
instalment amount is of T 277 lakhs. The loan is guaranteed by ORIX Corporation, Japan (Iolding Company)

Term loan disbursement fiom Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation that carries interest (@ 6.05% to 6.40% . The loan is repayable in quarterly installments and will
be filly repaid between February 2024 to December 2025. The instalment amount is of T 625 lakhs. The loan is guaranteed by ORIX Corporation, Japan (Holding
Company)

Term loan disbursement from Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited that cacries interest @ 6.65%. The loan is repayable in bullet payment and will be
repaid by May 2022, The loan is guaranteed by ORIX Corporation, Japan (Iolding Company)

Term Toan disbursement from ICICI Bank Limited that carries interest @ 8.15%. The loan is repayable in monthly installments and was fully repaid during the year.
The instalment amount was of ¥ 208.33 lakhs. The loan is guaranteed by ORITX Corporation, Japan (Holding Company)

Term loan disbursement from FCICI Bank Limited that carries interest @ 8.15%. The loan is repayable in monthly installments and was fully repaid during the year .
Thic instalinent amount was of ¥ 208.33 fakhs. The loan is guaranteed by ORIX Corporation, Japan (Holding Company).

Term loan disbursement from The Federal Bank Linited that carrics interest @ 7.90%. The loan is repayable in quarterly installments and was fully repaid during the
year . The instalment amount was of ¥ 583 lakhs. The loan is guaranteed by ORIX Carparation, Japan (Holding Company).

Term loan disbursement from Parent Company , ORIX Cotporation, Japan, that carries interest @ 6.35% to 7.69%. The loan is repayable in bullet payment and will be
repaid between July. 2024 to September 2025.
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63032MH1995PLCO86014

Consolidated notes to the financial statements as at 31 March 2022
(All amounts arcin INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 202)
18 Lease liabilities
Lease liahilities (refer note 38) 1,389 847
Total 1.389 847
19 Other financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Sceurity deposits from customers 1,221 974
Total 1,221 974
20 Net employce defined benefit liabilities
Provision for gratuity (refer note 37) 385 153
Provision for compensated absences 493 3
Total 878 590
21 Other non-current liabilities
Maintenance linked leases reserves of operating leasc 877 712
Deffered Income=Securities deposit 218 342
Total 1,095 1,054
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63032MH1995PLCO86014

Consolidated notes fo the financial statements as a¢ 31 March 2022
(All amounts arc in INR Lakhs, exeept as stated otherwise)

As at As al
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
22 Short term borrowings

Secured
Loans repayable on demand from banks
- Cash credit from banks 3,004 246
- Short term loan from banks (Refer note a to o) 3,500 2400
- Waorking capital demand Toan (Refer note p to u) - 600
Unsecured
Loans repayable on demand from banks
- Working capital demand loan (Refer note p to u) 29,500 20,500
- Overdraft facility from bank 619 0
- Short term loan from banks (Refer note a to o) 18,600 9,500
Current maturities of long term debts 54,905 76,047
Book overdraft 4 125
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 782 896
Total 1,10,314 1,10,314

Notes:

a Short term loan disbursement from IDBI Bank Limited that catrics interest @ 6.00%. The loan is sccured by way of hypothecation of operating lcase asscts.
b Short term loan disbursement from Mizuho Bank that canies interest vate @ 7.00% p.a. The loan is guaranteed by ORTX Corporation, Japan (Holding Company)
¢ Short term loan disbursement from Kotak Mahindra Bank that carries interest rate @ 7.30% p.a. The loan is guaranteed by ORIX Corporation, Japan (Holding

Company}
d Short term loan disbursement from The Federal Bank Limited that carries interest rate @ 8.50% p.a. The loan is guaranteed by ORIX Corporation, Japan (Holding
Company)

¢ Short term loan disbursement from Deutsche Bank AG that carries interest rate @ 4.49% p.a. The loan is guaranteed by ORTX Corporation, Japan (Holding Company)

{ Short term loan disbursement tiom 1CICI Bank Limited that carries interest @ 7.85% To 8.45% The loan is guaranieed by ORIX Corporation, Japan {(Holding

Company).
¢ Short term loan disbursement trom HDFC Bank Limited that carries interest @ 7.15% To 8.00% The loan is guaranteed by ORIX Corporation, Japan (Holding
Company).

h Short term loan disbursement from Axis Bank that carries interest rate @ 7.35% p.a. The loan is guaranteed by ORIX Corporation, Japan (Holding Company)
i Short term loan disbursement from Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation that carrics interest ratc @ 4.55% 1o 6..40% p.a. The loan is guarantced by ORIX
Corporation, Japan (Holding Company}
j Shost term loan disbursement from MUFG Barnk that canies interest rate @ 4.80% p.a. The loan is guaranteed by ORIX Corporation, Japan (Holding Company)
k Short term Toan disbursement from Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited that carries interest rate @ 5.70% to 7.60% p.a. The loan is guaranteed by
ORIX Corporation, Japan (Holding Company)
{ Short term loan disbursement from JPMorgan Chase Bank, NLA that carries interest rate @ 4.70% p.a. The loan is guaranteed by OREX Corporation, Tapan (Holding
Company)
m Short term loan disbursement from SBI (Masala Boud) that carries interest rate @ 7.47% p.a..
n Short term loan disbursement from Bank of America that carries interest rate @ 6.25% to 6.31% p.a. The loan is guaranteed by ORIX Corporation, Tapan (Holding
Company)
o Short term loan disbursement from Citibank N A that carries interest 1ate @ 4.95% p.a. The loan is guaranteed by ORIX Corporation. Japan (Holding Company)
p Working capital demand loan from IDBI Bank Ltd that carries interest rate @ 6.00% p.a. was repaid during the year in Apr 2021.
q Working capital demand loan from Mizuho Bank that carrics intorest raic @ 4.35% p.a. The loan is guaranteed by ORIX Corporation, Japan (Holding Comipany)
v Working capital demand loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank that carries interest rate @ 5.00% p.a. The loan is guaranteed by ORIX Corporation, Japan (Holding
Company)
s Working capital demand loan from The Federal Bank Ltd that carries interest rate @ 4.98% p.a. The loan is guaranteed by ORIX Cotporation, Japan (Holding
Company)
1t Working capital demand loan from Deutsche Bank AG that carries interest rate @ 4.50% p.a. The loan is gnaranteed by ORIX Corporation, Japan (Holding Company)

u Working capital demand loan from ICICI Bank that carries intercst rate @ 4.68% p.a. The loan is guaranteed by ORIX Corporation, Japan (Holding Company)
v External commercial borrowing loan from1t MUFG Bank Lid that carries interest rate (& 6.55% 7.71% p.a.

Working capitat demand loans are sccured by floating charge by way of hypothecation of the following asscts as per the drawing power:
i. Unencumbered owned assets

ii. Receivables under operating lease with underlying assets

iil. Recejvables from the Group’s other business activities

23 Lease liabilitics

Leasc liabilitics (refer note 38) 350 193

Total 350 193
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63032MH1995P1.C886014

Consolidated notes to the financial statements as at 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

24 Trade payables

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Trade payable of micro enterpriscs and small enterprises (Refer note no. 48) 817 168
Trade payable other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 10,782 9,380
Total 11,599 9,548
Trade payable 11,599 9,548
Trade payable {a related parties - -
Taotal 11,599 9,548
Trade payable aging schedule

Outstanding for following periods from the date of transactions

31 March 2022 No Due Total
Less than More than
1-2 year 2-3 year
1 year 3 years

Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises 434 312 45 0 26 817
Tatal outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and
small enterpriscs 5,002 2,984 777 583 1,430 10,782
Disputed dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises - - - - - -
Disputed ducs of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small
cnterprises - - - - -
Grand total 5,436 3,296 822 583 1,462 11,599

Outstanding for following periods from the date of transactions

31 March 2021 No Due Total
Less than 12 year 2-3 year More than
1 year 3 years

Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises 107 61 0 - (0) 168
Total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises 3,301 2,104 1,824 731 1,420 9,380
Disputed ducs of micro enterprises
and small enterprises - - - - - -
Disputed dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small
enterprises - - - - - -
Grand total 3,408 2,165 1,824 731 1,420 9,548

Trade payables are not-interest bearing and are novmally settled in 30 days teyvms.

The amount due to Mirco, Small and Medium Eanterprises as defined in the "Mirca, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006"
("MSMED") has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Group.
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Linzited

CIN : U63032MH1995PLCO86014

Consolidated notes to the financial statements as a¢ 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwisce)

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

25 Other tinancial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortise cost
Advance from customers

Ewmployee related liabilities

Other Payables

- Sceurity Deposits for lease and self drive
- Payable in respect of loans assigned

- Provision for expenses

Total

26 Net employee defined benefit liabilities

Provision for employce benefits
Provision for gratuity (refer note 37)
Pravision for compensated absences
Other provisions

Total
27 Other current liabilities

Provision for income tax (net of advance tax X 3,356 (Previous year ¥ 6,126)

Other Payables

- Statutory dues payable (Contributions to PF, withholding taxes, sales tax, service tax, etc)
- Net insurance and maintenance reserves of operating lease

- Contract liabilitics

- Provision for expenses

- Other payables

Total

(This space have been intentionally Teft blank)

6,787 4,836
1,239 1,405
560 578
355 135
2,220 2,366
11,161 9.320
318 278
33 24
60 36
411 338
97 286
456 2,331

- 32
537 483
408 361

1 1
1,499 3,494




ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited
CIN : U63032MH1995PLCO86014

Consolidated notes to the financial statenents for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otheywise)

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 202)

28

28.

—

Revenue from operations

Sale of products
Spares and consumables

Sale of services

Operating leases on vehicles
Car rentals

Car rental - self drive
Business transport solutions
Service centre revenue
Maintenance revenue

FMS revenue

Interest income
Interest on loans

Other operating revenue

Income on pre termination of lease

Insurance commission

Ovigination and processing fees

Termination / rescheduling charges - hypothecation
Penal interest income

Net gain on fair value changes

Other fees income

Total revenue from operations

India
Outside India

Total revenue from operations
Timing of revenue recognisation
Goods ransferred at a point in time

Services transterred over time

Total revenue {rom operations

28.2 Contract balances

Trade receivables
Contract assets
Conlract liabilities

1,608 1,343
25,547 26,2006
11,713 6,855

1,768 1,364

7,077 7,668

204 145
980 878

2,159 1,501

22,737 31,101
280 35
311 213

30 191
289 254
37 26
274 92
554 398

75,568 78,270

75,568 78,270

75,568 78,270

1,608 1,343
73,960 76,927
75,568 78,270

8,666 7,393

854 966
537 483

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days. In March 2022, ¥ 556 (March 2021: ¥ 647) was recognised as

provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables.

Contract assels relates to revenue earned from Business transport solutions. As such, the balances of this account vary and depend on the services provided

at the end of the year,

in March 2022, T 5 (March 2021: T 6 ) was recognised as provision for expected credit losses on contract assets.

Contract liabilites includes deferved vevenue.

Amount of revenue recognised from :

Year ended

31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

Amount included in contract liabilites at the beginning of the year

Performance obligations satisfied in previous years

28.3 Right of return assets and refund liabilities

Right on retum assets

Refund liabilities
Arising from retrospective volume rebates
Arising from rights of return

Total
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ORIX Auto Infrasiructure Services Limited

CIN :

U63032MH1995PL.COB6014

Consolidated notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(AIl amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 20214

28.4 Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the Statement of Profit and loss with the contracted

28.5

29

price

Revenue as per contracted price
Adjustement

Discount

Total revenue from operations

Performance obligation

Car rental

For cerain contracts, the performance obligation is satisfied over time. In this contract advance is received before the complition of service.

Operating leases on vehicles

75,568

78,270

75,568

78,270

The performance obligation is satisfied over time and payment is generally due upon receipt of bill by customer.

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 March are, as follows:

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

Within one year
Morc than onc ycar

Other income

Interest income on:

Bank deposits

Loans and advances
Security deposits-prentises
Income tax refund

Others

Other non-operating income
Sundry balances wrilten back
Bad debts recovered

Discount recevied

Profit on sale of vehicles
Misccellancous inconic

Total

107 126
4 16
13 18
- 70
0 -
168 198
74 7
348 265
199 536
564 579
1,477 1,815
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited
CIN : U63032MH1995PL.CO86014

Consolidated notes fo the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

30 Cost of niaterial consumed

Spare parts, accessories

Tnventory at the beginning of the year 6 29
Add: Purchasces 1,485 1,207
1,491 1,236
Less: Inventory at the end of the year (33) (6)
Total 1,458 1,230
31 Employee benefit expenses
Salaries and wages 9,228 9,723
Contribution to provident and other funds 635 610
Gratuity expenses (refer note 37) 228 250
Staff welfare expenses 194 145
Total 10,282 10,728
32 Finance cost
Interest expense on financial labilities 16,486 19,997
Interest on leasc fiability (Reter note no. 38) 125 105
Other borrowing costs 548 726
Total 17,1589 20,828
33 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation on property, plant and equipments (refer note 02) 21,573 22,738
Amortisation of right-ot-use assets (refer note 04) 376 410
Amortization on other intangible assets (vefer note 03) 210 202
Tatal 22,159 23,350
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited
CIN : U63032MH1995PLC0O86014
Consolidated notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

34

Other expenses

Contract labour / chauffeurs cost
Service station labour cost

Car hire charges for car rental
Vehicle hire charges for business transport solution
Rent

Electricity

Travelling and conveyance
Communication expenses
Protessional and legal fees
Vehicle running expenses
Repairs and maintenance

- Building

- Machinery

- Others

Insurance premium

Rates and taxes

Directots' sitting fees

Printing and stationery

Sofiware maintenance expenses
Loss on pre terminalion of Tease
Loss on foreclsoure of commercial vehicle loan
Freight & forwarding charges

Expected credit losses - loans, trade receviable, advances, deposils

Sundry balances written off
Bad debts written off’

Corporate social responsibility expenditre (refer note (i) below)

Loss / reversal on NRV

Payment to the auditor {refer note (ii) below)
Loss on assets accquired in satisfaction of debt
Retained interest reccivable adjustment
Miscellaneous expenses

Total

1,903 2,016
90 74
2,774 610
5,126 4,644
199 244
155 151
219 160
184 238
848 774
1,932 1.481
1 1
55 53
1,142 910
1,915 1,600
868 647
16 21
33 22
567 482
- 394
1,072 1,651
30 16
1,364 4,099
4 10
3,754 -
136 170
(148) 75
74 117
159 -
2 58
1,221 821
25,695 21,539
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited
CIN : U63032MH1995PL.CO86014

Consolidated notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

Other expenses (Continued)

Notes :
i) Details of corporate social responsibility expe

a) Gross amount required to be spent by Group during the year

b) Amount approved by the Board to be spend during the year

¢) Anount spent during the year ending on 31st March 2022 :
1. Construction/acquisition of any asset
2. On pwposes other than (1) above

Total

d) Amount spent during the year ending on 31st March 2021 :

1. Construction/acquisition of any asset
2. On purposes other than (1) above

Total

e) Details vealied o spent/umspent obligations:

i) Conuribution to Public Trust
ij) Contribution to Charitable Trust

it) Payment to Auditors:
As auditor :
Audit fees
In other capacity :
Other services (certification fees)

Total
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Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

136 170
136 170
Ta Cash Total
136 136
136 136
In Cash Total
170 170
170 170

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

136 170
69 109

5 8
74 17




ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited
CIN : U63032MHI995PLCO86014

Consolidated notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in INR Lalhs, except as stated otherwise)

Income taxes and deferred taxes

Income taxes

(a) The major component of income tax expenses for the year ended:

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Current income tax:

Current income tax charge

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year
Deferred tax expense

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss

(b) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans

(©) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit

Accounting profit before tax
Tax using the Group’s domestic tax rate

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculacing taxable income:

Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure
Other provision and deduction including u/s 36
Current tax expenses refating to prior years
Others

Trcome tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss

1,313 2,947

(1,162) -
(596) (2.244)
(445) 703

Tax (expense) benefit

12

Tax (expense) benetit

(“8)

12

(43)

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 202t

292 2410
73 607
- 13
362)
(1,162) -
1,005 79
(445) 703

The applicable Indian corporate statutory tax rate for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 is 25.168%.
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited
CIN : U63032MHI1995PLCO86014

Consolidated notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in INR Lalkhs, except as stated otherwise)

35

Deferred tax and Current tax

Deferred Taxes

(d) Reconciliation of deferred tax asset

31 March 2022

Nef balance  Recognised in - Recognised Net Deferred  Deferved tax
01 April 2021 profit or loss in OCI tax asset liability
Deferred {ax asset
Depreciation 11,938 (52) - 11.886 11,886 -
Provisions 399 51 - 450 450 -
Preliminary Expenses 7 (G} - - - -
Expected Credit Losses 1,935 810 - 2,745 2,745 -
Maintenance linked Reserves (MLL) 211 29 - 240 240 -
Others - 101 - 10 101 -
Carry forward loss 318 (318) - 0 0 -
Ind AS Adjustments
Lease rental Straightlining (85) 85 - 0 0 -
Effective interest rate on Borrowings 1 30 - 31 31 -
Employee benefits P&L (72) (3) - (73} - (75)
Employee benelits OCL 74 4) 12 82 82 -
Discounting of security deposits paid for premises 4 5 - 9 -
Inventory Revaluation for retived vehicles 20 172 - 192 192 -
Effective Gain on Loan wransfer Transactions (240) 2) - (242) - (242)
Effective interest rate on Loans and Advances - - - - - -
Discounting of sceurity deposits reccived from lessces 3) 1 - 8 8 -
Right-of-usc assets 242 (291} - {49) - 49)
Initial direct cost salary expense 13 - - 13 i3 -
Salarics 8 0 - 8 8 -
Others 20 1) - (€8] - ()
Tax assets (Liabilities) 14,790 596 12 15,398 15,765 (367)
Nect tax asscts 14,790 596 12 15,398 15,765 (367)
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63032MM1995P1.C086014

Consolidated notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwise)

31 March 2021

Net balance  Recognised in Recognised Net Deferred  Deferred tax

01 April 2020 profit or loss in OC1 fax asset liabitity
Deferred tax asset
Depreciation 11,145 793 - 11,938 11,938 -
Provisions 328 71 - 399 399 -
Preliminary Expenses 7 - - 7 7 -
Expected Credit Losses 982 953 - 1,935 1,935 -
Maintenance linked Reserves (MLL) 205 6 - 211 211 -
Carty forward loss - 318 - 318 318 -
Ind AS Adjustments
Lease rental Straightlining 1 (86) - (83) - (85)
Effective interest rate on Borrowings 38 37) - 1 1 -
Lmployee benefits P&L (159) 87 - (72) - (72)
Eamployee benefits OCI 159 37) (48) 74 74 -
Discounting of security deposits paid for premises (40) 44 - 4 4 -
Tnventory Revaluation for retived vehicles 1 19 - 20 20 -
Effective Gain on Loan transfer Transactions (247) 7 - (240) - (240)
Effective interest vale on Loans and Advances 10 (10) - - - -
Discounting of security deposits received from fessees N 4 - [€)] - 3)
Right-of-use assets 171 71 - 242 242 -
Initial direct cost salary expense - 13 - 13 13 -
Salaries - 8 - R 8 -
Others - 20 - 20 20 -
Tax assets (Liabilitics) 12,594 2,244 (48) 14,790 15,190 (400)
Net tax assets 12,594 2,244 (48) 14,790 15,190 (400)

The Group offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current 1ax assets and current lax liabilities and the deferred
tax asscts and deferred tax Labilitics relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Significant management judgment is required in determining provision for income tax, deferred income tax assets and liabilitics and recoverability of deferred
income tax asseis. The recoverability of deferred income tax assets is based on estimates of taxable income in which the relevant entity operates and the period
over which deferred income tax asscts will be recovered.

The applicable Indian corporate statutory tax rate for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 is 25.168%

During the previous year under Tncome tax, option is provided to Corporates to choose tax rate i.e. either 25.168% including Surcharge and Cess without
claiming any deduction and cxemption available in IT Act or 34.944% including Surcharge and Cess with claim of cligible deductions and exemptions available
in Income Tax Act. Group has opted for first option i.e. 25.168% without claiming any deductions and exemptions.

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is probable, that some portion, or all, of the deferred tax assets will be
realised. The ultimate realisation of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which the temporary
differences become deductible. Management considers the projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based on the
level of historical taxable income and projections for future taxable incomes over the periods in which the deterred tax assets are deductible, management
believes that it is probable that the Company will be able to realise the benefits of those deductible differences in future.
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ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited
CIN : UC63032MH1995PL.C0O86014
Consolidated notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwisc)
36  Earnings per equity share

Basic EPS amounts arc calculated by dividing the profit for the year aluibutable Lo equity holders of the Group, by the weighted
average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Group, by the weighted
average number of equily shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued
on conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders 696 1,859
Weighted average number of equity shares used {or computing earing per share (Basic/dilu 12,79,96,498 12,79,96,498
Basic and diluted earnings per share (nominal value - ¥ 10 per sharc) 0.54 1.45
10 10

Face value per share (%)

Earnings per share (EPS) calculation is in accordance with Ind-AS 33 - Eaming Per Share.
Weighted average mumber of shares is the number of equity sharcs outstanding at the beginning of the year adjusted by the number of
cquity shares issued during year, multiplicd by the time weighting factor. The time weighting factor is the number of days for which
the specific shares are outstanding as a proportion of total number of days during the year.
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37

@

(i)

Gratuity and other post-employement benefit plans
The Group contributes to the following post-employment defined benefit plans in India.

Defined Contribution Plans:

The Group makes contibutions towards provident fund, superannuation fund and other retirement benefits (0 a defined contribution retivement benefit
plan for qualifying employces. The Group also contributes to Employees State insurance.

The Provident fund and the state defined contribution plan are operated by Employees Providend Fund Organisation. Under the scheme, the Group is
required to contribute a specified pereentage of payroll cost to the retirement benifit / scheme to fund the benefits.

For the year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Contribution to provident fund 492 479
Contribution Lo super annuation 64 60
Contribution to EST - 27 34
Contribution to national pension scheme 52 36
Labour welfare fund 0 1
Total 635 610

Defined Benefit Plan;

The Group has defined benefit plan. The Group makes annual contributions to the Group Gratuity cum Life Assurance Schemes administered by the Life
Insurance Corporation of India, a funded defined benefit plan for qualifying employees. The scheme provides for payment as under:

i} On normal retirement / early retivement / withdrawal / resignation:

As per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuily Act, 1972 with vesting period of 3 years of service.

ii) On death in scrvice:

As per the provisions of the Payment of Grawity Act, 1972 without any vesting period.

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present vatue of the defined benefit obligation for gratuity were carricd out as at 31 March 2022.

The present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit
Credit Method.

Bascd on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table scts oul the status of the gratity plan and the amounts recognised in the
Group’s financial statements as at Balance sheet date:

For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Gratuity Funded

Detined benefit obligation ’ 2,214 1,960
Fair value of plan assets 1,511 1,530
Net defined benefit (obligation)/assets 703 430
Non-current 386 153
Current 317 277

Movement in net defined benefit (asset) / lability

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (asset) / liability and its components

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Gratuity Funded

Defined benefit obligation

Opening balance 1,960 2,001
Included in profit or loss
Current service cost 195 223
Interest cost 138 137
2,293 2,361
Included in OCI
Remeasurement loss / (gain): (€3)) 47)
Actuarial loss / (gatn) 57 (120)
Demographic assumptions ) -
Financial assumptions an (5)
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(i)

Employee benefit
Defined Benefit Plan:

B. Movement in net defined benefit (asset) / liability

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Gratuity Funded

Other

Contributions paid by the employer - -

Benefits paid (126) (230)

Closing balance 2,214 1,960

FFair value of plan asset

Opening balance 1,530 1,612

Included in profit or loss - -

Interest income 107 110
1,637 1,722

Included in OCT

Return on plan assets excluding interest income (5) 29
1,632 1,751

Other

Contributions paid by the employer 6 8

Benefits paid 27 (229)

Closing balance 1,511 1,530

Represented by

Net defined benefit asset - -

Net defined benefit liability 703 431

703 431

C. Plan assets

Plan asscts comprisc the following :

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Gratuity Funded

Investment in scheme of insurance 100%

D. Defined benefit obligations
Actuarial assumptions

The following were the principal actuarial assumiptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages).

100%

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Discount rate 7.23% 7.02%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.23% 7.02%
Salary escalation 7.00% 7.00%
Maortality pre retirement Indian Assured Indian Assured

Lives Mortality
(2006-08) Ultimate

Martality post retirement N. A,
Employee turnover rate (for different age Groups) 21.00% - 2.00%

Lives Mortality
(2006-08) Ultimate

N. A,
21.00% - 2.00%

The estimate of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation takes into consideration inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors

such as supply and demand in the employment market.

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period over which the

obligation is to be settled.
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37 Employee benefit

(if) Defined Benefit Plan:

E. Reconciltiation of net liability/asset

Gratuity As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Opening Balance 431 390
Ixpenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 225 249
Expenscs Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCT) 53 (200)
(Employer's Contribution ) (6) (8)
Net liability / (Asset) recognised in the balance sheet 703 431

F. Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and loss

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss for Current

Period

Current Service Cost 198 2
Net Interest Cost 30

Past Service Cost - -
(Expected Contributions by the Employees) - -
(Gains)/Losses on Curtailments And Settlements - -
Net Bffect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates - -
Expenses Recognized 225 250

[T
~

G. Expenses recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCT)

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Expenses Recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

for Current Period

Actuarial (Gains)/losses on Obligation for the year 48 (71
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Tncome .5 29
Change in Asset Ceiling -
Net (Income)/Expense For the Period Recognized in Other 53 {200)
Comprehensive Income (OCI)

H. Reconciliation of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Gratuity As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Opening Balance 631 783
Acturies losses during the year 41 (152)
Balance end of the year 672 631

1. Other Details

As al As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Prescribed contribution for next years (12 months) 317 312
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37

(i)

Employee benefit
Defined Benelit Plan:

J. Maturity Analysis of Projected Benefit Obligation : From the Fund

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Projected benefits payable in tuture years from the date of reporting

Ist following Year 154
2nd following Year 106
3rd following Year 97
4th following Year 164
5th following Year 205
Sum of years 6 to 10 1,179

K. Sensitivity analysis

65

51
183
86
173
1,022

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected

the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Gratuity Gratuity
Discount rate (1% movement) (174) 199 (149) 216
Future salary growth (1% movement) 198 (176) 214 (150)
Employee turnover rate (1% movement) 1)) 1 18 20
Mortality post retirement N. A. N. A, N. A N A,

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the

sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

iii. Other long term employee bencfits.

Compensated abscnces are payable to employces. The charge towards compensated absences for the year ended 31 March 2022 based on actuarial

valuation using the projected accrued benefit method is ¥ 526 (Previous year 31 March 2021 3461).
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Leases
Operating lease

a) The Group will not reassess whether a contract is or contains a lease. Accordingly, the definition of lease in accordance with Ind AS 17
witl continue to be applied to lease contracts entered by the Group or modified by the Group before 01 April 2018.

b) The Group has applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of feases of similar assets in similar cconomic environment. Consequently, the
Group has recorded its lease liability using the present value of remaining lease payments, discounted using the incremental borrowing
rate at the date of initial application and the right-ol-use asset at its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the
commencement date of the lease, but discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application,

¢) The Group daes not recognize ROU assets and lease liabilities for leases with less than twelve months of lease term on the date of initial
application.

d) The Group had taken office premises under cancellable and non-cancellable operating lease agreements that were renewable on a periodic
Dasis at the option of both the lessor and the Tessee, The operating lease agreements extended up o a maximum of nine years from their
respective dates of inception and some of these lease agreements had price escalation clause.

) As a result of ongoing pandemic, during the year 2021-22 , the lessor and the Group mutually agreed concession in rental for premises.
There is a reduction in lcase payments due to rent concession. As these concessions are short term, the change in lease payments of X 40
is credited to profit and loss account.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to all rent concessions as these concession meet the conditions of practical expedient.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities recognised with the movements during the period:

As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Carrying amount of Right of use assets recognised and the movements during the period :
Balance at the beginning of the reporting year 862 1,346
Addition (Note 04) 1,025 31
Depreciation expenscs (376) (410)
Disposal of assct during the ycar [¢)) (105)
Balance at the cnd of the reporting year 1,510 862
Carrying amount of lcasc Liabilitics and the movements during the period :
Balance at the beginning of the reporting year 1,040 1,528
Addition 1,024 30
Deletion +0) (213)
Accretion of interest 125 105
Payments (410} (410)
Balance at the end of the reporting year 1,739 1,040
Current 350 193
Non-Current 1,389 847

As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Maturity analysis of undiscounted lease cash flows
Less than 6 months 232 145
6-12 months 230 108
1-2 years 432 218
2-5 years 1,002 439
More than 5 years 190 332
Total 2,086 1,242

The effective interest rate for lease labilides is in the range of 5.89% - 8.74% wilh maturity between Nov 2022 to Sept 2028

Depreciation expense of Right of use assets 376 410
Interest expenses on leasce liabilitics 125 105
Expenses related to short term leases (included in other expenses) 158 200
Expenses related to fease of low value assets -

Total amount recognised in Profit or loss 659 715
Cash outtlow of leases duting the year 404 410

The Company had total cash outflows for leases of T 283 in 31 March 2022 (% 279 in 31 March 2021). The Company also had non-cash
additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of ¥ 673 in 31 March 2022 (X 14 in 31 March 2021).
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Leases
Company as a lessor

Finance lease as lessor

The Group has given vehicles on finance lease. These leases have a primary period, which is fixed and cannot be terminated without consent of both the parties.
There are no exceptional / restrictive covenants in the lease agreements. The reconciliation between the total gross investment in the lease at the balance sheet
date and the present value of minimum lease payments receivable at the balance sheet are as follows:

Risk management on the residual intevest of the Teasing portfolio happens through the process of RV commiltee. RV commiittee meets on a periodic basis and
determines the RV that are offered for cach model. In case of Finance lease transaction , there is a commitment by the lessee / user and guaranteed residual value
is incfuded in lease payment receivable. The same is factored lease rental caleulation and hence RV rigk is taken care of,

As at As at
31 March 2022 34 March 2021
Financce lease income 7,527 6,132
Net investment in finance lease 68,733 42,492
Category of lease
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Vehicle 46,147 32,828
Equipment 23,343 10,967
Two Wheeler 32 90
Fumiture & Fixture 129 168
69,651 44,053
Movement of net investment in finance leaase
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Opening balance 42,492 44,215
Net addition 26,241 (1,723)
Net closing of net investment in finance leaase 68,733 42,492
Addition to lease are net off of deletion
Gross investment in lease and present value of mininum lease payments for each of the following periods are as follows:
As at As at
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2022
Gross investment Net present Gross investment  Net present value
in lease value of MLP in lease of MLP
Less than onc year 33,040 25,248 23,321 18,308
Between one and five years 52,124 44,403 30,073 25,745
Morc than five years - - - -
85,164 69,651 53,394 44,053

Operating lease as lessor

The Group is in the business of leasing vehicles. The lease tem for these contracts ranges from 2 (0 4 years and are fixed and cannot be terminated without
consent of both the lessor and lessee. No purchase options are given to the lessces during or at the end of the lease term. On retivement of vehicles from the
rental business i.e. when a vehicle is not actively let out on a lease for more than 6 months, the vehicle becomes held for sale and reclassified to inventory. Any
contingent rent is not conisdered as part of MLD as they are not resonably measured at the commneement of the lease and recognised in profit and loss as

income when recieved.

Risk management on the residual interest of the leasing portfolio happens through the process of RV comimittee. RV committee meets on a periodic basis and
determines the RV that are offered for each model.

In case of Operating lease tansaction RV committee decides the residual value of cach asset class. The Group has adequate expertise, data and resources to
estimate the RVs at the inception of lease and manage the sale process at the end of lease tenor.
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Category of lease

As at As at

31 March 2022 34 March 2021

Vehicles 25,547 26,206

The future minimum lease rental receivable under non-cancellable operating lease are as follows:

As at As al

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Within one year 31,185 22,277
After one but not niore than five years 46,156 24,819
77,341 47,096

Taotal

Company as a lessee

Finance lease

The Group has entered into lease agreements for feasehold land and building, the land and building has been classfied as finance lease. The lease term is for 62
g 2, 2

years expiring on 31 March 2068, The arrangement docs not grant an cxtension option to the Group, Following is the carrying amount of the leaschold buliding:

As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Gross carrying ameunt 3,144 3,144
Addition - -

Net carrying amount 3,144 3,144

Opening Accumulated depreciation 300 240

Depreciation for the year 60 60

2,784 2,844

Net carrying amount

(This space have been intentionally left blank)
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Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for):

i) Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Income lax 1,733 649
Sales tax and value added tax 4,838 5,785
Service tax 1,204 16.295
Litigation pending against the Group 140 74
Total 7,915 22,803

The Group’s pending litigations comprise of claims against the Group primarily by the customers and proceedings pending with Income Tax, Sales
Tax and Scrvice Tax authoritics. The Group has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequatcly provided for where
provisions are required and disclosed the contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial statements. The amount of provisians / contingent

liabilities is based on management’s estimate, and no significant liability is expected to arise out of the same.

i) The Group has received various claims from its customers in refation to the service rendered by it The Group has cither vesponded to such claims
directly to customers or filed a response with appropriate authorites, where such claims were logged by the customers. There exists an uncertainty
aver the custome of such cases, howeveer the management is confident of favourable outcome based on the advice of its legal counscl and therefore

not recorded any provision against such claim.
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40 A. Name of relaled parties and related party relationship
I Holding Company

2 Fellow Associate

3 Key Management Personnel

B. Name of related parties and related party refationship

Holding Company

Fellow Associate
Key Management Personnel

C  Related party transactions for the year ended

ORIX Corporation

Infrastructure Leasing and Financial Services Linnted

Mr. Sandeep Gambhir, Managing Director and Chief Executive Ofticer
Mr. Vivek Wadhera, Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Yoshiaki Matsuoka, Chairman and Director

Mr. Nagesh Dubey, Independent Director

Mr. Abhay Kakkar, Independent Director

Mr. Rajeev Setl: - Independent Director (Upto 09 November 2021)
Mr. Ryohel Suzuki, Whole time Director (from 03 September 2021)
My, Takashi Yamasaki, Additional Divector (from 29 July 2021)
Mr. Takashi Nakayama, Director (upto 29 July 2021)

M. Takchiro Onishi, Additional Director

Mr. Shin Hamada, Additional Director

Ms. Meeta Sanghvi, Director

=

ORIX Corporation

Infrastructure Jcasing and financial services limited

Mr. Sandecp Gambhir, Managing Dircector and Chief Exccutive Officer
Mr. Vivek Wadhera, Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Nagesh Dubey, Independent Director

Mr. Abhay Kakkar, Independent Director
Mr. Ryohei Suzuki, Whole time Director

Key management

Holding company Fellow assaciate

personnel
i.  Reimbursement of admimstrative expenses - - -
(186) S} )
ii. ECB borrowing - - -
(10,000) (=) (-)
iil. Interest expenses on ECB 2,536 - -
(2,264) ) )
iv. Bank guarantee & global fees charges 201 - -
(216) ) )
v.  Commitment charges 179 - -
(12) ) ()
vi. Reimbursement of salary 33 - -
(82) ) Q]
vii. Tax payment - - i
&) 5 )
viil. Loans & receivables (Net of{ ECL) - - -
¢ - 3)
ix. Income from finance lease - - -
o 0 ©
x. M. Sandeep Gambhir, Managing director and chief - 260 -
executive officer
O] (285) )
xi. Mr. Vivek Wadhera, Chief financial officer - 206 -
Q) (199) )
Xii. Mr. Ryohei Suzuki, Whole time director - 96 -
) (o) )
xiii. Mr. Jay Gandhi, Company Scerctary - 66 -
8] (68) )
xiv. Mr. Abhay Kakkar, Independent dircctor - 8 -
) (10) -)
xv. Mr. Nagesh Dubey, Independent divector - 7 -
) 9 (-}
xvi. Mr. Rajeev Seth, Independent director - L -
=) (3) -)
xvii. Expenscs towards rent and clectricity - - 60
Q) (79)
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Holding company

Key management

Fellow associate

personnel
Pavable
Interest & other expenses 325 - -
(306) ) )
ECB borrowing 35,000 - -
(35,000) ©) )
Reimbursement of salary 33 - -
(82) ) )
Pavable towards director sitfin
Abhay Kakkar - 1 -
S @ ©
Nagesh Dubey - - -
) [ )
Rajeev Seth - - -
) )] )
Receeivable towards premiscs deposit paid - - 20
) =) (20)
Payable towards rent & electricity Expenses - - 12
Q) Q] (8)

Figures in brackets relate 10 previous year.

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sales to and purchases from related pariies are rmade on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.
Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees
provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group has not recorded any
impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (31 March 2021: ¥ Nil). This assessmenf is undertaken each
financial year through cxamining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Short-term cmployee benetits

Post-cmployment gratuity and medical bencfits

Termination benelits

Share-based payment transactions

Tuotal compensation paid to key management personnel

593 631
45 36
638 667

The amounts disclosed in the table are the amounts rccogniscd as an cxpense during the reporting period related to key management

personnel.

Generally, the independent dircctors do not reccive gratuity catitlements from the Group. During the year caded 31 March 2022, an

amount of T 16 lakhs paid as director sitting fees.
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Segment reporting

A. General Information

(2) Faceors used to identify the entity’s reportable segments, including the basis of organjsation

For management purposes. the Group is organised into business units based on its business verticles and has two reportable segments, as tollows:

» Segment-1 : Lending
+ Segment-2 : Transport Solutions

The Cheifl Executive Officer (CEO) been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CEO regularly reviews the performance reports and

make decisions about allocation of resources.

(b) Following are reportable segments

Reportable segment
Scgment-1 : Lending
Segment-2 : Transport Solutions

B. Information about reportable segments
For the year ended 31 March 2022

Reportable segments

Lending 1;0‘;::1'::5( Total Segments Agi:::::::;i:& Consolidated
Income
Externat Customers 25,807 51,238 77,045 77,045
Inter-scgment 13 752 766 766 -
Total income 25,820 51,990 77,811 766 77,045
Income / (expenses)
Interest Income 96 108 203 80 124
Interest expense 11,800 5452 17.252 80 17,172
Depreciation and amortization 896 21,263 22,159 22,159
Income tax expense (352) (93) (445) (445)
E::t;::ﬁ:::iygm other than depreciation and amortisation (Bad dobts and 4,963 159 5121 s
Segment profit / (loss) 1,449 (712) 737 737
Segment assets 2,40,558 1,57.645 3,98,203 43,769 3,54,435
Segment liabilities 1,75,042 1,05,834 2,80,876 1,363 2,79,512
Other disclosures
Capital expenditure 837 38,260 39,096 39,096
For the year ended 3¢ March 2021

Reportable segments

Lending Tq:;:::f::;:‘ Total Segments Ag::::::(:;fl Consolidated
Income
External Customers 33,894 46,192 80,086 80,086
Inter-segment 25 742 766 706 -
Total income 33,919 46,934 80,852 766 80,086
Income / (expenses)
Interest Income 194 105 299 69 230
Interest cxpense 14,766 6,156 20,922 69 20,853
Depreciation and amortization 947 22,403 23,351 23,351
Income tax expense 1,744 {1,040y 704 704
Material non-cash items ather than depreciation and amortisation (Bad debts an
Loss allowance ECL) l 4 * (e ‘ 4,001 tos 4109 4,109
Segment profit / (luss) 4,844 (3,137 1,707 1,707
Segment assets 2,45,334 1,44,690 3,90,024 43,584 3,46,440
Segment liabilities 1,81,247 92,145 2,73,392 1,179 2,72,213
Other disclosures
Capital expenditure 293 21,071 21.364 21,364

C. Geographic information

The Group operates only in India and it perceives that there is no significant difference in its risks and retums in operating from different geographic arcas within

India.

D. Information about major custonzers

The Group is not reliant on any one client or Group of connected clients for generation of revenues.
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Fair values
Accounting classification and fair values

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories is as under:

Risk management on the residual interest of the leasing portfolio happens through the process of RV conunittee. RV commitice
meets on a periodic basis and determines the RV that are offered for each model.

As at 31 March 2022

Amortised cost FVTPL FVTOCT

Financial assets

Trade receivables 8,666 -
Cash and cash equivalents 5,983 -
Bank balances other than above 443 -
Loans 2,04,266 -
Other financial assets 13,842 -
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 2,49,907 -
Lease liabilities 1,740 -
Trade payables 11,600 -
Other financial liabilities 12,382 -

As at 31 March 2021

Amortised cost FVTPL

Financial assets

Trade receivables 7,393 -
Cash and cash equivalents 6,394 -
Bank balances other than above 411 -
Loans 2,21,429 -
Other tinancial assets 9,212 -
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 2,45,854 -
Lease liabilities 1,040 -
Trade payables 9,549 -
Other financial liabilities 10,293 -
The following assumptions/ methods were used to estimate fair values:
i. The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, other current financial assets and trade payables are considered to be same as
their carrying values due to their short term nature
il The carrying amount of other items carried at amortised cost are reasonable approximation of their fair value.
iii. The fair value of the financial assets and liabilitics is included at the amount at which the instruments could be exchanged

in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

Fair value hierarchy

All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, deseribed
as foltows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities

Level 2: valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that has a significant effect on the [air value measurement are
observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: valuation techniques for which the lowest level input which has a significant effect on the fair value measurement is not
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Tair value hicrarchy

The following table provides the fuir value measurement hierarchy of the Group's

ssets and liabilides.

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 March 2022:

March 31, 2022

Fair value

Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Totat
Financial assets
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Trade receivables 8,666 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 5,983 - - - -
Bank balances other than above 443 - - - -
Loans 2,04,266 - - - -
Other financial asscts 13,842 - - - -
2,33,200 - - - -
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilites measured at amortised cost
Borrowings 2,49,907 - - - -
Leasc liabilitics 1,740 - - - -
Trade payables 11,600 - - - -
Other financial liabilities 12,382 - - - -
2,75,629 - - - -
Fair value
March 31, 2021 Carrying Value Level 1 fevel 2 Level 3 Todal
Financial assets
Financial Assets measured at amortised Cost
Trade receivables 7,393 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 6,394 - - - -
Bank balances other than above 411 - - - -
Loans 2,21,429 - - - -
Other financial assets 9,212 - - - -
2,44,839 - - - -
Financial liabilitics
Financial liabilites measured at amortised cost
Bomowings 2,45,854 - - - -
Lease liabitities 1,040 - - - -
Trade payables 9.549 - - - -
Other financial liabilitics 10,293 - - - -
2,66,736 B N N B
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Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management

AL Accomnting classification and fair values

(1) Assets that are not financial assets (such as prepaid expenses, advances to suppliers ete.), are not included.

(2) [n this 1able, the Group has disclosed the fair value of each class of financial assets and financial liabilities in a way that permits the information to be
compured with their ewrrying amounts, In addition, it has reconciled the assets and liabilities to the different categories of financial imstruments as defined
in Ind AS 109. This presentation method is optional and a different presentation methad may be more appropriate, depending on circumstances.

(3) Investments in subsidiaries is measured at cost in ceordance with Ind AS 27 and hence not included in the table above

(4) Fairvalue is done as at the year end.

B. Measurement of {air values

Valuation technigues and significant unobservable inputs

a. Fair value of cash and bank balances, prepaid guavantee commission, ofher short term receivables, trade payables, other current liabilinies, securily
deposits approximate their carrying amounts largely due to short term maturities of these instruments.

b. The following tables show the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values, as well as the significant unobservable inputs

used.

Financial instruments measured at fair value

Type Valuation technigue

Fixed rafes long term borrowings The valuation model considers present value of expected
payments discounted using an appropriate discaunting
1ate.

Sceurity deposits for premiscs “The valuation modcl considers present value of expeeted
payments discounted using an appropriate discounting
rate.
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Financial instruments — Financial risk management obejctives and policies

The Group's principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these
{inancial liabilities is 10 finance the Group’s operations and to provide guarantees Lo support its operations. The Group’s principal financial assels include
trade and other receivables, security deposits, cash and cash equivalents, bank balances that derive directly fiom its operations.

Financial risk management

The Group has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
« Market risk ;

= Interest rate risk ;

= Foreign currency risk ;

= Credit risk ;
= Liquidity risk

and

Risk management framework

The Group’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management tramework.

The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to
monitor risks and adherence to Himits. Risk management policies and systems arc reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Group’s activities. The Group, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices — will affect the Group’s income or
the value of its holdings of financial instruments, Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including forcign currency
receivables and payables and loug term debt.

The sensitivity analyses have been preparced on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of {ixed to floating interest rates of the debt.

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying values of gratity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions; and
the non-financial assets and liabilities of foreign operations. The analysis for the contingent consideration liability is provided in Note 39.

The assumptions have been made in caleulating the sensitivity analyses of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in vespective
market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities hield at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

i. Interest rate risk
Interest rate sk is the risk that the faiv value or futuve cash flows of a financial instrument will Quctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates primarily to the Group's borrowings with floating intcrest rates.

Exposure to interest rate risk

Group’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings. The Group manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of tixed and variable rate loans
and borrowings. The interest rate profile of the Group’s interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to the management of the Group is as follows.

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Interest bearing financial labilitics
Fixed rate borrowings
Non-convettible Debentures 20,000 20,000
Term Loan from Banks 37,625 39,500
Term loan from Parent Company (ORIX Corpoartion-Japan) 35,000 35,000
[Lease liabilities 1,331 885
Security Deposits 1,780 1,551
Total 95,736 96,936
Variable rate borrowings
Term Loan from Banks 1,19,874 1,26,588
Short Term Loan From Banks 3,500 2,400
Cash Credit and Overdratt facilitics From Banks 3,623 245
Working capital Demand Loan 29,500 21,100
Book Overdraft 4 125
Total 1,56,501 1,50,458
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Financial instruments — Financial risk management obejetives and policies

Interest bearing financial assets

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Fixed Rate

Bank Deposits

Loan to Employees

Securily Deposits

Loan against Hypothecation of vehicle
Finance Lease receivables

Loan against Property (ECLGS)

Total
Variable Rate
Receivable on account of cost recoveries
Loan against Property

Total

i. Interest rate risk

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments

443 413

28 8

512 410

8,854 22,066

73,475 46,715
4,327 -

87,639 069,612

1,275 1,042

1,17,670 1,52,776

1,18,945 1,53,818

The Group does not account for any fixed-rate financial assets or financial liahilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates

at the reporting date would not affeet profit or loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in intercst rates on the affected portion of loans and borrowings. The

Group’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Profit or (loss)

100 bp increase

100 bp decrease

31 March 2022
Variable-rate instruments

Cash flow seusitivity (net)

31 March 2021
Variable-rate instruments

Cash tlow sensitivity (net)

(376) 376
(376) 376
34 (34)
34 (34)

The risk cstimates provided assume a parallel shift of 100 basis points interest ratc across all yield curves. The scnsitivity has been caleulated assuming the

borrowings outslanding at the reporting date have been outstanding for the entive reporting period.

if) Foreign Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate beeause of changes in forcign exchange rates. The
Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily 10 the Group’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is

denominated in a foreign currency) and the Group’s net investments in foreign subsidiaries

The Group has its revenues and other transactions in its functional currency i.e. INR except immaterial expenditwe in foreign currency. Accordingly the

Group has no material exposure to currency risk as on 31 March 2022
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Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Continued)

iil. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group it a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises
s J!
principally from the Group's receivables from customers and Joans and advances.
The maximuwn exposuce (o the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from Operating Lease, Rent-a-car and business transport solutions receivables.
! T -3 [ 3 I 3 !

The Group’s exposure (o eredit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer.

a. Amounts arising from ECL

i. Inputs, ptions and technigues used for estimating impairment

Assumption and estimation technique considered in ECL model:

When determining whether the risk of default on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based
on the Group’s historical experience, expert credit assessment and including forward looking information.

Tn assessing the impairment of loan assets under Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Model, the Joans have been segmunted into three stages based on the risk profiles.
The three stages reflect the general pattern of credit deterioration of a financial instrument.

Assumption and Estimation techniques considered in the ECL model:

- “Loss given default" (LGD) is an estimate of loss from a transaction given that a default occurs.

- "Probability of default" (PD) is defined as the probabitity of whether the borrowers will default on their obligations in the future. Stage 3 assets are considered
to have a 100% PD.

- "Exposute at default" (EAD) represents the expected exposure in the event of a default and is the gross carrying amount in case of the financial assets held by
the Group.

For Operating Lease, Rent-a-car and business transport solutions receivables:

The ECL has been computed on trade receivables in accordance with simplified approach based on days past due buckets of respective portiolios. The days past
duc has been adjusied to give etfect to following:

- the time lag between the raising of invoices and handing it over to the customer.

- the credit period mentioned in respective invoice

- the time lag incorporated for Car Rental and Business Transport Solution (‘BTS') is 90 days. *

- the probability of default is based on the historical trends of impairment of trade receivables. The historical trends are adjusted with macro economic factors to
make it forward looking.

- Loss given default is based on the recovery pattern for the default clients, as well as Basel guidelines.

-Given the economic scenario, an additional LGD of 5% has been factored in for Car Rental and BTS

“The Group calegorises receivables into stages based on the days past due status adjusted Lo give effeect of credit period and time lag Lor invoicing.

For Loans against hypothecation of vehicles, Loans against property and Finance Lease receivables:

- The probability of default is assessed based on the flow of receivables flowing through successive DPD bucket bascd on past portfolio performance.

- Loss given default is assessed based on factors such as past recoveries, applicable regulatory guidance ete. Given the Loans against hypothecation of vehicles is
a liguidating portfolio, the LGD for this portfolio has been stressed and kept at 40%

- For assets which are in Stage 1, a 12 month ECL is assessed. For Stage 2 and stage 3 assets a lifetime ECL 1s assessed

-Exposure at default is arrived at after factoring in prepayments, which are estimated based on past portfolio performance. These have been adjusted to factor in
the situation arising out of COVID 19

Days past duc

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Operating Lease 0-30 31-90 More than 90
*Car Rental 0-120 120-180 More than 180
*Busincss Trangport Solution 0-120 120-180 Morc than 180
Loans against hypothecation of vehicle 0-30 31-90 More than 90
Loans against property 0-30 31-90 More than 90
Finance lease 0-30 31-90 More than 90
Other receivables 0-30 31-90 More than 90
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Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Continued)
iii, Credit risk
a. Amounts arising from ECL

Forward looking information:

The below table shows (he values of forward Tooking macro cconomic variable used in cach of the scenarios for the FCI. caleutation. For this purpose the Group
has used the data source of Economist Intelligence Unit. GDP has been used as a macro economic factor to caleulate the forward looking probablities of default.
The upside and downside % change has been derived using historical standard deviation trom the base scenario,

Seenario Weights have been arrived at taking into consideration product characteristics and prevailing macro-economic conditions.

31 March 2022 Probability assigned
Best Case Basc Case Worst Case
Operating Lease 21.20% 68.20% 10.60%
Car Rental 21.20% 48.40% 30.40%
Business Transport Solution 21.20% 68.20% 10.60%
Finance Lease receivables 21.20% 68.20% 10.60%
Loan Against Property 21.20% 68.20% 10.60%
Loans against hypothecation of vehicles 241.20% 68.20% 10.60%
2022 (%) 3 7 1
2023 (%) 11 5 (1)
2024 (%) i 5 0)
2025 (%) 3 6 (0}
2026 (%) 38 5 ()
2027 (%) L1 6 0)
2028 (%) il 5 (1)
Subsequent years (%) 12 [ 2
31 March 2021 Probability assigned
Best Case Base Case Worst Case

Operating Lease 21.20% 68.20% 10.60%
Car Rental 21.20% 48.40% 30.40%
Business Transport Solution 21.20% 68.20% 10.60%
GDP % Operating Leass, Car Rental, Business Transport
Solution
2021 (%) 18 13 8
Loans against hypothceation of vehicle 21.20% 36.40% 42.40%
Loans against property 21.20% 47.00% 31.80%
Finance lease 21.20% 68.20% 10.60%
GDP % Loans against hypothecation of vehicle, Loans
against property, Finance lease
2021 (%) 18 13 8
2022 (%) 10 5 -1
2023 (%) {1 6 0
2024 (%) 11 5 -0
2025 (%) 11 6 4]
2026 (%) 11 6 0
2027 (%) 11 6 1

12 6 1

Subsequent years (%)

Definition of default

A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make the contractual payments within 180 days of raising the invoice for rent a car and business
transport solutions portfolios. For operating lease reccivables portfolio, loan against property, commercial vehicle loan and finance lease, the same would be
within 90 days from the due date of the rental. This definition of default is determined by considering the business environment in which the Group operates and

other micro-economic factors.

Policy for write-off of receivables
The management reviews trade receivables and expected credit losses on the same periodically. Basis past experience and management's expectations about the
collectebility of receivables, receivables are written oft in the statemont of profit and loss.
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Financiat instruments — Fuir values and risk management (Continued)

iii. Credit visk

b. Amounts arising from ECL

ii Exposure at default and Loss allowance for operating lease, car reatal, business transport solution and others

Exposure at default

31 March 2022 OL RAC Business Others Total
Transport
Solution
Stage | 1,547 3,382 1,439 6,501 12,869
Stage 2 246 34 30 32 342
Stage 3 482 206 292 82 1,062
Total 2,275 3,622 1,761 6,615 14,273
Loss Allowance 81 124 159 213 576
31 March 2021 oL RAC Business Others Total
Transport
Solution
Stage 1 1,400 2,011 1,074 4,366 8,851
Stage 2 649 90 7 231 977
Stage 3 359 413 333 1,232 2,337
Total 2,408 2,514 1,414 5,829 12,165
Loss Allowance 37 225 165 235 661
Foss allowance
The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade and other receivable during the year was as follows:
As at As at

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Operating Lease

Balance as the beginning of the year
Tmpairment loss recognised (net)
Balance as at the year end

RAC

Balance as the beginning of the year
Tmpairment loss recognised (net)
Balance as at the year end

BTS

Balance as the beginning of the year
Impairment {oss recognised (net)
Balance as at the year end

Others

Balance as the beginning of the year
Impaivment loss recognised (net)
Balance as at the year end

Total Loss allowance
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Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Continued)

fii Joxposure at default and Loss allowance for toan against property, loan against bypothecation of vehicles and finance fease

Loan against Property

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

EAD ICL EAD LCL
Stage 1 92,806 2,032 121,005 1,771
Stage 2 22,006 1,135 20,701 786
Stage 3 13,515 3,163 14,387 1.749
Total 1,28.327 6,330 1,57,083 4,306
Loan against Hypothecation of vehicle As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

EAD ECL EAD ECL
Stage 1 5765 353 15,579 595
Stage 2 1,778 131 1,813 91
Stage 3 2,986 1,191 8214 2,854
Total 14,529 1,678 25,606 3,540
Finance Leases As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

FTAD ICL EAD ECL
Stage 1 66,110 373 34,764 161
Stage 2 4,793 83 9,240 183
Stage 3 4,295 1,266 3452 395
Total 75,198 1,722 47,456 741
The following table shows reconciliations from the opening to the closing balance of gross exposure
Gross carrying amount Stage One Stage Two Stage Three Total
Loan against Hypothecation of Vehicles
Balance as at 01 April 2020 24,447 4,466 7,346 36,259
‘I'vansfer to stage one 1,827 (1.751) (76} -
Transter to stage two (1,261) 1,265 “4) -
Transfer to stage three (1481) (950) 2,430 )
Nel remeaswrement of foss allowance (5,050) (589) 301 (5.338)
New financial assets originated or purchased 150 - - 150
Financial asscts that have been devccognised (3,053) (628) (1.783) (5.464)
Write ~ ofts - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 15,579 1,813 8,214 25,606
Transfer (o slage one 649 (314) (335) -
‘T'ransfer to stage two (2,402) 2,490 (8%) -
Transfer to stage three (1,448) (357) 1,805 -
Net remeasurement of loss allowance (3,794) (1,080) 3,936 (93%)
New financial assets originated or purchased - - - -
Financial assets that have been derecognised (2,.819) (772) (6,083) V,674)
\Write — offs - 2) (4,463) (4,465)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 5,765 1,778 2,986 10,529
Gross carrying amount Stage One Stage Two Stage Three Total
Loan against Property
Balance as at 01 April 2020 1,34,972 24,534 6,945 1,660,451
Transfer to stage onc 3474 (3.444) (30) -
Transfer to stage two (4,566) 4,566 - -
Transfer to stage three (3.524) (3,013) 6,537 -
Net remeasurement of loss allowance 2,193 907 1,279 4,379
New financial assets originated or purchased 5,621 9 - 5,630
Financial asscts that have been derecognised (16,175) {2,858) (344) (19.377)
Write — ofts - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 1.21,995 24,701 14,387 1,57,083
Transfer to stage one 3.656 (2,572) (1,084) -
Transfer o stage two (7,091) 7416 (325) -
Transfer to stage three (3,331) (2,202) 5,533 -
Net remeasurement of Joss allowance (1,832) 116 (1.571) (3.287)
New financial assets originated or purchased 1,579 38 1t 1,628
Tinancial assets that have been derecognised (22,169) (1,491) (3,436) (27.096)
Write — offs - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 92,807 22,006 13,515 1,28,328
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42 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Continued)

Gross carrying amount Stage One Stage Two Stage Three Totak
Finance Lease Rececivables

Balance as at 01 April 2020 33,826 11451 1,383 46,660
Transfer to stage one 5279 {3.235) 44) -
Transfer Lo stage (wo (2,007) 2,033 (26) -
Transfer to stage three (1.261) AT 1,971 -
Net remeasurement of loss allowance (3,531) 679 39 (4,813)
New financial asscts originated or purchased 4,756 1,091 137 5984
Financial assets that have been derecognised (298) (69) (R) (375)
Write — offs - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 34,764 9,240 3,452 47,456
Transfcr to stage one 6,792 (6,749) (43) -
Transfer to stage two (1,200) 1,240 34) -
Trausfer (o stage three (199} (193) 392 -
Net remeasurement of loss allowance 13,170 552 (413) 13,309
New {inancial assets originated or purchased 14,039 808 1,238 16,085
Financial asscts that have been derccognised (1,250) (105) (212) (1,567)
Write — offs - - {85) (85)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 66,110 4,793 4,295 75,198

The following table shows reconciliations from the opening to the closing balance of the loss altowances and write offs:

12-month ECL. Lif etm-lc ‘ECL. not Lll.clfmc I%CL Total
credit-impaired credit-impaired

Loan against Hypothceation of Vehicles

Balance as at 31 March 2020 229 231 1,805 2265
Transfer to 12 month ECL 150 (148) ) -
Transfer to Lifetime ECL not credit impaired (58) 59 - 1
Transfer to Lifetime ECL credit impaired (424) (284) 08 -
Net remeasurement of loss allowance 700 261 783 1,744
New financial assets originated or purchased 18 - - 18
Tinancial assets that have been derecognised (20) (28) (440) (488)
Write — offs - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 595 91 2,854 3,540
Transter to 12 month ECL s (7 (98) 0
Transter to Lifetime ECL not eredit impaired (86) 112 (26) -
Transter to Lifetime ECL credit impaired (114) (21) 135 -
Nel remeasurement of loss allowance (110) 1 2,249 2,140
New financial assets originated or purchased - - - -
Financial assets that have been derecognised (47) (35) (2,231 (2,313)
Write — offs - - N (1,692) (1,692)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 353 131 1,191 1,675

12-month ECI Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL Total

eredit-impaired  eredit-impaired

Loan against Property

Balance as at 01 April 2020 170 656 873 1,699
Transfer to 12 month ECL 163 {163) - B
Transfer o Lifetime BECL not credit impaired (369) 369 - -
‘Fransfer to Lifetime ECL credit impaired (430) (367) 797 -
Net remeasurement of loss allowance 2,252 361 121 2,734
New financial assets originated or purchased 4 1 - 5
Financial assels that have been derecognised (19) (71) (42) (132)
Write — offs - - - -
Balance as a¢ 31 March 2021 1,771 786 1,749 4,306
Transfer to 12 month ECL 332 (198) (134) 0
Transfer to Lifetime ECL not credit impaired (210) 249 (39) -
Transfer to Lifetime ECL credit impaired (115) (156) 271 -
Nel remeasurement of loss allowance 440 480 1,731 2,651
New financial assets originated or purchased 2 2 2 6
Financial asscts that have been derccognised (188) (28) (417) (633)

Write — offs - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 1,135 3,163 6,330
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Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Continued)

Lifetime ECL not

Lifetime ECL

12-month ECL eredit-impaired eredit-impaired Total
Finance Lease Receivables
Balance as at 01 April 2020 222 304 198 724
Transfer to 12 month ECL 35 34) ) -
Transfer to Lifetime ECL not credit impaired (30) 31 (€8] -
Transter to Lifetime ECL credit impaired (126) (7t) 197 -
Net remeasurement of oss allowance 33 (67) {3 (3%
New financial assets originated or purchased 29 23 14 66
Financial asscts that have been derecognised (4) (1) 9) (14)
Write — ofls - - - B
Balance as at 31 March 2021 161 185 395 741
Trausfer to 12 month ECL 142 (139) (3) B
Transfcr to Lifetime ECL not credit impaired (] 12 ) -
Transfer to Litetime ECL evedit impaired - (1) 1 -
Net remeasurement of loss allowance 36 135 849 900
New {inancial assels originated or purchased b i6 134 201
Financial assets that have been derecognised (8) (&) (22) 35
Write — ofls - - (85) (85)
Balancc as at 31 March 2022 373 83 1,266 1,722
ECL changes on Financial instruments recorded in P&
Yeur ended 31 Mareh 2022 Lifetime ECL not  Lifetime ECL Simplified
12-month ECL . . . ) Total

eredit-impaired  eredit-impaired approach
Loan against Hypothecation of Vehicles -242 40 -1,663 -1,865
Loan against Property 261 349 1,414 2,024
Finance Lease Receivables 212 (102) 871 981
Trade receivables and others 224 224
Tetal 231 288 622 224 1,364
Year ended 31 March 2021 Lifetime ECL not  Lifetime ECL Simplificd

12-manth ECL o . o ) Total

credit-impaived  eredit-impaired approach
Loan against Hypothccation of Vehicles 363 -140 1,052 1,275
Loan against Property 1,600 131 876 2,607
Finance Lease Receivables -6l -119 197 17
Trade receivables and others 199 199
Total 1,902 -128 2,125 199 4,098

There is increase in expected credit loss in statement of profit and loss account is primarily due to forward-tooking impact of material deterioration in the

ceonomic outlook duc to the COVID-19 pandemic.

There is no material concentration of loss allowance at any particular geographic arca.
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Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management

iv. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another fmancial asset. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is, that it will have sufficient Hquidity (o mect its liabilitics
when they are due, under both normal and steessed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation. The
Group closely monitors it's liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. The Group manages lquidity risk by maintaining
borrowing labilities by continuously monitoring forecast ang actual cash flows, profife of financial assets and liabilities. 1t mainiain adequate source of

financing including loans from bank at optimis: cost.

Muaturity profile of financial asscts and liabilitics

The following are the remaining contractual matwritics of financial liabilitics at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted and

include estimated interest payments.

Contractual cash tlows

March 31, 2022 Carrying ‘Fotal Lessthan 6 6-12 months  1-2 years 2-5years  Maore than 5
amount months years
Non-derivative financial assets
Trade receivables 8,666 8,666 8,666 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 5,983 5,534 5,534 -
Bank balances other than above 443 443 443
Loans 2,04,266 3,77,240 39,846 28,702 50,211 89,560 1,68,922
Other financial asscts 13,842 13,952 5,260 1,232 1,953 5,389 119
Total : 2,33,200
Contractual cash flows
March 31, 2022 Carrying Total Lessthan 6 6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5
amount months years
Non-derivative {inancial liabilities
Borrowings 249,907 2,69,005 74,146 66,259 54,052 74,547 -
Lease fiabilities 1,740 1,740 173 177 334 876 179
Trade payables 11,600 11,539 11,539 - - - -
Other financial liabilitics 12,382 13,245 11,376 431 409 1,029 -
Commitement - - -
Total : 2,75,629
Contractual cash flows
March 31, 2021 Carrying Total  Less than 6 6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5 years More Ihans
anount months years
Non-derivative financial assets
Trade reccivables 7393 7,394 7,394 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 6,394 6,394 6,394 - - - -
Bank balances other than above 411 319 319
Loans 2,21,429 4,32.296 43.850 27,981 48,087 94,337 2,18,040
Other financial assets 9,212 9,304 3.834 834 1,294 3,133 209
Total : 2,44,839
Contractual cash flows
Byt o3 Less 4 " _2 ars 2_: cal r\l | 4
March 31, 2021 Carrying Total lLess than 6 6-12 months 1-2 years S vears ore than 5
amonn¢ months years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings 245,854 2.60,656 75,591 38.701 66,690 79,674 -
Lease liabilities 1,040 1,040 113 80 173 372 302
Trade payables 9,549 9,462 9,462
Other financial liabilities 10,293 11,1558 9,369 454 527 306 -
Commiternent 7,754 7,754 7.754
Total :
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Capital Management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are 1o (a) maximise sharcholders value and provide benctit 10 the stakcholders and (b) maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group monitors capital using a ratio of "adjusted nct debt" to "adjusted cquity”. For this purposc, adjusted net debt is detined as total
liabilities,comprising interest bearing loans and botrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Equity comprises all components of equity.

As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Non-Current Borrowings 1,39,594 1,35,540
Current Borrowings 55,409 34,267
Cwrvent maturity of long term debt 54,905 76,047
Lcasc liabilitics (refer note no. 38) 1,740 1,040
Gross Debt 2,51,648 2,46,894
Less - Cash and Cash Equivalents (5,983) (6,394)
Adjusted Net debt 2,45,665 2,40,500
Total equity 74,924 74,228
3.28 3.24

Adjusted Net debt o adjusted equity ratio
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44 Ratio Anudysis and jts cleoents

Ratio

Numerator

Denominator

31 March 2022

3§ March 2021

% change

Remark

Cuwrrent Ratio

Dbt - Equity Ratio

Debit Service Coverage ratio

Return on Fquity ralio

Inveatory Turnover raatio

Trade Receivable Tumover ratio

Trade Payable Turagver ratio

Net Capital Tumover Ratio

Nel Profil ratio

Return an Capital Employed

Return on investment

Current Assets

Tolal Debts

Current Liabilites

Sharcholder's Equity

Eamings for debt service = Netprofit. Debt service — inerest & Lease

after taxes +Nan-cash operating

expenses

Net Prafit aller laxes - Preference
Dividend

Cost of goods sold

Net credit sales = Gross vredit sales -

Sales return

Net credit purchases = Gross eredit

purchases - Purchase return

Net sales = Total sales - sales return

Net Profit

FEamingss before inferestand raxes

interest (Finance income)

Paymerts +Principal Repayments

Average Shazeholder's liquily

Average laventory

Average Trade Receivables

Average Trade Payables

Waorking capital = Current assets -
Cureent liabilities

Net sales = Total sales - sales veturn

Capital Employed = Tangible Net
Worth +Total Debts +Delened Tax
Tiability

Investment

0.60

5.76%

066.41

10.76

(LR L]

(1.4

0.96%

5.37%

1.79%

(This space bave been intentionally left blank)

0.55

19.21

0.38

13.34%

2.13%

7.44%,

1.96%
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9.18%

1.65%

-6.56%

-56.83%

21.14%

46.96%

13.06%

6.47%

-55.13%

=21777%

-9.10%

Decrease  in - ratio on
account of foss incurred in
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increase  in
in
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Other Statutory Information

i)

if)
iii)
iv)

v)

vi)

vii)

The Group do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Benami property.

The Group do not have any trasactions with companies struck off.
The Group do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
The Group have not traded or mvested in Cryplo curency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

The Group have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the intermediary shall :
a) directly or indivectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manmer whatsoever by ov on behalf of the Group (Ulumate Benificiaries)

or
b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Group have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded
in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall
a) dircetly or indircetly fend or invest in other persons or entitics identificd in any manncr whatsocver by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalt of the Ultimate Bencficiaries.

The Group have not any such wansaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in
the tax assessments unde the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, scarch or survey or any other refevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

viii) The Company has not been declared wilfu] defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.
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Repayment schedule of long term borrowing :

Loan as on 31 March 2022 are repayble as stated blow

Interest Rate 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-5 years Total
Floating
Mounthly 7.00% 10 8.45% 2,241 1,277 532 4,050
Quarterly 5.95% to 8.50% 12,589 8,750 5,313 26,652
Bullet Payment 5.70% to 7.35% - 23,000 - 23,000
Fixed
Monthly 6.30% 1,875 1,875 - 3,750
Quartetly 6.25% 4,000 3,000 7,000
RBullet Payment 6.35% to 7.60% 20,000 15,000 20,000 55,000
Total 40,705 52,902 25,845 1,19,452
Loan as on 31 March 2021 are repayble as stated blow

Interest Rate 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-8 yvears Total
Floating
Monthly 7.65% - 9.15% 14,662 967 - 15,629
Quarterly 7.40% - 8.15% 9,366 3,839 - 13,205
Bullet Payment 32,0600 - 10,000 42,000
Fixed
Monthly 6.30% 1,875 1,875 1,875 5,625
Bullet Payment 7.47% - 8.85% 4,000 20,000 35,000 59,000
Total 61,903 26,681 46,875 1,35459

Note : Processing fees of T (0) (Previous year ¥ (2)) and Interest payable on term loan of ¥ 140 (Previous year X 98) not included in above table.

(This space have been intentionally feft blank)

S,

Digitally signed by

ANJAY BACHCHANI

| Date: 2022.07.29
18:16:44 +05'30"



ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited

CIN : U63032MHI1995P1.C086014

Consolidated notes to the financial statements for the year ended 38 March 2022
(AN amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated otherwisc)

47 Change in liabilities arising from financing activities

0t April 2621

Cash Flows

31 March 2022

Long term borrowing 1,41,900 (3,339) 1,38,561
Short term borrowing 33,010 17,992 51,002
Cash credit & overdraft facility from bank 245 3,378 3,623
ECB Borowing 39,088 (3,730) 35,938
Lease Liability on principal component 1,119 (280) 839
Lease liabilty Interest portion (125) (125)
Non Convertible Debenture 20,000 - 20,000
Masala Bond 10,000 (10,000) -
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 886 (106) 780
Finance cost (17,034) (17,034)
Taotal 2,46,848 (13,264) 2,33,584

0F April 2020

Cash Flows

31 March 2021

Long term borrowing 1,79,746 (37,846) 1,41,900
Short term borrowing 47,684 (14,674) 33,010
Cash credit & overdratt facility from bank 205 40 245
ECB Borrowing 32.500 7.188 39,088
Lease Liability on principal component 1424 (305) 1,119
Lease liabilty Interest portion 103 (106) 3)
Non Convertible Debenture 20,000 - 20,000
Masala Bond 10,000 - 10,000
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 1,500 (614) 886
Finance cost - (20,723) (20,723)
Total 2,93,162 (67,040) 2,206,122
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48 Dues fo Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under under the MSMED Act, 2006,

Based on and to the extent of the information received by the Group from the supplicrs during the year regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act).

As al Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

-Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 817 168

-lnterest due on above - -
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the - -
supplicr beyond the appointed day during cach accounting year
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyoud the appomted day during - -
the year) but without adding the interest speciticd under the MSMED Act 2006.
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of ecach accounting year - -
The amount of further intercst remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest ducs as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006 - -

49 Foreign currency exposures not iedged by derivative instruments are as follows:
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 Muarch 2021
Amount in Amount in ¥ Amount in Amount in X
foreign currency foreign currency

Amount payable for Bank Guarantee fees (USD) 1 105 1 107
Amount payable for Bank Commitment Charges (UISD) 0 30 ] 3
Amount payable for Reimbursement of Salary (YEN) 53 33 126 292

The Group has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts are assessed for material foreseeable losses. The Group did not enter into any derivative transactions during
the year.
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50 As per requirement of the Companies Act, 2013, following additional disclosure needs to be given i the Notes (o Accounts as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2022

Net Assets, i.e., total

asscts minus total Sharc in protit and loss

Share in other Comprehensive

Share in total Campreliensive

I income income
liabilities
. As % of
Name of the Entit s Y of
¥ As % of o‘?:ol'(:l(': 4 consolidated As % of total
consolidite '
consolidated Amount lmﬁ: an:i Amaount other Amount  comprehensive Amount
net assets r comprehensive income
loss .
income
Parent
ORIX Auto Infrastuctre Services Limited 69% 51,813 “97% (712) 54% {22) -105% (734)
Subsidiaries
Indian
ORIX Leasing & Financial Scrvices Tndia Limited 30% 22,823 188% 1,380 46% {19) 196% 1.367
ORIX Housing Finaneial Corporation India limited 1323 28Y YW 63 0% - 9% 63
160% 74,924 100% 737 100% 41) 100% 696

As at 31 March 2021

Net Assets, i.e., total

assets minus total Share in profit and loss

Share in other Comprehensive

Share in total Comprehensive

* The companty has not yet started operations

Subsidiary rclation of -

ORIX leasing & financial services India limited exists from 21 April 2018,
ORIX Housing financial corporation India limited exists from 09 February 2010.
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Viabilities income income
. As % of
Namr of the Enti As % of ?
v As % of u?fuli:l::cd consolidated As % of total
consolidated Amount © ll it -And Amount other Amount comprehensive Amount
net assets profit a camprehensive income
loss .
income

Parent
ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited 71% 52,547 -184% {3,137 7% 147 -161% (2,990}
Subsidiaries
Indian
ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited 29% 21456 279% 4,762 3% 5 256% 4,767
ORIX Housing Financial Corporation India limited 0% 225 5% 82 0% 4% 82

160% 74,228 160% 1,707 100% 152 100% 1,859

51 Group information
Information about subsidiaries
The consolidated financial statements of the Group include subsidiaries Hsted i the table below:
Principal Country of % equity interest
activities incorporation 31 March 2022 31 March 2022

ORIX leasing & financial services India limited Lending India 100% 100%
ORIX Housing financial corporation India limited N.A¥ India 100% 100%
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During the year, in Compliance with the RBI Master Circular RBI2021-2022/104 DOR.No.STR.REC.55/21.04.048/2021-22 ‘Prudential norms on Incoms Recognition, Assct
Classification and Provisioning pertaining 1o Advances’ dated 01 October 2021 read with Circular RBI/2021-22/125 DOR.STR.REC.68/21.04.048/2021-22 dated 12 Noveniber
accrued and credited 1o income account, on all advances which were NPA as on 31 December 2021, The impact

2021, the Group has reversed the amount of unrealized infer
of this reversal in the statement of protit & loss at the time of implementation of said prudential norms was X 4,599.

Change in accounting estimates
A change in accounting cstimate is an adjustment of the carrying amount of an assct or z liability, or the amount of the periodic consumption of an assct, that resulis from the

assessment of the present status of, and expected fature benefits and obligations associated with, assets and liabilities.

Nature of change

The Group has a loan book cousisting of Commercial Vehicle (CV) as well as Loan Against Property (LAP) business. While CV business has been discontinued, the LAY
business is continued. In terms of the contracts with the borrowers (CV as well as LAP), the Group has vxcercised its logal rights against delinquent borrowers (both in CV and
LAP business verticals) and repossessed assets from these delinguent borrowers. The Group has the right to sell these assets at any point of time.

The Group was carrying the loan in the books even post repossession of collateral. These assets are now accounted in the books as assets held for sale at net fair value (basis

external valuation) until they are sold.

Amount of change in current period
The foregoing change tantamounts to change in accounting estimate with regard 10 assets held for sale. As 4 vesult of this, 17 LAP loans worth T 1.859 Lakh and 25 CV loans
worth T 231 (net fair value of  72) are moved 10 assets held for sale. The charge to Protit & Loss of this change in LAP is Nil and CV is ¥ 159.

Ctteets on future period
Itis impracticable to estimates the effect of this change in future periods.

The Code on Sociat Security, 2020 (‘Code') relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment benefits received Presidential assent in September 2020. The
Code has been published in the Gazetie of India. However, the date on which the code will come into cffiret has not been nofified and the final rulesfinterpretation have not yet
been issued. The Group will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective. Based on a
preliminary assessment, the entity believes the impact of the change will not be significant.

In view of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Company has assessed the counter party credit risk in casc of financial asscts (comprising cash and cash cquivalents, bank deposits and
investments) and considered subsequent recoveries, past trends, credit risks profile of customers in case of wade receivables and unbilled revenues. The company while assessing
Right to Use and Investment in subsidiaries have considered past trend, future business projections and doesn’t foresee any significant downsizing of operations. As at the balance
sheet date and period subsequent fo that until adoption of financial statement, the Company has evaluated impact of COVID 19 on its financial statements and recorded necessary
adjustments if required. The Impact of COVID 19 may differ in future from that of estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements.

The Supreme court of India in its judgement dated 28 Fobruary 2019, has clarificd that any cmolument paid universally, necessarily and ordinarily to all employces across the
board are to be considered as basic wage and accordingly needs to be considered for caleulation of Provident Fund contribution. The Company has been legally advised thar there
are inlerpretalive challenges on the application of judgement retrospectively and as such does not consider there is any probable obligation for the past periods. As a resull,
Company has applied the judgement prospectively and has assessed its obligation to be insignificant and hence not accrued this obligation.

Capital commifments

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Capital commitment (net of advanccs) 15,682 8.208
15,682 8,208

There has been no other events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial statement.
Value zero represent anount less than fifty thousand and (-) represent Nil.

Previous year figures have been audited by a firm other than S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP and have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary.

As per our report of even date attached.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

For and on hehalf of the Board of Direcfors
ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited
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